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0021 0001 OF 0002 1735 304 0020
100 CHICAGO POLICE DEPT
CASE NUMBER DEFENDANT NAME ATTORNEY COURT DATE | COURT CALL/TIME
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, )
: ) 19 CR 6310101 ,
inti T o
Plamtlff, | ; g / o 7, ;ﬁ;w
v. )
| | )
JUSSIE SMOLLETT, )
| _ ) Hon. Steven G. Watkins
Defendant. ) Judge Presiding

Order
This matter corﬁes before the Court on Media Intervenors’ “Emergency Motion to
Intervene For Purposes of Objecting to and Vacating the Sealing Order” filed April 1,
2019. Counsel for Intervenors!, the State, and Defendant, Jussie Smollet, appeared the
next day. The Court found the matter was not an emergency requii‘ing disposition at that
time and set a briefing schedule..Defendant filed a responsive brief and Intervenors a
reply. The State filed a motion to modify the sealing order to allow the Cook County

Inspector General access to sealed records pursuant to an ongoing investigation. The

parties submitted oral argument on May 16, 2019. This order follows,

Procedural Background
On March 7, 2019, a grand jury indicted the Defendant on 16 counts of disorderly
conduct based on the principal allegation that he filed a false police report, a Class 4

felony, on January 29, 2019. On March 26, 2019, the State moved for entry of nolle prosequi

! See Motion naming media organizations participating in the case.




on all charges in the indictment. “ A nolle prosequi is the formal entry of a declaration that
a case will not be further prosecuted.” People v. Baes, 94 1ll. App. 3d 741, 746 (1981). The
State’s Attorney has broad discretion to file a nolle prosequi and “the trial court is required.
to enter the nolle prosequi absent a cléar abuse of the prosecutor’s discretion.” People v
Bradley, 128 Ill. App. 3d 372, 382 (1984). |
In the same hearing, the Defense requested immediate sealing of the records in
this case, The State did not object. Defense counsel prepared an order for immediate
sealingrusing a template form for that purpose available from the Clerk of the -Circuit
Court and presented it to the Court. With nothing offeréd in opposition, the Court signed

the order and entered it on the record,

Immediate Sealing

The Illinois Criminal. Identifiéation Act (20 ILCS 2630/1 et seq.) provides for ’ché
immediate sgaling of eligible re:cords related to arrests “resulting in acquittal or dismissal
with prejudice” except for minor traffic offenses. 20 ILCS 2630/5.2(g)(2). “Seal” means to
physically and electronically maintain the records, but to make the records unavailable
without a court ordet. Id. at § 5.2(a)(1)(k). Circuit courts are directéd to inform eligible
defendants of their right to the procedure for immediate sealing. Id. § 5.2(g)(4). A
defendant can request immediate sealing the same day and in the same heé;ring in which
their, casé is disposed. Id. § 5.2(g)(2). The trial judge is to rule on and enter an order
granting or denying the request in the same hearing. Id. § 5.2(g)(6)(E). Records may be
sealed iﬁunediately after éntry of the final disposition in the case. Id. § 5.2(g)(3). An order

| so entered, though, is not final upon entry. Id. § 5.2(g)(5)(J). Rather, copies of the order
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must first be served upon the Department of State Police, the State’s Attorney, the
arresting agency, and the chief legal officer of the unit of local governmen;c effecting the
arrest. Id. § S.Q(d) (8). After 30 days from service upon those parties, the order is final and
appealable. Id. § 5.2(g)(5)(J). However, the petitioner, the State’s Attorney, or the
Department of State Police may file a motion to vacate, modify, or reconsider the order
regarding immediate sealing within 60 days. Id. § 5.2(g)(5)(K). A motion granting
immediate sealing is not void 1f the petition failed to comply with the provisions of the
statute or any reason set forth in a motion. Id. § 5.2(g)(5)(L). Instead, “[t}he circuit couft
retains jurisdiction to determine whether the order is voidable, and to vacate modify, or

- reconsider its terms.” Id.

Public Access to Court Records

Intervenorsrcontend that the sealing order in this case violates the public’s right of
access to c.ourt records and proceedings rooted in the first amendment to the United -
States’ Cﬁnstitution, the Illinois Constitution, and common law, In their briefs,
Intervenors argued the immediate sealing provision of the Criminal Identification Act is
facially unconstitutional. At oral argument though, Intervenors stated solely that the
sealing order in this case is constitutionally invalid as applied. Courts are cautioned to
refrain from ruling on the constitutionality of a statute if a matter can be decided on othér
grounds. People v. Jackson, 2013 IL 113986, § 14. Accordingly, the Court will analyze

Intervenors more limited as-applied challenge to the order and reach the constitutionality

of the immediate sealing provision only as a last resort.




In their arguments, Intervenors rely on decisions of the United States and Illinois
Supreme Courts recognizing the right of public access to court records. See, e.g,, Press-
Enterprise Co. v, Superior Court of California for the County of Riverside, .478 US 1,9 (1986)
(Press-Enterprise I1); Skolnick v. Altheimer & Gray, 191 11L. 2d 214, 231 (2000). Under fhat
precedent, a presumption of access attaches to court records th;at meet what are called the
experience and logic tests. This analysis asks, first,-whether the fecords at issue have
historically been open to the public—the exi)erience test—and, second, whether “public
access plays' a significant positive role in the functioning of the particular process in
question” — the logic test. Press Enterprise I, 478 U.S. at 8. “If the presumption applies to
a certain fype of proceeding or record, the trial court cannot close this typel of proceeding
or record, unless the court makes specific findings demonstrating that ciosure is essenfial
to preserve higher values and is narrowly tailored to serve those values.” Peoﬁle v. Kelly,
397 1L App. 3d. 232, 261 (2009) (citing Press-Enterprise I, 478 US. at 13-14 and Press-
Enterprise Co. v. Superior Court of California, Riverside County, 464 U.S. 501, 510 (1984)
(Press-Enterprise I)). |

However, the authority Intervenors cite on this subject generally concerns pending
cases. See, e.g., People v. Zimmerman, 2018 I.L 122261; Kelly, 397 111. App. 3d 232. The records
in this case, by contrast, concern a matter that is, a’c_’chis time, final. “The United States
Supreme Court has yet to address whether the records of criminal cases that have been
dismissed or subject to nolle prosequi are entitled to First Amendment presumption of

access.” Commonuwealth v. Pon, 469 Mass. 296, 308 (2014) (still true at this time). Neither




has the Illinois Suprgme Court. While neither court has spoken on this issue, courts of
other jurisdictions have.

The decision of the Suprefne Judicial Court of Massachusetts in Commonwealth v.
Pon, anaiyzing that state’s sealing statute, is guiding. In Pon, the court noted that
exceptions to public access for some court records have been long recognized. It then
concluded, “the records of closed cases resulting in certain nonconvictions have not been
open historically' in the same sense as other, constitutionally cognizable elements of
~criminal proceedings.” Id. at 310. Thus, the experience test did not call for a presumption
of access. Likewise, the court observed only a narrow class of cases were at issue —those
resulting in dismissal of nolle prosequi. So, the court concluded * [tIhere is no indication
that the availability of records of criminal cases that have been closed after nonconviction
enhances the basic fairness of the crirﬁinal trial and the appeeu-'ance of fairness as the
openness of criminal trials does.” Id. at 310-11. (citations omitted). Thus, the logic test did
not work in favor of the first amendment presumpﬁon either.

Despite finding the first amendmént presumption of access did not attach to the
records of such cases, the court found that the records are subject to the common-law
presumptioﬁ of public acéess. Id. at311. The consequencé of that distinction is that access
may be restricted on a showing of good cause rather than speci'ficl findings that restriction
is essential to serve a compelling interest and the means are harrowly tailored to achieve
that interest. Id. at 312. While the burden on a defendant is lower, this standard still

ensures that “sealing may occur only where good cause justifies the overriding of the

general principle of publicity.” Id. at 313.




The Supreme Court of Ohio reasoned similarly when a newspaper challenged the
constitutionality of that state’s statute providing for the sealing' of records in criminal
cases resulting in acquittai. State ex rel. Cincinnati Enguirer v. Winkler, 101 Ohio 5t.3d 382
(2004). That court found the statute called for the judge to balance the public’s right of
access and the acquitted dlefendant’s right to privacy before ordering records .sealed. Id.
at 384. Other courts have similarly goncluded that sealing criminal records in a closed
case involves balancing and tﬁe defendant bears the burden to show good cause. See,
| Johnson v. State, 50 P.3d 404 (Alaska Ct, App. 2002); State v. D.H.I/V.,.686 So. 2d 1331 (Fla.
1996); In re Kollman, 210 N.J. 557 (2012). |

This Court is not persuaded that the first amendment presumption of access
attaches to records in a criminal case that was disposed by entry of nolle prosequi.
Intervenors have made no showing to establish such under the experience and logic tests.
Further, the Supreme fudicial Court of Massachusetts’ opinion is persuasive that the
presumption does not-attach. As a result, “specific findings demonstrating that closure is
essential to preserve higher values and is narrowly tailored to serve those vélues” were
not required for Defendant’s records to be sealed or to remain sealed.

Nonetheless, persuasive authority indicates that the common-law presumption
does apply. Illinois recognizes the common-law presumption of public access to court
records, Skolnick, 191 111, 2d at 230. Yet, the common-law right of access to judicial records
is not absolute. Zimmerman, 2018 11, 122261, 43. “[W]hether court records ina particular
case are opened to public scrutiny rests with the trial court’s discretion, which must take
into consideration all facts and circumstances unique to that case.” Skolnick, 191 Ill. 2d at

-6 -




231. This is fitting given that the statute contemplates that records “may be sealed” rather
than “shall” be sealed. 20 ILCS 2630/ 5.2(c)(2), (g)(2). The similarly worded expungement
provisions of the Criminal Identification Act, have also been construed as discretionary.
People v. Carroccié, 352 Il App. 3d 1114, 1118 (2004). Accordingly, sound discretion
suggests records may be sealed over the common-law presumption of access onl,y for
good cause, |

As outlined above, granting a request for immediate sealing upon the disposition
of a dismissed criminal case is not final at that point. The immediate sealing proviéions
expressly .contemplate that the order can be challenged and reviewed. Thus, when
reviewing an order grain_ting iMediate sealing, the issue is not whether the sealing order |
was proper in the first instance, but whether the records in the case should remain sealed.

Intervenors are not a party listed in the statute who may file a motion to vacate,
modify, or reconsider a sealing order. However, neither the State nor Defendant have
challenged the Intervenors’ standing and the issue can be deemed waived. Cf. Skolnick,
191 I1. 2d at 237. At the same time, the circuit court has the iruherént power to modify or
vacate an interlocutory order. Hernandez v. Pritikin, 2012 1L 113054, 9 42. Therefore, it is
not inconsistent with the statute nor beyond the Court's authority to examine anew
whether records in a criminal case should be sealed.

Good Cause

Intervenors contend that good cause does not exist for the records to remain
sealed. They note that the matter has been widely publicized and the Defendant and his
- attorneys have appeared on national television discussing the case. In their view, the

-7-




purpose of sealing records of a dismissed criminal case is to remove or diminish the
impediment to future employment resulting from knowledge of a defendant’s arrest.
They argue sealing does not serve that purpose here because Defendant’s arrest is already
well-known. Intervenors further claim that this case implicates issues regarding the
functipning of a governmental office and the integrity of the judicial system.

Defendant argues that a defendant whose case is dismissed should not be
deprived of the statutory right to have records sealed simply because the news media
covered the case, To him, the Intervenors pbsition is self-fulfilling. That is, the case has
- been the sﬁbject of substantial public attention because they made it so. In addition, he
notes the news media was present at each éourt z.:lppearance and had opportunity to
access the sealed records before March 26, 2019.

Defendant’s arguﬁen’c has séme appeal. Indeed, there is a certain irony that thé
Intervenors purport to seek access based on a perception thaf Defendant was treated
differently from other criminal defendants, yet they would have him treated differently
" from other criminal defendants whq, by statute, have the right to request tile.records of
their case be sealed. Criminal defendahtslwhose cases end in acquittal or dismissal have
legitimate interests in‘having their records sealed in addition to the effect the case may
have | on future employment. These include reputational and privacy iriterests.
Defendant’s brief terms his privacy interest as ”tﬁe right to be let alone.”

" To be sure, it is easily co.nceivabié that a defendant whose case was dismissed
“would wish to maintain his sense of privacy, even if, perhaps especially if, the media
covered tﬁe case. And it would seem inequitable to deny such a defendant simply seeking

-8-




to maintain his privacy of his right to have records sealed because the media covered his
case—even if that defendant is a public figure. See; Pon, 469 Mass. at 318 (“where the
crime or the case ﬁras newsworthy, the judge should consider whether the defendant
maintains any sense of privacy, sﬁch that sealing could still have a positive impact”).
However, that isn't this case. The Defendant voluntarily appeared on national

television lfor aﬁ interview speaking about the incident in detail.? After the March 26
dismissél, he Voluntariiy stood in front of cameras from numerous news organizations in
the courthouse lobby and spoke about the case. On several occasions, attorneys for
Defendant, presumébly with his authorization, appeared on various media outlets
speaking about the case. These are not the actions of a person seeking to maintain his
privacy or simply be let alone. While the Court appreciates that the Defendant was in the
public eyé before the events that precipitated this case, it was not hecessary for him to
address this so publicly and fo such an extent. By doing so, the Court cannot credit his
privacy interest as good cause to keep the case records séaled. Defendant also posits that
some sealed records may contain medical, financial, or other personal information. His
privacy concerning those matters, though, is protected by the provisions of the Freedofn
of Information Act that call for withholding or redacting certain information. When.

balanced against the value of openness, the Defendant has not shown good cause to rebut

the common-law presumption of public access.

2 The Court takes judicial notice of the media coverage of this case. These facts are beyond reasonable dispute and
both counsel for Intervenors and Defendant remarked “everyone from here to Helsinki knows about this” at oral

argument.
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Conclusion

| Based on the foregoing discussion, the Court finds as follows:
(1) the common-law presumption of public access applies to the records at issue in this
case; |
(2) an order granfi'ng immediate sealing pursuant to the Criminal Identification Act is
interlocutory and may be vacated or modified;
(3) whether records should remain sealed is discretionary;
(4) good cause does ﬁot exist to keep the records of this case Seale(:i;
(5) having decided the matter on other grounds, the Court need not address the
constitutional issues raised by Intervenors.

Accordingly, Intervenors motion to Intervene is Granted and the Court hereby vacates

thelsealing order of March 26, 2019.

Judge Stevens: Wailgéxy’
| Cook County CircuitConft
Date: May 23, 2019 | | ' Criminal Division

BOROTHY &
CLE%&;;@?%T_?\‘;E%.
{ pepuTy BliRg " GURTY.
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Sheet # Defendant Sheet # CRIMINAL DISPOSITION SHEET Branch/Room/Location CLERK USE ONLY
0015 0001 OF 0002 1735 304 _ 0013
100 CHICAGO POLICE DEPT
CASE NUMBER DEFENDANT NAME >._40m2m< COURT DATE | COURT CALL/TIME
19CR0310401 SMOLLETT, JUSSIE DENTONS US LLP 05-16-2019 | 2~0930 AM
CB/DCN # IR # EM BOND # 1/c|D BOND AMOUNT
019771648 2397168 1375606 X $100,000.00
CHARGES COURT ORDER ENTERED

C001 720-5/26-1(a) (4)
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C008 720-5/26-1(a) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
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Sheet # Defendant Sheet # CRIMINAL DISPOSITION SHEET Branch/Room/Location CLERK USE ONLY
0016 0002 OF 0002 1735 304 0013
100 CHICAGO POLICE DEPT
CASE NUMBER DEFENDANT NAME ATTORNEY COURT DATE | COURT CALL/TIME
18CRO310401 SMOLLETT, JUSSIE DENTONS US LLP 05-16-2019 | 2-0930 AM
CB/DCN # IR # EM BOND # 1 CID BOND AMOUNT
019771648 2397168
1375606 X $100,000.00
CHARGES COURT ORDER ENTERED CODES

C012 720-5/26-

1(a) (4)

FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUI

C013 720-5/26-

1{a} (4]

FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSEH
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUT
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1(a) (4)

FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
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FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUT
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Sheet # Defendant Sheet # CRIMINAL DISPOSITION SHEET Branch/Room/Location CLERK USE ONLY
0030 0001 OF 0002 1735 304 0028
100 CHICAGO POLICE DEPT
CASE NUMBER DEFENDANT NAME _ ATTORNEY _ COURT DATE | COURT CALL/TIME
19CR0O310401 SMOLLETT, JUSSIE : DENTONS US LLP 05-09-2019 2-0830 AM
CB/DCN # IR # EM - BOND # I|c|D BOND AMOUNT
019771648 : 2397168
1375606 X $100,000.00 i
CHARGES CODES

COURT ORDER ENTERED

C001 720-5/26-1(a) (4)
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FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUT
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FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
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FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUI

C006 720-5/26-1(A) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUI.

r fmwgsr\\ﬁwa mmwﬂmwf

C007 720-5/26-1(a) {4}
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUT

€008 720-5/26-1(a) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUTI

€009 720-5/26-1 (&) (4) :
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUT
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C010 720-5/26-1(3a) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUI
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CO0L1 720-5/26-1(a) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
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0031 0002 OF 0002 1735 304 0028
_ 100 CHICAGO POLICE DEPT
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C012 720-5/26-1(A) {4}
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUTI

CO0I3 720-5/26-1(A) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUI

C014 720-5/26-1(a) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUTI

€015 720-5/26-1(A) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUI

C016 720-5/26-1(a) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/26/19 NOLLE PROSEQUT
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

oa

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

FILED

)
)
- ) No. 19 CR 03104 " MAY 1 6 2018
) |
)

Judge. Steven G. Watkins DOROTHY BROWN

JUSSIE SMOLLETT CLERK OF GIRCUIT COURT

ORDER MODIFYING SEALING ORDER

This matter coming before the Court on the COOK COUNTY STATE’S ATTORNEY’S
UNOPPOSED MOTION TO MODIFY THE SEALING ORDER, the parties having appeared,
the Cook County Office of the Inciependent Inspector General (“OIIG”) having appeared, and the
Court being fulling advised on the premises:

[T IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

- 1. The State’s Attorney’s motion is granted, and the Order for Immediate Sealing of
Criminal Records entered on March 26, 2019 (“Sealing Order™) is hereby modified;

2. The OIIG agrees to submit to the jurisdiction of this Court for the limited purpose of
implementation and enforcement of this Order;

3. The Clerk of the Circuit Court is directed to allow a representative of the OIIG to review
and copy the file in the case titled People of the State of Illinois v. Jussie Smollett, case
no. 19 CR 03104 (“Smollett Case™);

4. The Office of the State’s Attorney is granted permission to allow the OIIG to review and
copy any documents in its file in the Smollett Case that are subject to the Sealing Order;

5. The OIIG is prohibited from disseminating any of the documents turned over to it
pursuant to this Order to anyone outside of the OIIG; and

6. Upon completion of its investigation, the OIIG is ordered to return to the Office of the
State’s Attorney within sixty (60) days of the completion of its investigation all copies of
any documents that were provided to it by the Office of the State’s Attormey pursuant to
this Order. “Completion of its investigation” is defined as the issuance of a report.

H

Entered:

Judge



IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, )
)
Plaintiff, )
) ~ No. 19 CR 0310401
V8. )
) Hon. Steven G. Watkins 3
JUSSIE SMOLLETT ) -
) 504
Defendant. ) =
NOTICE OF FILING Gl F

To:  SEE ATTACHED LIST

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that we caused to be filed with the Clerk of the Court on the 7" day
of May, 2019, REPLY MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MEDIA INTERVENORS’®
EMERGENCY MOTION TO INTERVENE FOR PURPOSES OF OBJECTING TO AND
VACATING THE SEALING ORDER, a copies of which is hereby served upon you.

Dated: May 7, 2019 Respectfully submitted, 7

| N ~
By: § ™~ _7}\
Natalie J. Spears - natalic.spears@dentons.com
Samuel Fifer - samuel. fifer@dentons.com
Gregory Naron - gregory.naron@dentons.com
Jacqueline A. Giannini - jacqui.giannini@dentons.com
Dentons US LLP, Firm No. 56309
233 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 5900
Chicago, Illinois 60606
Aftorneys for Intervenors




| CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Natalie J. Spears, an attorney, certifies that she caused a copy of the foregoing NOTICE
OF FILING to be served upon;

Patricia Brown Holmes
pholmes@rshe-law.com

Brian O’Connor Watson
bwatson@rshc-law.com

Risa Lanier

statesattorney@cookcountyil.gov
risa.lanier@cookcountyil.gov

via e-mail to the above e-mail addresses on this 7tI@May, 2019.
, S
=

One of the atforneys for Intervenors




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) No. 19 CR 0310401
Vs, )
) Hon. Steven G. Watkins -
JUSSIE SMOLLETT ) =

REPLY MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MEDIA INTERVENORS® |
EMERGENCY MOTION TO INTERVENE FOR PURPOSES OF
OBJECTING TO AND VACATING THE SEALING ORDER

: . £.0
Media Intervenors' respectfully submit this reply memorandum in support of their metion

for leave to intervene in this action and to vacate the Court’s March 26, 2019 Seéi:ing Order.

As Defendant concedes (Response to Intervenors® Motion (“Resp.”) at 11), this is a case of
“tremendous” public interestmjustiﬁably so, not only because of the sensational nature of the
underlying events aﬁd Mr. Smollett’s celebrity, but also because of the public outcry surrounding
the peremptory dismissal of the felony charges against him, after the City expended significant
public resources investigating and prosecuting them. Under these circumstances, Defendant’s
attempt to seal the entire court file and thwart lawful requests for information about the case to
other branches of government is an improper, and indeed unconstitutiqnal, use of the Ilinois
Criminal Identification Act, and there is simply no good cause to support it in this case.

- First, Defendant concedes that court files are subject to a presumption of access under

the First Amendment and common law (Resp. at 4-5), and cannot dispute that the Sealing

! The Media Intervenors are: Chicago Tribune Company, LLC, Cable News Network, Inc., ABC News
and WLS Television, Inc., NBC News, a division of NBCUniversal Media, LLC, CBS Broadcasting Inc.,
on behaif of CBS News and WBBM-TV, WGN Continental Broadcasting Company, LLC, The
Associated Press, The New York Times Company, Univision Communications Inc., Fox Television
Stations, LLC, The Hollywood Reporter, LLC, National Public Radio, Inc. and WBEZ, Sun-Times
Media, LLC, Gannett Satellite Information Network, LLC, on behalf of USA Today, and Dow Jones &
Company, publisher of The Wall Street Journal. The news media has a right to intervene in order to
assert the public’s rights of access. (See Intervenors’ Opening Brief (“Open. Br.”) at 5-6.) The State’s
Attorney does not object to intervention (4/2/19 Tr. 7:12-14), and Defendant says nothing in his Response
about, and thereby concedes, Intervenors’ right to intervene. Intervention, accordingly, should be granted.




Order did n;)t comply with the strict constitutional requirements that sealing was “essential to
preserve higher values and . . . narrowly tailored to serve that interest.” Press-Enter. Co. v.
Superior Court, 464 U.S. 501, 510 (1984). For that reaa;on alone, entry of the Sealing Order
violated the constitution and must be vacated.

Second, Defendant does not even attempt to argue that sealing serves the government
interest reflected in the Criminal Identification Act, 20 ILCS 2630/1, et seq. (“Act”), under which
the Sealing Order was entered. He could not. The Act’s purpose is té allow citizens acquitted of a
crime to seal the fact of his or her arrest from, for example, potential employers. (See Open. Br. at
4, 11-13.) The Order’s directive to “seal the arrest” is a non sequitur here: unlike the typical case
the Act contemplates, the public at large is already well aware of the charges brought against Mr.
Smollett. Sealing cannot serve the Act’s intended purpose. Té be clear: the relief Intervenors seck
has nothing to do with the Act’s ordinary (and salutary) operation. But Defendant’s- improper
application of the Act in this case, to effect the sealing of public records in a significant criminal
proceeding, with no notice to the press or public and no consideration of the public interest, is
unconstitutional. (See id. at 14-15.)

Third, the unconstitutionaily entered Sealing Order is being misused in these circumstances
to bar release of critical information about the case and its dismissal held by other government
agencies such as the Chicago Police Department (“CPD”) and State’s Attorney’s Office (“SAO”)
that would otherwise be subject to valid requests under the Illinois Freedom of Tnformation Act
(“FOIA”). FOIA “promote[s] transparency and accountability of public bodies at all levels of
government.” Fagel v. Dep't ‘of Transp., 2013 IL App. (Ist) 121841, 9 32. The information held by
the SAO and CPD is not just “discovery” material as Défendant suggests, but public records

reflecting government decision making that go to the heart of the public’s right to know. State’s




Attorney Foxx has stated that “[i]n the interest of full transparency,” she “would prefer these records
belmade public” but her Office and the CPD both sec themselves as constrained by the Sealing
Order.? Tt could not have been the Court’s intent to gag government agencies and thwart the proper
operation of FOIA in an area of paramount public interest.

Finally, unable to show how the Act is a proper basis for the Sealing Order in these
circumstances, Defendant now attempts, after the fact, to justify the Order by analogy to protective
orders regarding pretrial discovery. But that gambit fails because no “good cause” supports entry
of a seal on otherwise public criminal records relating tf) Defendant’s arrest and prosecution—least
of all his. purported privacy concerns. He is admittedly a “public figure and there is a tremendous:
amount of public interest in this case.” (Resp. at 10-11.) Under Illinois law and the constitution,
the right of privacy is severely limited in matters of public interest and involving public figures.

Defendant’s appeal to privacy is a sham. He has no legitimate privacy interest in secreting
the facts of this case. As discussed in Intervenors’ Motion (Open. Br. at 2-3, 5-6), the dismissal of
this case triggered controversy and important public discourse about the criminal justice system, in

Chicago and nationwide. The firestorm has not abated. Since Intervenors filed their motion:

¢ On April 10, 2019, the SAO requested that the Cook County Inspector General (“1G™)
“conduct a review of the State’s Attorney’s handling of this case™; the SAQ moved to
modify the Sealing Order to allow the IG to review the criminal file, noting that
“ensurfing] the integrity of the prosecutorial process” is “good cause” for such review.>

e There have been calls for appointment of a special prosecutor to investigate how State’s
Attorney Foxx and her office handled this matter. One such petition, filed by a retired
Hlinois Appellate Court Judge, observes that there is “a perception that justice was not
served here, that Mr. Smollett received special treatment” and that “[a] public view of the

? Kim Foxx, Op-Ed, I welcome an outside review of how we handled the Jussie Smollett case, CHICAGO
TRIBUNE, Mar. 29, 2019 (“Foxx Op-Ed”). The SAO and CPD have both denied FOIA requests, citing the
Sealing Order. See Exhibit 1 attached hereto {examples of FOIA denial letters citing Sealing Order).

3 State’s Attorney’s Unopposed Motion to Modify the Sealing Order, filed Apr. 30, 2019, at §9 4-5, 8.




court file in this case could potentially partially remedy this perception, but the file has
been sealed from the public view.™*

o The City of Chicago filed suit against Defendant to recoup the overtime costs of
investigating his claim that he was the victim of a hate crime; the suit alleges violation of
the False Statements Ordinance, based on Defendant’s submission of a “false police report
claiming that he was the victim of a racist and homophobic beating by unknown attackers”
when “[i]n reality, Defendant knew his attackers and orchestrated the purported attack
himself.”

¢ Defendant’s counsel have been opining volubly that the evidence exonerates their client
and attacking the Osundairo brothers, the individuals who allegedly staged the attack at
Defendant’s - behest. “The actor’s seasoned attorneys believed they had plenty of
ammunition to attack™ the brothers’ credibility, and “[t]hey also said that much of the
evidence, particularly text messages and phone records between Smollett and the
brothers, was taken out of context.”

e For their part, the Osundairo brothers have filed a defamation complaint against Mr,
Smolleit’s lawyers at the Geragos law firm, alleging that they made public statements
falsely accusing the brothers of committing “a criminally homophobic, racist, and violent
attack against Mr. Smollett” in order “to distract from Mr. Smollett’s farce and to
promote themselves™.”

e And, contradicting Defendant’s position here, his counsel Mr. Geragos demanded, in
response to the City’s civil suit, “the prompt production of the entire investigation file”
and that “all records and hearings on this matter be open to the public.”® :

In light of these circumstances, and Defendant’s counsel’s expansive public statements about
what the evidence shows, and insistence on transparency only if it is advantageous to him, any
argument that there is a basis for keeping the records and evidence in this case under wraps has
either been waived or lacks all credibility. Defendant’s attempt to selectively shroud the facts in

secrecy is simply unsustainable. Defendant’s use of this Court and the Sealing Order to effectuate

* Ex. 2 (Petition to Appoint Special Prosecutor in Matter of People v. Jussie Smollett, 19 Misc. 00014
(Cir. Ct. Cook Cty., Crim. Div., filed April 5, 2019), at 15).

* Ex. 3 (Complaint, City of Chicago v. Jussie Smollett, 19 L 003898 (Cir. Ct. Cook Cty., Law Div., filed
April 11,2019), at 1).

% Jason Meisner and Megan Crepeau, Mystery remains over why Kim Foxx’s office dismissed hoax
charges against Jussie Smollett, CHICAGO TRIBUNE, Apr. 8, 2019,

7 Ex. 4 (Complaint, Osundairo v. Geragos, No. 19-cv-02727 (N.D. 111, filed April 23, 2019), at J 23).
% Ex. 5 (Apr. 4, 2019 Letter from M. Geragos to E. Siskel, at 3),




that secrecy is contrary to law, and threatens to corrode confidence in the criminal justice system.
See, e.g., Richmond Newsp., Inc. v. Virginia, 448 U.S. 555, 572 (1980). Armed now with the law
and argument on behalf of the public’s constitutional rights and tﬁe lack of good cause—not
presented with Defendant’s motion to seal-—this Court should vacate the Sealing Order.

A. Defendant Does Not Dispute That the Court File is Subject to the
Constitutional and Common Law Presumption of Access, and the Sealing
Order Did Not Meet the Standards for Overcoming That Presumption.

The Sealing Order, entered pursuant to Defendant’s pro forma oral motion under the
Criminal identiﬁcation Act, violates the First Amendment and common law access rights
because, to begin, it sweepingly applies to the entirety of the court file in this matter.

Defendant concedes, as he must, that‘ the “court records” in this case are subject to the
First Amendment’s “constitutional presumption” of access. (Resp. at 4-5; Open. Br. at 7-9.)
That presumption of openness puf a heavy burden squarely on Defendant to demonstrate that
sealing is “essential to préserve higher values and . . . narrowly tailored to serve that interest”
(Press-Enter. Co. v. Superior Court, 464 U.S. 501, 510 (1984) (“Press-Enterprise I); see also
Skolnick v. Altheimer & Gray, 191 1ll. 2d 214, 232 (2000); People v. Zimmerman, 2018 IL
122261, § 30)°-—a burden Defendant did not and does not even attempt to meet. The
constitutionally required particularized findings on the record justifying such secrecy were also
not made. See Press-Enter. Co. v. Superior Court, 478 U.S. 1, 13-14 t1986).

Instead, without making the required showing, Defendant secured a Sealing Order based

on no findings, that sealed the entire court file. That was clearly prohibited under both the

? Likewise, under the common law, any sealing order cannot be issued without a “compelling” interest,
and must be drafted in the least restrictive manner possible. Skolnick, 191 I1l. 2d at 231. It is the burden of
the party proposing sealing (or opposing unsealing) to meet this test. In re Marriage of Johnson, 232 i1,
App. 3d 1068, 1072-73 (4th Dist, 1992).




constitution and Illinois common law. See, e.g., A.P. v. M.E.E.,, 354 Ill. Apb. 3d 989, 995 (1st
Dist. 2004) (reversing trial court’s “rﬁbber stamp” of parties’ request to seal that made no
specific findings “explain[ing] why secrecy was vital™); Skolnick, 191 Ill. 2d at 231.

Attempting to evade that clear constitutional violation, Defendant asserts that Intervenors
haven’t shown “good cause” for unsealing the court file. (Resp. at 8.) But, of course, that is not
the constitutional standard, and Intervenors do not bear the burden. Again, it is Defendant who
had the heavy burden of establishing a compelling justification fqr sealing in the first instance on
the facts of this case. He has uiterly failed to do so. |

B. Defendant Does Not Dispute That Applying the Criminal Identification Act’s
Sealing Provisions in These Circumstances Is Absurd If Not
Unconstitutional.

Defendant does not dispute that immediate sealing under thel Act is permissive, not
mandatory (see Open. Br. at 10, citing, e.g, 20 ILCS 2630/5.2(2)(2), (3) (“may” not “shall™). The
Court’s discretion under the Act must be exercised consistent with constitutional standards. If the
Court were to find the Act permitted entry of the Sealing Order here—restricting public access with
no notice and based on no \}alid cause-—it would be patently unconstitutional. See Press-Enterprise
I supra, Globe Ne.wsp. Co. v. Pokaski, 868 F.2d 497, 500, 507-508 (1st Cir. 1989) (to comply with
constitution, acquitted defendant would have to affirmatively move for the sealing of his records and
- demonstrate the need for the sealing).'?

Notably, while Intervenors gave the Attorney General notice of this potential challenge to
the constitutionality of the Act as applied here, he declined to ap‘pez:u'l L _no doubt because the

untoward and unconstitutional application of the Act in this case that Defendant advocates is

10" 4t minimum, the Act imports a requirement that good cause for such an order be shown. As discussed
infra, at 9-11, Defendant did not and cannot make such a showing,

' Ex. 6 (April 10, 2019 Letter from Office of IIl. Att’y General).




tqﬁtally indefensible. In any event, the Court need not reach the constitutional issues, because
Defendant does not dispute that, regardless of how the Act operates in the run-of-the-mill case, in
the circumstances of #his case, the interest to be protected by the Act cannot be served by sealing.

Defendant does not dispute that the Act’s purpose is to give people who have been arrested
and not convicted, or convicted and successfully served their sentence, an opportunity to remove _
their criminal record from public view, giving therh a “fresh start” with employers and the like. (See
Open. Br. at 11-12.) Of course, Mr. Smollett’s arrest was the subject of national headline news for
weeks; potential future employers and the public at large are already more than aware of the charges
brought agafnst him, which have now been summarily dismissed. There is no sense in closing the
barn door now. See Inre A Minor, Whose Name is Omitted, 127 1l. 2d 247, 269 (1989).

Plainly put, the Act’s narrow purpose is to prevent records reflecting the fact of an arrest
from becoming public knowledge. That is impossible here. Notwithstanding the Sealing Order’s
directive to “seal the arrest,” the fact of the arrest in this case is public knowledge and can no
longer be “sealed”—and it is a perversion of the Criminal Identification Act’s limited and
salutary purpose to do so. There is no valid purpose served by its application here.

Recognizing that his deployment of the Act to shroud the public record information about
his case in secrecy is utterly nonsensical (not to mention offensive to the public interest and
unconstitutional), Defendant’s Response nowhere discusses the Act that is purportedly the basis for
entry of the Sealing Order (his sole mention is a footnote stating that the Act “authorized the
immediate sealing of the records,” Resp. at 2 n. 1), much less why the Act’s purpose is served by

such. It plainly isn’t. Again, for this reason alone, the Order should be vacated in its entirety.




C. Defendant’s Attempt to Characterize the Records at Issue as “Discovery” Is
Unavailing, Since There Could Be No “Good Cause” Under the Act for the
Sealing Order. '

The Sealing Order was supposed to be about “sealing the arrest” as the Act contemplates—
but sinlce that is an impossibility here, Defendant is now talking about “discovery” and protective
orders (Resp. at 3-4, 6-8), seeking to align his argument with cases observing that there is “no
tradition of access to discovery material not yet admitted at trial.” (Jd at 6, citing People v.
Zimmerman, 2018 T8 122261, § 33 (citing Seattle Times Co. v. Rhinehart, 467 U.S. 20, 33 (1984)).)
This mischaracterization doesn’t help Defendant, for a few reasons.

First, describing the records at issue here solely in terms of “discovery” is inaccurate. The
Order is not just thwarting access to documents exchanged in “discovery” (which Defendant notes
was limited), but a wide variety of internal CPD and SAO documents about Defendant’s arrest and
prosecution including documents that would not be part of the discovery process—and are of critical
importance to the public’s understanding of what their government did here. In particular, the Order
is being cited by the SAO to deny FOIA requests for information about its actions in this case—even
though the SAO has publicly committed itself to “full transparency” in this matter and “would prefer
these records be made public”.'> Moreover, merely labeling evidence and otherwise public records
as “discovery” does not create good cause for sealing, particularly under the Act.!?

Second, aside from wrongly attempting to concoct a raticnale for the Sealing Order by

analogizing to “pretrial discovery”, the considerations present in the cases Defendant cites are

2 Foxx Op-Ed, sypra n. 2, and Ex. 1.

" The Act does not refer to “discovery” or “evidence” but only contemplates a narrow range of
documents that record the fact of an arrest. Section 2.1 of the Act describes the “criminal records™—
“certain criminal arrest, charge, and disposition information”—that are collected from local law
enforcement and maintained by the Department of State Police under the Act. “Arrest Information,” for
example, is “fingerprints, charges and descriptions of all persons who are arrested”. 20 ILCS 2630/2.1(a).
Presumably, those are the “records” that a sealing order would make “unavailable without a court order”
(20 ILCS 2630/5.2(a)(K)y—not “discovery” or “evidence”.




entirely absent here. For example, in People v. Zimmerman, access was sought during a criminal
trial to “discovery evidence” filed with a motion in limine that was not going to be used at trial and
could “taint the jury pool”. 2018 IL 122261, at § 37. (Even in those circumstances, the court struck
“a careful balance” between access and fair trial rights: “The court’s order was . . . of a limited
duration” and after a jury was empaneled it “agreed to revisit . . . whether it would be proper to
allow public access to the motions at that time.” fd. at § 46). Here, of course, there are no such fair
trial considerations; the case.against Defendant has been di.smissed. And in contrast to Zimmerman,
no one is .“seekin'g” access to discovery from the Court file; Intervenors seek to vacate ‘an invalid
Sealing Order that is impermissibly putting sand in the gears of FOIA’s normal operation in an
unintended and unjustified manner.* |
Third, no “good cause” exists in all events. Contrary to what Defendant suggests, even in the
context of protective orders limiting dissemination of pretrial discovery Seattle Times confirmed that
such orders “are subject to scrutiny under the First Amendment.” 467 U.S. at 37 (Brennan, J.,
concurring). While that scrutiny is nét the strict variety enunciated in the Press-Enferprise cases, it is
nevertheless searching. In evaluating whether “good cause” exists for suéh orders, “it is necess;ary to
consider whether the ‘practice in question [furthers] an important or substantial governmental interest
unrelated to the suppression of expression’ and whether ‘the limitation of First Amendment freedoms
[is] no greater than is necessary or essential to the protection of the particular governmental interest

involved.”” Id at 32 (maj. op.) (quoting Procunier v. Martinez, 416 U.S. 396, 413 (1974));

4" Whether or not documents were “compiled for purposes of discovery” does not affect their status as
public records subject to FOIA. See Kalven v. City of Chicago, 2014 IL App (1st) 121846, 9 28. Public
records broadly include all “documentary materials pertaining to the transaction of public business,
regardless of physical form or characteristics, having been prepared by or for, or having been or being
used by, received by, in the possession of, or under the control of any public body,” and “are subject to
FOIA and must be disclosed unless an exemption applies.” Id. at § 29 (quoting 5 ILCS 140/7(2)(c)).
Thus, but for the improper Sealing Order here, the usual rules under FOIA would govern and apply to
public record requests to CPD and the State’s Attorney’s Office without interference.




Cummings v. Beaton & Assocs., Inc., 192 111, App. 3d 792, 797 (1989) (Seattle Times good cause
requirement “reiterated the general rule that speech shall not be restricted unless such restraints are
no greater than is necessary to the protection of an important or substantial governmental interest™).!?
Under the “good cause” standard, the party desiring secrecy “must show that disclosure will
result in a “‘clearly defined and serious injury,” by pointing to ‘specific demonstrations of fact,”” not
r“broad allegations of potential harm.” Global Material T echnologies, Inc. v. Dazheng Metal Fi ibr@
Co., Ltd, 133 F.Supp.f’d 1079, 1084 (N.D. I1l. 2015) (citations omitted). “If there is any doubt as ?o
whether the material should be sealed, it is resolved in favor of disclosure.” Id. (emphasis added).
Particularly here, where the Sealing Order is having the unintended effect of restricting the
release of public records under FOIA, Defendant’s burden is heavier, and rightly so. For example, in
Pansy v. Borough of Stroudsburg, 23 F.3d 772 (3d Cir. 1994), newspapers moved to modify or
vacate a confidentiality order so they could obtain, pursuant to a state FOIA statute, access to city’s
agreement settling a civil rights action. The court held that where, as here, “it is likely that
information is accessible under a relevant freedom of information law, a strong presumption exists
against granting or maintaining an order of confidentiality whose scope would prevent disclosure of
that information pursuant to the relevant freedom of information law.” Id at 791 (emphasis added).
Defendant cannot overcome that presumption. No good cause exists here for all the réasons
noted earlier, and certainly not for issuing a sweeping secrecy dictate to other branches of

government. Certainly the Criminal Identification Act does not require that unintended result. As

'* Recognizing a “presumption of public access to discovery materials,” Citizens First Nat'l Bank v.
Cincinnati Ins. Co., 178 ¥.3d 943, 946 (7th Cir. 1999), the federal courts have strictly enforced the
requirement of a “good cause” finding to support any protective order. Jepson, Inc. v. Makita Elec.
Works, 30 F.3d 854, 858 (7th Cir. 1994) (“if good cause is not shown, the discovery materials in question
should not receive judicial protection”). Illinois courts are in accord. See, e.g., Hall v. Sprint Spectrum
L.P., 368 111. App. 3d 820, 826 (2006) (“reiterat[ing] the proposition that discovery should take place in
public”; citing Jepson with approval);, United Conveyor Corp. v. Allstate Ins. Co., 2017 IL App (ist)
162314, 18 (protective order covered “virtually everything produced in discovery”; “{t}his wholesale
effort to keep vast amounts of information out of the public record is unwarranted™).

-10 -




noted, the Act does not mandate sealing, and it is unwarranted under these circumstances. Indeed,
Defendant makes no attempt to justify the Sealing Order as effectuating the governmental interest
reflected in the Criminal Identification Acf—muph less that the Order’s limitation on Intervenors’
First Amendment rights is “no greater than i-s necessary or essential to the protection of” that absent
governmental interest. Seattle Times, 467 U.S. at 32. See Cummings, 192 Tll. App. 3d at 797
(“defendants have not deﬁlonstrated what imﬁortant or substantial governmental interest is at stake
in need of protection by the gag order,” where “[t]he matters suppressed are matters that have
already received press coverage,” including a “scurrilous” rumor about a murder plot).

Nor does Defendant’s post hoc appeal to a generalized right to “privacy” even remotely
supply the “specific démonstration” of harm required to establish good cause. Global Material
Technologies, 133 F.Supp.3d at 1084. Indeed, as Intervenors next show, Defendant’s public figure
status, the undeniable (and undenied) public interest in this case, his appearance on national
television to discuss the case, and his counsel’s statements and actions, all preclude any reliance on
“privacy” interests to sustain the Sealing Order.,

D. Defendant Has No Legitimate Right to Privacy in the Facts of His Case And
Its Dismissal, And If He Did, He Waived It,

Defendant argues that his “right to privacy” justifies the Sealing Order and the effect it is
having, to bar disclosure of records bearing on his case and the SAO’s decision to dismiss it. (See
Resp. at 9-11.) Defendant’s position is meritless.

Defendant’s purported privacy concerns ignore the reality of this case. Ie is quite clearly
not “just like any other citizen” (Resp. at 10); he is admittedly a “public figure and there is a
tremendous amount of public interest in this case” (id. at 11), an understatement to be sure. Heis a
celebrity at the center of one of the most explosive controversies this City has witnessed in recent

years. Under Ilinois law, the right of privacy is severely limited in matters of public interest or
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involving public figures. See, e.g., Buzinski v. Dodll Co., 31 IlL. App. 2d 191, 194-95 (1961);
Adre.ani v. Hansen, 80 TIl. App. 3d 726, 730 (1980) (individual “in the midst of [a] public
controversy” with city could not claim privacy right).

In terms equally applicable here, the Illinois Supreme Court held “the plaintiff did not have
a legally protected right of privacy,” in view of “the liberty of expression constitutionally assured
in a matter of public interest, as the one here; the enduring public attention to the plaintiff's crime
and prosecution, which remain an American cause celebre; and the plaintiff's consequent and
continuing status as a public figure.” Leopold v. Levin, 45 1Il. 2d 434, 441 (1970) (emphasis
added); see also Restatement (Second) of Torts, § 652D, com. (d) (under commoﬁ law and
constitution, “[wlhen the subject-matter of the publicity is of legitimate public concern, there is no
invasion of privacy”) (emphasis added).'®

Likewise, in a good éause analysis, “privacy interests are diminished when the party seeking
protection is a public person subject to legitimate public scrutiny,” Pansy, 23 F.3d at 787. “If a
settlement agreement”—or, as here, a decision not to prosecute—“involves issues or parties of a
- public nature, and involves matters of legitimate public concern, that should be a factor weighing
against entering or maintaining an order of confidentiality.” /d. at 788.

Assertions of privacy ring particularly hollow where, as here, the subject matter of the
controversy also bears on the performance of public officials’ duties. “Since the ultimate
sovereign in this country is an informed citizenry, we must have information available of and about

public issues and about public figures upon which to make judgments as to public officials and

'8 The absurdity of Defendant’s position is reflected in his attempt to analogize to cases involving privacy
interests in medical treatment and financial records (Resp. at 12); of course, any such specific legitimate
privacy concerns are easily and routinely addressed by agencies responding to FOIA requests. As
Defendant himself points out (id. at 9-10), agencies can redact information that would be a truly
unwarranted invasion of privacy, i.e., social security numbers, medical records, bank account information,
etc.
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public programs.” Krauss v. Champaign News Gazette, Inc., 59 Ill. App. 3d 745, 747 (1978).
“The disclosure of information that bears on the public duties of public employees and officials
shall not be considered an inva.sion of personal privacy.” 5 ILCS 140/7(1)(c)."”

Additionally, as noted, Defendant’s team of attorneys has been making extensive
comments in the press about what the evidence purportedly .shows—yet here Defendant secks to
keep the public from actually seeing and understanding it. If Defendant is innocent, as he
maintains, h¢ has nothing to fear from transparency. And indeed, in response to City’s claim for
recovery of its expenses incurred in investigating Defendant’s claims, his lawyer, Mr. Geragos,
- threatened that if “you file a civil action against Mr. Smollett . . . we will demand the prompt
production of the entire investigation file in this matter, including the full discovery from the
criminal action” and “will seek to have all records and hearings on this maiter be open fo the
public.”13
In essence then, Defendant and his counsel argue that fhe record should be sealed—unless
disclosure . is tactically advantageous to them. Defendant cannot claim “transﬁarency for me but
not for thee”; by his counsel’s public statements about the evidence relating to his arrest, he has
- waived privacy or any other purported basis for preventing the public from seeing what the facts
actually are—and how they were evaluated by government officials.

So too, Defendant’s extended complaint in his opposition that he is the true victim and was
poorly served by the City and CPD (Resp. at 10-11) may or may not be true or good PR spin in the

court of public opinion, but it is legally irrelevant. Even if Defendant was in fact only a victim in

17 See also 5 ILCS 140/1 (“Pursuant to the fundamental philosophy of the American constitutional form
of government,” it is the “public policy of the State of Illinois that all persons are entitled to full and
complete information” regarding “the official acts and policies of those who represent them as public
officials and public employees™).

'8 Ex. 5 (Apr. 4, 2019 Letter from M. Geragos to E. Siskel, at 3).
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all this, it is not “necessary for an individual to actively seek publicity in order to be found to be in
the “public eye.”” Beresky v. Teschner, 64 11l. App. 3d 848, 855 ‘(1978). “People who do not desire
the limelight and do not deliberately choose a way of life or course of conduct calculated to thrust
them into it nevertheless have no l;:gal right to extinguish it if the experiences that have befallen
them are newsworthy, even if they would prefer that those experiences be kept private.” Haynes v.
Alfred A. Knopf, Inc., 8 F.3d 1222, 1232 (7th Cir. 1993). It can scarcely be said that Defendant has
sought to avoid the limelight'® and no question that he has “become a legitimate subject of public
interest . . . in other words, become ‘news.’” Restatement, § 652D, cmt. (f).

CONCLUSION

For all of these reasons, Media Intervenors respectfully request that the Sealing Order be

vacated entirely; it simply has no valid, let alone constitutionally permissible, basis.

Dated: May 7, 2019 Respectfully submitted,
(

By: f\\.

Natalie J. Spears - natalie.spears@dentons.com
Samue] Fifer - samuel. fifer@dentons.com

Gregory R. Naron - gregory.naron@dentons.com
Jacqueline A. Giannini - jacqui.giannini@dentons.com
Dentons US LLP, Firm No. 56309

233 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 5900

Chicago, lllinois 60606

Attorneys for Media Intervenors

e,
=

JRPS

H
@_; e ———
- \__\ s

1% See, e.g, “Jussic Smollett tells ABC News’ Robin Roberts he’s ‘pissed off” after vicious attack,” ABC
NEWS, Feb. 13, 2019, hitps://www.goodmorningamerica.com/culture/story/jussie-smollett-tells-abc-
news-robin-roberts-pissed-61047347
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, )}
) No. 19 CR 0310401
V8. )
) Hon. Steven G. Watkins
JUSSIE SMOLLETT )

NOTICE OF MOTION

To:  Patricia Holmes (pholmes{@rshe-law.com)
Brian O’Connor Watson (bwatson{rshe-law.com)
Raley Safer Holmes & Cancila, LLP.
70 West Madison Street, Suite 2900
Chicago, Illinois 60602

Natalie J, Spears (natalie.spears@@dentons.com)
Samuel Fifer (samuel fifer@dentons.com)

Gregory Naron (gregory.naron{@dentons,com)
Jacqueline A. Giannini (jacqui.giannini@dentons.com)
Dentons US LLP

233 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 5900

Chicago, IL. 60606

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on Thurs&ay, May 9, 2019, at 10:00 a.m., 1 will appear
before The Honorable Steven G. Watkins in Courtroom 304, at the Circuit Court of Cook
County, Criminal Division, and present the attached Motion which is hereby served upon you.

KIMBERLY M. FOXX
State’s Attorney of Cook County

By:  /s/ Cathy McNeil Stein
Cathy McNeil Stein
Assistant State’s Attorney
Chief, Civil Actions Bureau
500 Richard J. Daley Center
Chicago, Illinois 60602
(312) 603-5365

e

Foe




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Cathy McNeil Stein, Assistant State's- Attorney, hereby certify that I caused an. exact
copy of the above notice, together with the document referenced herein, to be sent via email to
counsel of record on April 30, 2019 before 5:00 p.m.

8/ Cathy McNeil Stein
Cathy McNeil Stein, ASA




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, )
) No. 19 CR 03104
vs. )
) Hon, Steven G, Watkins
JUSSIE SMOLLETT ) ;
£
COOK COUNTY STATE’S ATTORNEY’S e

' UNOPPOSED MOTION TO MODIFY THE SEALING ORDER

The Cook County State’s Attorney, KIMBERLY M. FOXX (the “State’s Attorney™),
respectfully moves this Court, pursuant to Section 2-1203 of the Illinois Code of Civil Procedure

(735 ILCS 5/2~1203) and Section 5.2(g}(5)(K) of the Criminal Identification Act (20 ILCS
R e

MM""M

2630/5.2(g)(5)K)) (“Sealing Statute™), to mg@i{y the Order for Immediate Sealing of Criminal
[ o

Records entered 61 March 26, 2019 (“Sealing Order™), for the limited purpose of allowing the

Cook County Office of the Independent Inspector General (“OIIG”) to review certain sealed
records in the possession of the State’s Attorney’s Office and‘ the Clerk of the Circuit Court of
Cook County, The Defendant, Jussie Smollett, has no objection to this motion. In support of
this motion, the State’s Attorney states as follows:

1, On March 26, 2019, upon the dismissal of charges in this case, Defendant moved,
pursuant to 20 ILCS 2630/5.2(g), for an immediate seal in this case. The Court granted

Defendant’s motion and entered the Sealing Order.

2. Criminal records relating to the Defendant that are maintained by the State’s
Attorney’s Office and the Clerk of the Circuit Court are sealed pursuant to the Sealing Order.
3. Under 20 ILCS 2630/5.2(a)(1)XK), “seal” means “to physically and electronically

maintain the records, unless the records would otherwise be destroyed due to age, but to make

" A copy of the Sealing Order is attached hereto as Ex. A.




the records unavailable without a court order, subject to the exceptions in Sections 12 and 13 of
this Act.” (Emphasis added.) Thus, implicit in the Sealing Statute is the notion that a court may
enter an order modifying the Sealing Order.,

4, On April 10, 2019, the State’s Attorney requested that the OIIG conduct a review
of the State’s Attorney’s handling of this case. (4/11/19 letter from Patrick M. Blanchard,
Inspector General, attached hereto as Ex. B),

5. The OIIG subsequently requested access to the State’s Attomey’s records and
files in relation to this case in order to properly conduct its investigation. In order to ensure that
the file is complete, the State’s Attorney requests that the OIIG also be. given access to the file of
the Clerk of the Circuit Court,

6. The State’s Attorney is not requesting the unsealing of any documents related to
any grand jury convened in connection with this matter.

7. Throughout the Criminal Identification Act (20 ILCS 2630/, ef seq.), it is evident
that “good cause” is the standard for lifting or modifying a sealing order. See 20 ILCS
2630/5.2(b)(4), (b)(5), (D)(9)(A)(), ()(S)B)(i), (d)O)B-3)(ii), (e), (e-5), (e-6).

8. Here, good cause exists to allow the OIIG to review the criminal file in this case.
The ability to examine the files maintained by the State’s Attorney’s Office and the Clerk of the
Circuit Court is fundamental to the OIIG’s ability to review the handling of this matter so as to
ensure the integrity of the prosecutorial process.

0. Further, all sealed records are “subject to inspection and use by the c;)urt and
inspection and vse by law enforcement agencies and State’s Attorneys or other prosecutors in

cafrying out the duties of their offices.” 20 ILCS 2630/13(b). Under this section, the State’s




Attorney’s Office may continue to access to its own files that may be subject to the Sealing
Order in order to carry out the duties of the office.

10.  Modifying the sealing order for this limited purpose is consistent with the
exception to sealing in 20 ILCS 2630/13(b) for the .State’s Attorney and “law enforcement
agencies.” Thus, allowing the OIIG to inspect the State’s Attorney’s files and records in relation
to this case, including those records subject to the Sealing Order, is consistent with both the text
and the spirit of the statute.

WHEREFORE, the Cook County State’s Attorney, KIMBERLY M. FOXX, respectfully
requests that this Court modify the Sealing Order, pursuant to 20 ILCS 2630/5.2(g)(5)(K), for the
limited purpose of granting the Cook County Office of the Independent Inspector General access

to any and all records and files that are subject to said Sealing Order belonging to or originating

with:
(a) The Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office, except any records related to any grand
_ jury convened in this matter; and
(b) The Clerk of the Circuit Court of Cook County.
Date: April 30, 2019 Respectfully submitted,

KIMBERLY M. FOXX
State’s Attorney of Cook County

By:

Cathy McNeil Stein

Assistant State’s Attorney

Chief, Civil Actions Bureau

500 Richard J. Daley Center
Chicago, lilinois 60602

(312) 603-5365

cathvmeneil steinf@cookcountyil.gov
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A Prepared by: ATl o A B auung Yot A,

Order forlmmedmte Sealing of Criminal Records i} (11/13!17) CCCR N34l

IN THE CIRCUIT C‘OURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

. PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

o ' Case PR R Ry ed
andfor  {myrteiefn, 3710 88T )
A Municipal Corporation, § Ticket ' '
‘Numbers
Y.
SUARSE L M g T : , k ; :
“ \ = Defendant/Petitioner ' Date of Birth: : 12"' } RS

Qender: & Male O Female
Race: Hhude

ORDER FOR IMMEDIATE SEALING OF CRIMINAL RECORDS

_ This Court, baving considered all pleadings and any objections thereto, and after an evidentiary hearing,

ORDERS THAT: |
I. Defendant/Petitioner’s Petition for Immediate Sealing of Criminal Records is GRANTED. |
2. The IHlinois State Police, the above An‘estmg Agency, ' ' ,

the Chlcago Police Department, and the Clerk of the Circuit Court shall seal the arrest ﬁrom its records, if
any, w1th1n sixty (60) days of the date of service of this order. T is further directed that the ‘Arresting Agen-
"¢y shall request the return of all identification materials from any other repositories and custodians of statis-

tics that were previously notified of this érrest(s) by the Arresting Agency.

"3, Inaccordance with the law, orders of protection, civil no contact orders, and civil no contact stalking orders -

shall not _be sealed,

Cook County Attorney Code: otz
Name; BV &% S AFEL wdonat®%, 9 Cankeind 00

Address: 1% bed A dd woed BT TG0 Dated: "ji = =
City/State/Zip:_C.¥e At | 1 (Hoew'4 VR
udgel" -v"‘"

Telcphone( 5173, } e b § B AN (-2,\1,)%!}«-}},?1&
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DOROTHY BROWN, CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY ILLINOIS
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THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OFFICE OF THE INDEPENDENT INSPECTOR GENERAL

TONI PRECKWINKLE PATRICK M, BLANCHARD

PRESIDENT INSPECTOR GENERAL
BRANDONJOHNSON 1% Dist, PETERN.SHYTSTRI e 6% West Washington Street
DENNIS DEER ™ Disw BRIDGET GAINER 1"t Suite 1160
BILLLOWRY 3% Dism JOHNP.DALEY L™ DisT: L
STANLEYMOORE 4 Dis, BRIDGETDEGNEN 177 Dt Chicago, IHinois 60602
DEBORAHSIMS 5% DIsT. LARRYSUFFREDIN 13 pam, PHONE (312) 603-03508
DONNAMILLER 6™ pist, SCOTTR ARIFTON 14" s PAX (312} 603-9948
AEMAEANAYA T syt KEVINE, MORRISON 157 fsr:
LUIS ARROYOJR, 8% Dist, JEFEREY R TODULSKE 15 s,

SEAN M.MORRISON 17 Dier.,

April 11,2019

Confidential Via Electrovic Mail

Honorable Toni Preckwinkle
and Honorable Members of the Cook County
Board of Commissioners

118 North Clark Street

Chicago, Illinois 60602

Re: OIIG SAQ Review
Dear President Preckwinkle and Members of the Board of Commissioners:

This letter is written to inform you that this office has received a request by State’s Attorney
Kim Foxx to conduct an Office of the Independent Inspector General (OIIG) review of the
circumstances surrounding the resolution of criminal charges formerly pending against Jussie
Smollet. As you may recall, the Office of the Cook County State’s Attorney (SAQ) has previously
objected to the exercise of jurisdiction by this office over the SAQ in relation to other unrelated
issues. State’s Attorney Foxx has stated that her office will cooperate during the course of this
review notwithstanding prior objections to OIG jurisdiction. Accordingly, this office will proceed
with this review in accordance with the terms of the Independent Inspector General Ordinance,
Cook County, Iil., Ordinances 07-0-52 (2007).

Thank you for your time and attention to these issues, Should you have any questions or
wish to discuss this letter further, please do not hesitate to contact me. )

Very truly yours,

Abre g s |
Patrick M. Blanchard
Independent Inspector General

cc: . Honorable Kim Foxx
Ms. Lanetta Haynes Turner, Chief of Staff, Office of the President
Ms. Laura Lechowicz Felicione, Special Legal Counsel to the President

'z‘: PAKTED ON RECYQLED PAREN




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEC ¥ OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
No. 19 CR 0310401

Hon. Steven G. Watlkins

)
)
¥8, )
)
JUSSIE SMOLLETT )

NOTICE OF MOTION

To:  Patricia Holmes (pholmest@rshe-law.com) o)
Brian O’ Connor Watson (bwatson{rshe-law.com)
Raley Safer Holmes & Cancila, LLP.
70 West Madison Street, Suite 2900
Chicago, Illinois 60602

Natalie J. Spears (natalie.spears@dentons.com)
Samuel Fifer (samuel fifer@dentons.com)

Gregory Naron (gregory.naron{@dentons.com)
Jacqueline A. Giannini (jacqui.giannini@dentons.com)
Dentons US LLP

233 8. Wacker Drive, Suite 53900

Chicago, IL 60606

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on Thursday, May 9, 2019, at 10:00 a.m., I will appear
before The Honorable Steven G. Watkiﬁs in Courtroom 304, at the Circuit Court of Coock
County, Criminal Division, and present the attached Motioh which is hereby served upon you.

KIMBERLY M. FOXX
State’s Attorney of Cook County

By:  /s/ Cathy McNeil Stein
Cathy McNeil Stein
Assistant State’s Attorney
Chief, Civil Actions Bureau
500 Richard J. Daley Center
Chicago, Illinois 60602
(312) 603-5365




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Cathy McNeil Stein, Assistant State's Attorney, hereby certify that [ caused an exact
copy of the above notice, together with the document referenced herein, to be sent via email to
counsel of record on April 30, 2019 before 5:00 p.m.

s/ Cathy Mc:Neil Stein
Cathy McNeil Stein, ASA




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, )
) No. 19 CR 03104
Vs, ) _ S
) Hon. Steven G. Watkins 70
JUSSIE SMOLLETT )

02

COOK COUNTY STATE’S ATTORNEY’S
UNOPPOSED MOTION TO MODIFY THE SEALING ORDER

The Coék County State’s Attorney, KIMBERLY M. FOXX (the “State’s Attorney™),
respectfully moves this Court, pursuant to Section 2-1203 of the Illinois Code of Civil Procedure
(735 1LCS 5/2-1203) and Section 5.2(g)(5}K) of tﬁe Criminal Identification Act (20 ILCS
2630/5.2(g)(5)(K)) (“Sealing Statute™), to modify the Order for Immediate Sealing of Criminal
Records entered on March 26, 2019 (“Sealing Order”),’ for the limited purpose of allowing the
Cook County Office of the Independent Inspector General (“OIIG™) to review certain sealed
records in the possession of the State’s Attorney’s Office and the Clerk of the Circuit Court of
Cook County. The Defendant, Jussie Smollett, has no objection to this motion. In support of
this motion, the State’s Attorney states as follows:

1. On March 26, 2019, upon the dismissal of charges in this case, Defendant moved,
pursuant to 20 ILCS 2630/5.2(g), for an immediate seal in this case. The Court granted
Defendant’s motion and entered the Sealing Order.

2. -Criminal records relating to the Defendant that are maintained by the State’s
Attorney’s Office and the Clerk of the Circuit Court are sealed pursuant to the Sealing Order.

3. Under 20 ILCS 2630/5.2(a)(1X(K), “seal” means “to physicaily and electronically

maintain the records, unless the records would otherwise be destroyed due to age, but to make

! A copy of the Sealing Order is attached hereto as Ex. A.




the records unavailable without a cburt order, subject to the exceptions in Sections 12 and 13 of
this Act.” (Emphasis added.) Thus, implicit in the Sealing Statute is the noﬁon that a court may
enter an order modifying the Sealing Order.

4. On April 10, 2019, the State’s Attorney requested that the OIIG conduct a review
of the State’s Aftorney’s handling of this case. (4/11/19 letter from Patrick M. B}anchara,
Inspector General, attached hereto as Ex. B).

5. The OIIG subsequently requested access to the State’s Attorney’s records and
files in relation to this case in order to properly conduct its investigation. In order to ensure that

the file is complete, the State’s Attorney requests that the OIIG also be given access to the file of
the Clerk of the Circuit Court.

6. The State’s Attorney is not requesting the unsealing of any documents related to
any grand jury convened in connection with this matter.

7. Throughout the Criminal Identification Act (20 ILCS 2630/, et seq.), it is evident
that “good cause” is the standard for ‘iifting or modifying a sealing order. See 20 ILCS
2630/5.2(b)(4), (b)(3), (O A1), ()O)(B)(ii), ()9 (B-5)(ii), (e), (e-5), (e-6).

8. Here, good cause exists to allow the OIIG to review the criminal file in this case.
The ability. to examine the files maintained by the State’s Attorney’s Office and the Clerk of the
Circuit Court is fundamental to the OlIG’s ability to review the handling of this matter so as to
ensure the integrity of the prosecutorial process.

9. Further, all sealed records are “subject to inspection and use by the court and
inspection and use by law enforcement agencies and State’s Attorneys or other prosecutors in

carrying out the duties of their offices.” 20 ILCS 2630/13(b). Under this section, the State’s




Attorney’s Office may continue to access to its oﬁm files that may be subject to the Sealing
Order in order to carry out the duties of the office.

10.  Modifying the sealing order for this limited purpose is consistent with the
exception fo sealing in 20 ILCS 2630/13(b) for the State’s Attorney and “law enforcement
agencies.” Thus, allowing the OIIG to inspect the State’s Attorney’s files and records in relation
to this case, including those records subject to the Sealing Order, is consistent with both the text
and the spirit of the statute.

WHEREFORE, the Cook County State’s Attorney, KIMBERLY M. FOXX, respectfully
requests that this Court modify the Sealing Order, pursuant to 20 IL.CS 2630/5.2(g)(5)}K), for the
limited purpose of granting the Cook County Office of the Independent Inspector General access

to any and all records and files that are subject to said Sealing Order belonging to or originating

with:
(a) The Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office, except any records related to any grand
jury convened in this matter; and
{b) The Clerk of the Circuit Court of Cook County.
Date: April 30, 2019 ~ Respectfully submitted,

KIMBERLY M. FOXX
State’s Attorney of Cook County

By:

Cathy McNeil Stein

Assistant State’s Attorney

Chief, Civil Actions Bureau

500 Richard I. Daley Center
Chicago, llinois 60602

(312) 603-5365
cathymeneil.stein@cookcountyil.gov







Order for Immediate Sealing of Criminal Recoxds (/1317 CCCRN341
' 1IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
'PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS | |

or ' Case P9 R g e
and/or (raurdcie A, 1900} GREHioM }
A Municipal Corporation, § Ticket - ‘
‘Numbers
Yo
gy WEEIE HMGLLE] _Ffm ' ‘ Date of Birth: __( {21 {195

Defendant/Petitioner -
. Gender: B Male 00 Female -

Race: fhude ¥,

A ORDER FOR IMMEDIATE SEALING OF CRIMINAL RECORDS
This Court, having considered all pleadings and 'any objections thereto, and after an evidentiary hearing,

ORDERS THAT: ,
1. Defendant/Petitioner’s Petition for Immediate Sealing of Crumnal Records is GRANTED

2. The I]lmols State Police, the above Arrestmg Agency, - : ,
the Chlcago Police Department, and the Clerk of the Circuit Court shall 'seal the arrest from its records, if
any, w1thm sixty (60) days of the date of service of this order, It is further directed that the An"estmg Agen-

ey shall request the retirn of all identification materials from any other repositories and custodians of statls-
tics that were prevxously notified of this arrest(s) by the Arresting Agency

3, In accordance with the law, orders of protection, ctvil no contact orders, and civil no contact stalking orders

shall not‘be sealed.

'Prgparéd by: Fivedi A FiZopany Yhob A,

Cook County A-ttQI‘HCY.Code: (g0 % ENTERED%

Name; 2t b €% -“{.,&-FE{&&. MRS 9 CAmord P rff R,

Address: 15 \rd A gen S 2Tu0 Dated: 1 s
City/State/Zip: _Cottie Ma-d | 14, (o™ 2 4 th '\ /’ ﬁ 7

1
Telephone: (g, D oy }w‘\s Yol £2 0% (%m}*ﬁr ?}«4‘, ?1%‘15}#/’ mﬂ/‘ ,. ﬁ' z"«g’( Jo g“f%
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])OROTHY BROWN, CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY ILLINOIS
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OFFICE OF THE INDEPENDENT INSPECTOR GENERAL

TONI PRECKWINKLE PATRICK M, BLANCHARD

PRESIDENT INSPECTOR GENERAL
17 Dist. PETER N, SILVESTRE 9 Disp. :
20 PisT, BRIDGEY GAINER 207 st 69 West;ﬁ?ts? E%tém Street
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8" DisT. JEFFREY R. TOBOLSKE 16 s

SEAN M. MORRISON 197 s

April 11, 2019

Confidential Via Electronic Muail

Honorable Toni Preckwinkle :
and Honorable Members of the Cook County
Board of Commissionets

118 North Clark Street

Chicago, Illinois 60602

Re: OHIG SAO Review

Dear President Preckwinkle and Members of the Board of Commissioners:

This [etter is written to inform you that this office has received a request by State’s Attorney

Kim Foxx to conduct an Office of the Independent Inspector General (OIIG) review of the
circumstances surrounding the resolution of criminal charges formerly pending against Jussie
Smollet. As you may recall, the Office of the Cook County State’s Attorney (SAQ) has previously
objected to the exercise of jurisdiction by this office over the SAO in relation to other unrelated
issues. State’s Attorney Foxx has stated that her office will cooperate during the course of this
review notwithstanding prior objections to OIIG jurisdiction. Accordingly, this office will proceed
with this review in accordance with the terms of the Independent Inspector General Ordinance,
Cook County, Ill., Ordinances 07-0-52 (2007).

Thank you for your time and attention to these issues. Should you have any questions or

wish to discuss this letter further, please do not hesitate to contact me.

cCl

Very truly yours,

A b /f(.f,_kq._(
Patrick M, Blanchard
Independent Inspector General

Honorable Kim Foxx
Ms, Lanetta Haynes Turner, Chief of Staff, Office of the President
Ms. Laura Lechowicz Felicione, Special Legal Counsel to the President

a‘ PRLITED D REQYOLED PAPER




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, No. 19 CR 3104 : 3 L

A Hon. Steven G. Watkins

JUSSIE SMOLLETT

MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN RESPONSE TO MEDIA INTERVENORS'
EMERGENCY MOTION TO INTERVENE FOR PURPOSES OF

OBJECTING TO AND VACATING THE SEALING ORDER

Jussie Smollett, by his attorneys, Geragos & Geragos, APC, specially appears to
oppose the Media Intervenors' Emergency Motion to Intervene for Purposes of Objecting
to and Vacating the Sealing Order.

Factnal Background

1. On March 7, 2019, a felony indictment was filed against Mr. Smollett in the
Circuit Court of Cook County, case number 19 CR 3104, alleging 16 counts of disorderly
conduct, namely filing a false police report in violation of Chapter 720, Act 5, Section 26-
1(a)(4) of the Illinois Compiled Statutes Act of 1992 as amended.

2. On March 12, 2019, the parties appeared in Court for a hearing on the rﬁedia's
rgquesf for extended media coverage. In light of the substantial misinformation in the case,
the defense stated t.hat it had no oi)jection to the media's request and would welcome
cameras into the courtroom so the media and the public could see the actual evidence, and

lack thereof, against Mr. Smollett.




3. On March 26, 2019, the State Attorney's Office moved to nolle pros all 16
céunts in the Indictment. The Court granted the motion and dismissed the case against M.
Smollett. The Court also ordered the records in this matter be immediately sealed.’

4, On March 27, 2019, Media Intervenors Chicago Tribune Company, LLC,
Cable News Network, Inc., ABC News and WLS Television, Inc., NBC News, a division
of NBCUniversal Media, LLC, CBS Broadcasting, Inc., on behalf of CBS News and
WBBM-TV, The Associafed Press, and Univision Communications Inc., representatives
of the local and national news media, filed an Emergency Motion of News Organizations
to Intervene for Purposes of Objecting to Expedited Destruction of Public Records
Pursuant to Expungement Order. |

.5. On April 1, 2019, Media Intervenors Chicago Tribune Company, LLC, Cable
News Network, Inc., ABC News and WLS Television, Inc., NBC News, a division of
NBCUniversal Media, LL.C, CBS Broadcasting, Inc., on behalf of CBS News and WBBM-
TV, WGN Continental Broadcasting Company,l LLC, The Associated Press, The New
York Times Company, Univision Communications Inc., Fox Television Stations, LLC,

The Hollywood Reporter, LLC, National Public Radio, Inc. and WBEZ, Sun-Times Media,

! The Criminal Identification Act authorized the immediate sealing of the records in this -
case. See 20 ILCS 2630/ 5.2(g). The Court, State’s Attorney, and Mr. Smollett complied fully with
the law, and neither the State’s Attorney, the Department of State Police, the arresting agency, nor
the chief legal officer of the City of Chicago (the unit of local government effecting the arrest) has
objected to the sealing order or moved to vacate, modify, or reconsider the sealing order. See 20
IL.CS 2630/5.2(g)(5)(K); 20 ILCS 2630/5.2(b)}(d)(5). Furthermore, an order granting an immediate
sealing petition shall not be considered void because it fails to comply with the provisions of 20
ILCS 2630/5 or because of an error asserted in a motion to vacate, modify, or reconsider. See 20
ILCS 2630/5.2(g)(5)L).




LLC, Gannett Satellite Information Network, LLC, on behalf of USA Today, and Dow
Jones & Company, publisher of The Wall Street Journal (hereafter "Media Intervenors")
filed an Emergency Motion to Intervene for Purpdses of Objecting to and Vacating the
Sealing Order, in which they seek leave to intervene in this action and move the Court to
reconsider and vacate its March 26, 2019 sealing order (hereafter (“Motion”).

6. On March 28 and April 2, 2019, the parties appeared before the Court to
address the_. motions which had been filed. The Court found that the motion filed on March
27, 2019 was moot, since no petition for an expungement had been filed by Mr. Smollett.
As to the motion filed on April 1, 2019, the Court found there was no emergeﬁcy
necessitating a decision that day and seta 'brieﬁng schedule on the Motion.

7. Pursuant to the Court's briefing schedule, Mr. Smollett, through his attorneys,
" hereby submits his Memorandum of Law in opposition to the Media Intervenors' Motion.
As explained below, the media does not have a presumptive right of access to the records
it seeks, namely pretrial documents and discovery which have not been admitted into
evidence apd which will not be admitted at trial or at another proceeding in this matter,
since the case against Mr. Smollett has been dismissed. As for the court file, the Media
Intervenors have failed to establish good cause, let alone a compelling reason, to unseal
records which were open to the public for inspection and copying since the inception of
this case.

8. Furthermore, since the defense only received a small portion of the discovery
prior to the dismissal of the charges and sealing of the records, Mr. Smollett does not even

know the universe of documents which constitutes the discovery in this case, which likely
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includes confidential médical and financial information, and other private communications
unrelated to the incident, obtained by the Chicago Police Department, the Cook County
State Attorney's Office, and/or other agencies. Thus, even if the media had a presumptive
right of access to the discovery in this case, such right is outweighed by Mr. Smollett's right
to privacy.

Argument

A. The Media Does Not Have a Presumptive Right of Access to the Records It
Seeks. -

The Supreme Court of Illinois haé recognized that the first amendment to the United
States Constitution embodies a public right of access to court records.? See Skolnick v.
Altheimer & Gray, 191 111.2d 214, 231--32, 246 Ill.Dec. 324, 730 N.E.2d 4, 16 (2000); see
also LaGrone, 361 Il'l.App.3d at 535, 297 Ill.Dec. 655, 838 N.E.2d at 145 (recognizing a
right of access to criminal proceedings in general). The constitutional presumption applies
to court proceedings and records (1) which have been historically open to the public; and
(2) which have a purpose and function that would be furthered by disclosure. Skolnick, 191

“I11.2d at 232, 246 Hl.Dec. 324, 730 N.E.2d 4; Pelo, 384 11 App.3d at 780, 323 Iil.Dec. 648,

2 In addition to the constitutional right of access, the Supreme Court of Illinois recognizes a
“parallel common-law right of access.” Pelo, 384 Ill. App.3d at 780, 323 Tll.Dec. 648, 894 N.E.2d
at 418-19 (citing Skolnick, 191 111.2d at 230, 246 Ill.Dec. 324, 730 N.E.2d at 15). The state
legislature has also created a statutory right of access as part of the Clerks of Courts Act. See 705
ILCS 105/16(6). Like the first amendment right of access, the common-law and statutory rights of
access to judicial records are not absolute. See Skolnick, 191 111.2d at 231, 246 Ill.Dec. 324, 730
N.E.2d 4. And while the common-law and statutory rights have different sources, the Supreme
Court of Illinois has held they are “parallel” to the first amendment presumption and it has analyzed
the three presumptions together, See Skolnick, 191 I11.2d at 231-33, 246 Ill.Dec. 324, 730 N.E.2d
at 16-17. We will do the same here.




894 N.E.2d 415; Press—FEnterprise Co. v. Superior Court of California, 478 U.S. 1, 8, 106
S.Ct. 2735, 2740, 92 L.Ed.2d 1, 10 (1986) (Press—FEnterprise II).

The determination of whether a first amendment right of access attaches to a
particular record requires a two-step process under what is typically known as the
“experience and logic test.” Press-Enterprise II, 478 U.S. at 9-10, 106 S.Ct. 2735 (1986);
see also Skolnick, 191 111.2d at 232, 246 Ill.Dec. 324, 730 N.E.2d 4. First, under the
“experience” prong, the court must consider whether the document is one that has
historically been open to the press and general public. Press-Enterprise II, 478 U.S. at 8,
106 S.Ct. 2735. Second, under the “logic” prong, the court must consider whether public
access to the document plays a significant positive role in the functioning of the particular
judicial process in question. Id.

In People v. Pelo, 384 TiL, App. 3d 776, 894 N.E.2d 415 (2008), a newspaper and
reporter filed a petition to intervene and gain access to an evidence deposition. in a criminal
case. In holding that the media did not have a presumptive constitutional, common-law,
or statutory right of access, the court explained:

the evidence deposition at issue here is a “judicial record” or part of the

“criminal proceeding itself” to which the public has a constitutional,

common-law, or statutory right of access. As stated by the trial court, the

unedited evidence deposition at issue here has not been submitted into
evidence and has not been played in open court.

Id at 781.
In People v. Kelly, 397 11l. App. 3d 232, 259, 9_21'N.E.2d 333, 358 (2009), members

of the media petitioned to intervene in high-profile child pornography prosecution and

moved to obtain access to certain closed pretrial proceedings and records. After the court

-5-




denied the motion for access, the media members appealed. The appellate court held that
the trial court did not abuse its discretion in denying access to closed proceedings and
records, explaining that

the presumption did not attach to the hearings, to the State's motion

concerning potential evidence, to the State's discovery, or to the parties’

witness lists. As in Pelo, the media intervenors did not have a right to a

potential exhibit that had not yet been introduced into evidence; similarly, in

the case at bar, the media intervenors did not have a right to discovery, other

crimes' evidence, or a list of witnesses, because none of it had been

introduced into evidence.
Id. at 259 (citing Pelo, 384 I1l. App. 3d at 782-83).

More recently, in People v. Zimmerman, 2018 IL 122261, 9§ 32, media intervenors
filed a request to open for public inspection defendant's motions in limine filed under seal
in a murder prosecutibn. In reversing the appellate court's order that the trial court erred
in finding that the “presumption of access” did not attach to the motions, the Supreme Court
of Ilinois held that both the “experience” and “logic” prongs weighed against a first
amendment right of access. The court began by noting that "there is no tradition of access
to discovery material not yet admitted at trial" and recognizing that "[i]nformation that
surfaces during pretrial discovery may be unrelated, or only tangentially related, to the
underlying cause." Id. § 33 (citing Seattle Times Co. v. Rhinehart, 467 U.S. 20, 33, 104
S.Ct. 2199, 81 L.Ed.2d 17 (1984)). The court further noted that “[wlhether in a civil or
criminal case, discovery is 'essentially a private process because the litigants and the courts
assume that the sole purpose of discovery is to assist in trial preparation.” Id. (quoting

Courier-Journal, Inc. v. McDonald-Burkman, 298 S.W.3d 846, 848 (Ky. 2009)). The court

explained that because documents themselves do contain any evidentiary value until
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admitted into evidence at trial or other proceedings, "[pJublic access to such material would
therefore not play a significant role in the administration of justice in the case." Id. (quoting
Courier-Journal, supra, 298 W. 3d at 849). Therefore, as to the “experiénce” prong, the
court held that “restraints placed on discovered, but not yet admitted, information are not
a restriction on a traditionally public source of information.” Id. (quoting Seattle Times,
supra, 467 U.S. at 33) (internal quotation marks omitted).

The court also found that the “logic” prong weighed against a first amendment right
of access. The court stated that the intervenors had not provided any authority to support
a finding that public access to the type of pretrial discovery at issue in Zimmerman would
play a significant positive role in the judicial process. /d., §36. The court explained that
"[t]he discovery process often generates a significant amount of irrelevant and unreliable
material that plays no role in the criminal proceeding" and that such material "generaily
does not become public because there is no intention of offering it into evidence." /Id.
Thus, the court concluded that the constitutional, common-law, or statutory presumption
of access did not attach to defendant's motions in this case. Id., § 38. See also In re Gee,
2010 IL App (4th) 100275, 956 N.E.2d 460 (holding that presumption of public access did
not attach to sealed search warrant affidavit and inventory in prosecution for murder of a
family where the warrant application process had not been historically open to thé public).

As explained in the cases above, there is no presumptive'right of access to pretrial
discovery, including documents énd records which have not been introduced into evidence
or otherwise shown in open court. And hefe, like in Zimmerman, supra, both the

“experience” and “logic” prongs weigh against a right of access to the records in question.

7.




Since the case against Mr. Smollett has been dismissed, the information contained in the
discovery will .not be admitted at trial or at another proceeding in this matter. Thus, it is
not subject to a tradition of access.

To the extent the Media Intervenors are seeking access to the court records, they
have failed to establish good cause to unseal such records. Indeed, the court file was open
to the public for copying and inspection from the inception of this case until the record was
sealed on March 26, 2019. And the media has access to the only documents filed in relation
to the dismissal of the case, which are the sealing order and the transcript of the March 26,
2019 hearing, both of which the Media Intervenors possess and attach as exhibits to their
Motion.

Furthermore, the_Media Intervenors have not provided any authority to support a
finding that public access to the records in question would play a significant positive role
in the judicial process, since the case against Mr. Smollett has been dismissed. |

Because the media does not have a presumptive right of access to the records it
seeks, the inquiry should end here without a balancing of competing interests. See, e.g., In
re Gee, 2010 IL App (4th) 100275; ¢ 26, 956 N.E.2d 460, 464 ("If the presumption
[of access applied to the court proceedings and records] did not apply, our analysis ends

there.").

B. Even if There Was a Presumptive Right of Access, It Is Outweighed in this
Case by Mr. Smoliett's Interest in Privacy.

Even where the media has a presumptive right of access, the right is not absolute,

and the court has the supervisory power to deny access at its discretion where the court




files may become a vehicle for improper purposes. Skolnick, 191 I11.2d at 231, 246 [11.Dec.
324, 730 N.E.2d at 16. Specifically, the presumpti\}e right of access can be rebutted by
demonstrating that suppression of the public record is necessary to protect a higher value
and is narrowly tailored to serve that interest. Skolnick, 191 111.2d at 232, 246 111.Dec. 324,
730 N.E.2d at 16. Here, even if the media had a presumptive right of access, which it does
not, that right would be outweighed by Mr. Smollett's right to privacy.

The Supreme Court of Tllinois has recognized a "right of privacy, a right many years
ago described in a limited fashion by Judge Cooley with utter simplicity as the right ‘to be
let alone.”" See Leopold v. Levin, 45 111.2d 434, 440-41, 259 N.E.2d 250 (1970). As the
court has explained, "[p]rivacy is one of the sensitive and necessary human values and
undeniably there are circumstances under which it should enjoy the protection of law.”
Id. Article 1, section 6, of the Illinois Constitution of 1970 also recognizes privacy rights,
and Article I, section 12, expressly recognizes a right to a remedy agai.nst all injuries to
privacy or reputation. See I1I. Const.1970, art. 1., §§ 6 & 12.

The right to privacy is also recognized and embodied in the Freedom of Information
Act ("FOIA"). Indeed, FOIA expressly exempts from disclosure investigatory records
compiled for law-enforcement purposes to the extent that production of such records
would, among other things, constitute an unwarranted invasion of privacy. See 5 ILCS
140/7(1)(¢). The Act defines “unwarranted invasion of personal privacy” as "the disclosure
of information that is highly personal or objectionable to a reasonable person and in which
the subject's right to privacy outweighs any legitimate pubiic interest in obtaining the

information.” .See id. If requested information falls within a per se exemption to FOIA,
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the court shall conduct no further inquiry and must uphold the .body's decision not to
disclose the information. See Chicago Tribune Co. v. Board of Educ. of City of Chicago,
App. 1 Dist.2002, 265 Ill.bec. 910, 332 Ill.App.3d 60, 773 N.E.2d 674, appeal denied 271
[11.Dec. 923, 201 111.2d 562, 786 N.E.2d 181; see, e.g., McGee v. Kelley, 2017 IL App (3d)
160324, 95 N.E.3d 1179 (where requester filed a complaint for injunctive or declaratory
relief against sheriff secking disclosure of records related .to his indictment and conviction
pursuant to FOIA, the court held that the release of unredacted police reports were exempt
from FOIA disclosure because they would constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal
privacy). |

On January 29, 2019, Mr. Smollett was the victim of a crime. Although he was later
charged as a defendant in this case, all 16 counts against him wére dismisséd only two and
a half weeks afte_r the indictment was filed. Since Mr. Smollett has not been convicted of
any crimes and is no longer charged with any crimes, he is entitled to the right of privacy
just like any other citizen.

While there have been allegations of "celebrity justice" or preferential treatment in
this case, in fact, Mr. Smollett has been treated far worse, not better, than your ordinary
citizen. Ifhe had been treated as an ordinary citizen, Mr. Smollett would likely never have
been charged with any crimes.® If he had been treated as an ordinary citizen, the Police

Superintendent and lead prosecutor would not have held press conferences detailing the

3 See, e.g., https://chicago.suntimes.com/news/woman-23-stabbed-by-robber-in-grant-park/
(23-year old Columbia College student who police say falsely reported a robbery and stabbing in
Grant Park has not been criminally charged). '
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alleged evidence against Mr. Smoilett before he ever stepped foot in a courtroom. If he
had been treated as an ordinary citizen, 16 separate counts would not have been alleged
against him for the same incident. If hé had been treated as an ordinary citizen, the Mayor
and Police Superintendent would not have publicly adjudged him guilty, after all charges
against him were dismissed by the State Attorney's Office. If he had been treated as an
ordinary citizen, the City of Chicago would not have promptly filed a civil lawsuit against
Mr. Smollett to try to recoup its investigative costs, when it was never proven that Mr.
Smollett filed a false police report or planned a hoax attack, as had been alleged. Finally,
if Mr. Smollett was being treated as an ordinary citizen, like the more than 3,000 other
citizens who had their records sealed or expunged under the law last year by this Court, the
media would not be attempting to intervene in this matter now and unseal his arrest and
other records, which were properly sealed upon the dismissal of all charges against him.
While we are cognizant that Mr, Smollett is a public figure and there is a tremendous
amount of public interest in this case, that does not change the fact that Mr. Smollett is a
crime victim who has always wanted to and still wants to maintain his privacy. Mr.
Smol]ett did not want to call the police following the January 29, 2019 nor did he want to
even go to the hospital. He specifically asked police officers who responded to the incident
to turn off their body éameras in an effort to maintain some degree of privacy. And now
that the charges against him have been fully dismissed, he would like to try to resume a
normal life without details about his private life being disclosed to the entire world,

particularly at a time when his physical safety is already in grave danger.
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Significantly, the defense only received a small portion of the discovery prior to the
dismissal of the charges and sealing of the records. Thus, Mr. Smollett does not even know
the universe of docufnents which constitute the record in this case, which likely include
confidential medical and financial information, as well as many other private
communications unrelated to the incident, obtained by the Chicago Police Department, the
Cook County State Attorney's Office, and/or other agencies. Thus, even if the media had
a presumptive right of access to the discovery in this case, such right is outweighed by Mr.
Smollett's right to privacy. See, e.g., Coy v. Washington Cty. Hosp. Dist., 372 1ll. App. 3d
1077, 1084, 866 N.E.2d 651, 658 (2007) ("[The circuit court properly determined that the
public's right of access . . . did not outweigh the compelling interest, as reflected in our
public policy, of the privacy rights of those individuals regarding their medical treatment
by Dr. Coy."); Lopez v. Fitzgerald, 76 ill. 2d 107, 1 1-7, 390 N.E.2d 835, 838 (1979)
("Financial récords are available only at certain times, in certain places, and as expressly
limited by the right to privacy."). Furthermore, contrary to the Media Intervenors' position,
disclosure in this case would actually be contrary to the public interest, as it will discourage
crime victims from filing reports and/or giving information to police.

Thus, even if a balancing of competing interests was required in this case, there are

compelling reasons not to unseal the records, which trump any public right of access to
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such information. Since the Media Intervenors have failed to establish that the records in

this case should be unsealed, their Motion should be denied.*

WHEREFORE, Jussie Smollett, by his attorneys, Geragos & Geragos, requests
that this Court deny the Media Intervenors' Emergency Motion to Intervene for Purposes
of Objecting to and Vacating the Sealing Order, and adopt the arguments of the State as to

the constitutionality of the Criminal Identification Act.

Dated: April 23, 2019 Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Mark J. Geragos

Mark J. Geragos, Rule 707 Admitted
Tina Glandian, Rule 707 Admitted
Geragos & Geragos, APC

644 South Figueroa Street

Los Angeles, CA 90017-3411
(213) 625-3900

&

Geragos & Geragos, APC

256 Sth Avenue

New York, NY 10010
mark@geragos.com
tina(@geragos.com

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned attorney certifies on April 23, 2019, these papers were served

to the attorneys of record.

Risa Lanier
Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office

4 In the event the Court is inclined to grant the Motion, in whole or in part, Mr. Smollett
respectfully requests that the Court first review in camera any records it intends to unseal to
determine whether any redactions are necessary to protect Mr. Smollett's safety and privacy.
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2650 S. California Avenue, 11D40
Chicago, IL. 60608
risa.lanier@cookcountyil.gov

Natalie J. Spears
Samuel Fifer
Jacqueline A, Giannini
Gregory Naron
Dentons US LLP, Firm No. 56309
233 8. Wacker Drive, Suite 5900
Chicago, Illinois 60606
natalie.spears@dentons.com
samuel.fifer@dentons.com
jacqui.giannini{@dentons.com
gregory.naronf@dentons.com

/s/ Brian O. Watson

Brian O. Watson
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) No. 19 CR 3104
) z .
vs. )  Hon. Steven G. Watkins
)
JUSSIE SMOLLETT )

This cause coming before the Court on the Media Intervenors' Emergency M&ion
to Intervene for Purposes of Objecting to and Vacating the Sealing Order,. in which they
seek leave to intervene in this action and move the Court to reconsider and vacate its March
26, 2019 sealing order (“Motion™), due notice having been given and the Court being fully
advised in the premises, [T IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Motion is denied. |

IT IS SO ORDERED.

ENTERED:

Circuit Court of Cook County
Criminal Division
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS |

People of the State of Hlinois ;
Plaintiff, ;

v ; No. 19 CR 0310401
Jussie Smollett , ;
Défpndant. 3

ORDER SETTING BRIEFING SCHEDULE AND HEARING DATE

This matter coming before the Court oh motion of MEDIA INTERVENORS’

EMERGENCY MOTION FOR PURPOSES OF OBJECTING TO AND VACATING THE
SEALING ORDER,

and the Court being fully advised on the premises:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:

1.

2.

Dated:

Response to the motion shall be filed on or before April 23, 2019.
Reply to the Response shall be filed on or before May 7, 2019.
Each party shall provide the Court a copy of its respective filing no later than the date of filing,

Status Hearing is set for May 9, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. in Courtroom 304, at which time the Court
will set a date for oral arguments.

Entered:

Judge
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, )
)
Plaintiff, )
) No. 19 CR 0310401
Vs, ) '
: ) Hon. Steven G. Watkins
JUSSIE SMOLLETT )
)
Defendant. ) =
NOTICE OF EMERGENCY MOTION
1
To:  SEE ATTACHED LIST -

-

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT on April 2, 2019 at 9:00 a.m., or as soon thereafter ag
counsel may be heard, we shall appear before the Honorable Judge Steven Watkins or.any Judge
sitting in his stead, in the courtroom usually occupied by him, Room 304 of the George N. '
Leighton Criminal Court Building, 2600 South California Avenue, Room 304, Chicago, Illinois
60608, and there and then present MEDIA INTERVENORS’ EMERGENCY MOTION TO
INTERVENE FOR PURPOSES OF OBJECTING TO AND VACATING THE SEALING
ORDER, a copy of which is hereby served upon you. '

Dated: April 1, 2019 Respectfuily §ybmitted;‘“-~~»-k.\
Natalie J. Spears ~Tiatalie.spears@dentons.com
Samuel Fifer - samuel. fifer@dentons.com

Gregory Naron - gregory.naron@dentons.com
Jacqueline A. Giannini - jacqui.giannini@dentons.com
Dentons US LLP, Firm No. 56309

233 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 5900

Chicago, Illinois 60606

Attorneys for Intervenors

Chicage Tribune Company, LL.C; Cable News Network, Inc.;
ABC News and WLS Television, Inc.; NBC News, a division of
NBCUniversal Media, I.I.C; CBS Broadcasting Inc., on behalf of
CBS News and WBBM-TV; WGN Continental Broadcasting
Company, LLC; The Associated Press; The New York Times
Company; Univision Communications Inc.; Fox Television
Stations, LLC; The Hollywood Reporter, LLC; National Public
Radio, Inc. and WBEZ; Sun-Times Media, LL.C; Gannett Satellite
Information Network, LLC, on behalf of USA. Today; and Dow

Jones & Company, publisher of The Wall Street Journal




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Natalie J. Spears, an attorney, certifies that she caused a copy of the foregoing NOTICE
OF EMERGENCY MOTION AND MOTION to be served upon:

Patricia Brown Holmes
pholmes(@rshe-law.com

Brian O’ Connor Watson
bwatson{@rshe-law.com

Risa Lanier
statesattorney@cookcountyil.gov
risa.lanier@cookcountyil.gov

Cathy McNeil Stein
cathymeneil.stein@cookcountyil.gov

Jessica Scheller
jessica.scheller@cookcountyil.gov

via e-mail to the above e-mail addresses on this 1st day of April, 2019.

e

Y

T ——— >
e

N

Natalie J: Spears




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, )
) No. 19 CR 0310401
vs. ) ' -
) Hon. Steven G. Watkins . o
JUSSIE SMOLLETT ) S g
MEDIA INTERVENORS® EMERGENCY MOTION TO INTERVENE s

FOR PURPOSES OF OBJECTING TQ AND VACATING THE SEALING ORDER
. L g
Media Intervenors Chicago Tribune Company, LLC, Cable News Networ.k_,ﬂ_lﬁé., ABC';:
News and WLS Television, Inc., NBC News, a division of NBCUniversal Media,;LLC, CBS
- Broadeasting Inc.; on behalf of CBS News and WBBM-TV, WGN Continental Broadcasting
Company, LLC, The Associated Press, The New York Times Company, Univision
Communications Inc., Fox Television Stations, LLC, The Hollywood Reporter, LLC, Nationa}l
Public Radio, Inc. and WBEZ, Sun-Times Media, LLC, Gannett Satellite Information Network,
LLC, on behalf of USA Today, and Dow Jones & Company, pﬁblisher of The Wall Street Journal
(hereinafter, “Media Intervenors”), respectfully request leave to intervene in this action and hereby
move the Court to reconsider and vacate its March- 26, 2019 sealing order entered in this case in
violation of the Criminal Identification Act, 20 ILCS 2630/1, et seq., the United States
Constitution, including the First Amendment, the Illinois Constitution, and common law rights of
access to judicial proceedings and pﬁblic records. In support of this Motion, Media Intervenors
submit herewith a memorandum of law., i
WHEREFORE, Media Intervenors respectfully request that the Court grant their motion

for intervention and vacate the March 26, 2019 Order sealing the file in this matter, or at a

minimum order briefing on this Motion.




Dated: April 1, 2019

Respectfully submitted,_m

By:

e e

Natalit J. Spears - natalie.spears@dentons.com
DENTONS US LLP, Firm No. 56309

233 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 5900

Chicago, Illinois 60606

Attorneys for Media Intervenors




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY

COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION "J
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) R - T
) No. 19 CR 0310401 -
vs. ) L ®
) Hon. Steven G. Watkins .,
JUSSIE SMOLLETT ) T
pe

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MEDIA INTERVENORS’
EMERGENCY MOTION TO INTERVENE FOR PURPOSES OF
OBJECTING TO AND VACATING THE SEALING ORDER

This is a case of extraordinary public interest and concern. Earlier this year, Mr. Smollett,
a famous actor, reported to Chicago Police that two men attacked him on January 29, 2019,
shouting racist and hemophobic slurs while striking him, placed a noose around his neck and
poured a substance on him. Chicago police investigated the case as a possible hate crime, then
later said they believed the attack was staged by Mr. Smollett to bolster his profile and career. A

| grand jury indicted Mr. Smollett in early March 2019 on 16 felony counts. The criminal court
proceedings and file were open to the public and widely disseminated.

On Tuesday, March 26, 2019, suddenly and unexpeciedly, without any advance notice to
the public, the State advanced the case on an emergency basis and made an oral motion to dismiss
all 16 felony charges against Mr. Sr-nollett1 On oral motion of the Defendant, also on March 26,
the Court issued a sealing order from the bench, which has had the effect of sealing the entire court
Jile from th¢ public (“Sealing Order”). The Sealing Order itself was (and is) officially sealed and

:unavailable in the Court file, which is now entirely under seal. The Cook County Court Clerk’s
Office stated, that same day March 26, that Mr. Smollett’s case was no longer visible in the

publicly available database; thus, as far as public access is concerned, the court record of the

' The People of the State of Illinois v. Jussie Smollett, No. 19 CR 03104-01 (Cir. Ct, Cook County,
I11.), Transcript of March 26, 2019 Hearing (“March 26 Transcript”) at 2-3 (Exhibit 1, hereto).




Smollett case has been wiped off the Cook County Court’s database as if it never existed.
Meanwhile, the State’s Attorney, Kim Foxx, publicly stated on March 27 that only certain parts of
Mr. Smollett’s “arrest” records were intended to be sealed and “the court file was ﬁot supposed to
be seaie'd”.2

The Sealing Order itself was only made public when the Chicago Police Department
(“CPD”), which somehow obtained a copy of the Order, “tweeted” a copy of it late in the evening
of March 27. (Order, attached as Exh. 2 hereto). That Tweet stated that “Earlier today, CPD began
responding to document requests in reference to the closed case of Mr. Smollett. We were. then
advised of a court order prohibiting such release & this afternoon, we received the formal directive
which stipulates that no fui'ther.records can be released.” Anthony Guglielmi (@AJGuglielmi),
Twitter, Mar. 27,2019, 9:09 p.m., hitps://twitter.com/AJGuglielmi/status/1111087816073711618.
Thus, the Court’s Order is presently also having the impact of preventing other public agencies,
like CPD, from releasing public files, records and evidence related to this case in its possession in
response to valid requests, for example, under the Illinois Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”),
As State’s Attorney Foxx has noted, in view of the “considerable evidence, uncovered in large part
due to the investigative work of the Chicago Police Department” in this case and “[i]n the interest
of full transparency,” she “would prefer these records be made public” but perceives constraints
based on Mr. Smollett’s requested sealing which led to the Sealing Order.3

Undeniably, and justifiably, there is substantial public interest in this case. The charges

against Mr. Smollett received widespread, nationwide attention—as did the circumstances of their

* Cralg Wall ABC 7 Chicago (@craigrwall), Twitter, Mar. 27, 2019, 1:09 pm.,
https://twitter.com/craigrwall/status/1110997231551873024.

} Kim Foxx, I welcome an outside review of how we handled the Jussie Smollett case, Op-Ed,
Chicago Tribune, Mar. 29, 2019, hitps.//www.chicagotribune.com/news/opinion/commentary/ct-

perspec-kim-foxx-jussie-smollett-20190329-story.html.
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abrupt dismissal. Significant public resources were expended investigating and prosecuting those
charges. There is no just cause, nor any constitutionally permissible basis, to seal public and court
records related to this case.

Any sealing order impacting this case, let alone a sealed, sealing order, is an affront to the
public’s fundamental right of access to public records and court proceedings. Keeping records of
criminal proceedings under seal denies the press and the public an opportunity to fully understand
what the trial court is deciding at the time it makes and announces its substantive rulings. The
result threatens to have a corrosive effect on trust in the judicial system. Richmond Newsp., Inc.
v. Virginia, 448 U.8. 555, 572 (1980) (“People in an open society do not demand infallibility from
their institutions, but it is difficult for them to accept what they are prohibited from observing™).

Intervenors recognize that the Sealing Order was hurriedly issued, af the parties® behest
and without the benefit of briefing and argument on behalf of the press and public. Intervenors
respectfully submit that under controlling law, entry of the Order, without notice and an
opportunity for the news media to object, is a plain violation of the First Amendment and the
common law right of public access. Apart from the notice infirmity, the Order is substantively
mvalid. While it is the public’s right to be heard on these issues, the Court as well deserves the
opportunity to hear and consider the full scope of interests at stake and the counter-arguments to
entering and maintaining the Sealing Order. Upon such reconsideration, the Order should be
vacated as invalid, under both cénstitutional and common law, for several reasons.

To begin, the Order’s seal on .the entire court file did not comply with the basic
constitutional requirement that the Court make specific .ﬁndings demonstrating that the denial of
access is “essential to preserve higher values and . . . narrowly tailored to serve that interest.”
Press-Enter. Co. v. Superior Court, 464 U.8. 501,510 ( 1984). Indeed, even though the form Order

that Defendant apparently tendered recites that the Court conducted an “evidentiary hearing,” it
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does not appear that any hearing was conducted, evidence taken, or findings made as to the basis
and necessity for such an order-—or that fhere was even a written motion setting forth the purported
justification for secrecy. Intervenors submit no such justification or findings could be validly made
in this case.

Second, and in any event, it would be a misuse of the Criminai Identification Act, 20 ILCS
2630/1, ef seq. (“Act”) to deploy it under these circumstances. The recently-added section of the
Act relied upon by Defendant, allows, but does not require, the Court to seal records upon the final
disl;osition of a case. Apart from the failure to comply with constitutional standards, sealing here
is not even supported by a showing of good cause. The Act’s purpose is to allow citizens acquitted
ofa crime to seal the fact of his or her arrest from, for example, potential employers. Mr. Smollett’s
atrest, however, was already the subject of national headline ngw’s for weeks. Sealing records
cannot serve its intended purpose here, since, unlike the typical case contemplated by the Act, the
public at large is already well aware of the charges brought against Mr. Smollett. In light of the
substantial public resources spent on this matter and the public interest in the circumstances
surrounding the abrupt dismissal of the charges, attempting to use the Act to cloak the entirety of
the criminal court file and other public records in secrecy is offensive to the public interest.

Third, to 'the.extent that the Order’s vague directive to “seal the arrest” could be read to
sweepingly bar CPD and other agencies from respbnding to any valid requests for information
about this case under FOIA, such is not contemplated by the Act—nor can we imagine that was
the Court’s intent. Further, and again, it is not possible for the fact of Mr. Smollett’s “arrest” in
this case to be “sealed”—it is in the public domain. Moreover, the Act excludes immediate sealing
orders entered pursuant to section 5.2(g) from those that the Act specifically exempts from -FOIA.

Finally, the Act, particﬁlarly if interpreted to apply to this case, violates the Media

Intervenors’ First Amendment and Fourteenth Amendment Due Process clause rights. If read as
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broadly as Mr. Smollett appears to believe—to permit the wholesale sealing of the records in a
significant criminal proceeding, with no notice to the press or public and no consideration of the
public interest (much less compliance with the strict FirstlAmendment standards .for denial of
access)—the Act would be patently unconstitutional.

A, Media Intervenors Have A Right to Intervene in These Proceedings.

Under well-established U.S. Supreme Court and Illinois law, the media has a right to
intervene in this case for the limited but important purposes of asserting the public’s right of access
and objecting to the Sealing Order. In seeking to assert the right of public access, the news media
act as “surrogates for the public,” Richmond Newsﬁ., Inc., 448 1J.S. at 573, and “must be given an
opportunity to be heard”. Globe Newsp. Co. v. Super. Ct.,, 457 U.S. 596, 609 n.25 (1982), The
Illinois Supreme Court has recognized that intervention is the correct vehicle for the purpose of
allowing news organizations, like Intervenors, with an interest in obtaining access to court files,
public repords and closed court hearings, to be heard and obtain such access. People v.
Zimmerman, 2018 1L 122261, 99 7, 20; see also AP v. ME.E., 354111 App. 3d 989, 993 (1st Dist.
2004); In re Marriage of Johnson, 232 111. App. 3d 1068, 1070 (4th Dist. 1992). Adequate notice
of any limitatioﬁ of public access, and an adequate opportunity for concerned parties to state to the
court the reasons why the material should remain subject to public scrutiny, is required. /n re
Associated Press, 162 F.3d 503, 507 (7th Cir. 1998).

As noted above, the news media and public have an obvious and significant interest in this
case, which has attracted national and international attention, in view of Mr. Smollett’s notoriety
and the controversial nature of the underlying allegations. Both the filing and the abrupt dismissal
of this case have triggered important public discourse in Chicago and nationwide concerniﬁg raée,
celebrity, the criminal justice system, and the rule of law. Mayor Emanuel immediately blasted

the dismissal of the charges against Defendant as a “whitewash of justice” and “not on the level”;




and Police Superintendent Johnson commented that Defendant “chose to hide behind secrecy and
broker a deal to circumvent the judicial system.”* Public concern has continued to grow—and has
put Chicago’s government and our criminal justice system squarely in the spotlight.5

It is precisely at these moments when sunlight and access are most important to the public.
News coverage of the records and proceédings in this case provides the public with a window into
the workjngs of'its criminal justice system and helps assure the public that justice is being properly
served. “Public scrutiny over the court system promotes community respect for the rule of law,
provides a check on the activities of judges and litigants, and fosters more accurate fact finding.”
A.P., 354 T App. 3d at 999 (citing Grove Fresh Distrib. v. Everfresh Juice Co., 24 F.3d 893, 897

(7th Cir. 1994)). Intervenors’ motion to intervene and assert the public’s rights should be granted.

* See Megan Crepeau, Madeline Buckley and Jason Meisner, In latest plot twist, Cook County
prosecutors abruptly drop all charges against Jussie Smollett, , Chicago Tribune, Mar. 26, 2019,
https://www.chicagotribune.com/news/local/breaking/ct-met-jussie-smolleti-charges-dropped-
20190326-story.html; Faith Karimi and Melissa Alonso, The prosecutor who dropped Jussie
Smollett’s charges says he believes the actor lied to the police, CNN, March 27, 2019,
https://www.cnn.com/2019/03/27/entertainment/jussie-smollett-wednesday/index.html:  ABC7
Team Coverage, Mayor Emanuel on Jussie Smollett charges being dropped: “This is a whitewash
of justice’, ABC 7, March 26, 2019, https://abc7chicago.com/mayor-emanuel-on-jussie-smollett-
charges-being-dropped-this-is-a-whitewash-of-justice/5218433/; CBS News, Jussie Smollet case
“an example of justice for the rich and powerful,” legal analyst says, March 27, 2019,
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/jussie-smollett-dropped-charges-an-example-of-justice-for-the-
rich-and-powerful-rikki-klieman/; Sandra Garcia, Jussie Smollett Charges Were Dropped Because
Conviction Was Uncertain, Prosecutor Says, The New York Times, Mar. 29, 2019,
https://www.nytimes.com/2019/03/30/us/kim-foxx-chicago-smollett. html.

> On March 28, the City sent Mr. Smollett a letter noting that the CPD’s “investigation revealed
that you knowingly filed a false police report and had in fact orchestrated your own attack,” and
demanding “immediate payment of the $130,106.15 expended on overtime hours in the
investigation of this matter.” See also Nat’l Dist. Attorneys Ass’n Statement on Prosecutorial Best
Practices in High Profile Cases, Mar. 27, 2019 (“expunging Mr. Smollett’s record at this
immediate stage is counter to transparency” and would diminish “the public’s confidence in the
criminal justice system”; idea that “the rich are treated differently, the politically connected receive
favorable treatment, and Lady Justice sometimes peeks under her blindfold to see who stands
before her” is “antithetical to our founding principles of justice: that no one is above the law™).
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B. The Sealing Order’s Wholesale Sealing of Judicial Records and the Court
File in This Case Does Not Pass Constitutional Scrutiny.

Media Intervenors, as members and representatives of the public, have a presumptive
constitutional right of access to judicial documents and proceedings under thé First Amendment.
Press-Enter. Co. v. Superior Court, 478 U.S. 1, 11-12 (1986) (“Press-Enterprise II'’), Press-Enter.
Co. v. Superior Court, 464 U.S. 501, 508-10 (1984) (“Press-Enterprise I"); Skolnick v. Altheimer
& Gray, 191 111. 2d 214, 232 (2000).

| In addition to the constitutional right of access, Illinois and federal courts also recognize a
common-law right of access. See Skolnick, 191 Ill. 2d at 230 (citing Nixon v. Warner Commc 'ns,
Inc.,435U.8, 589, 597 (1978) (“[i]t is clear that the courts of this country recognize a general right
to inspect and copy public records and documents™)); Zimmerman, 2018 1L 122261, 7] 40-41; In
re Cont. Il Sec. Litig,, 732 F.2d 1302, 1308 (7th Cir.l 1984) (“long-recognized” presumption of
public access to judicial records “has been characterized as fuadamental to a democratic state™).

Under the First Amendment presumption of access, a trial court may not deny access to
Judicial records or proceedings unless the court makes specific findings demonstrating that the
denial of access is “essential to preserve higher values and . . . narrowly tailored to serve that
interest.” Press-Enterprise I, 464 U.S. at 510; accord Skolnick, 191 11. 2d at 232; Zimmerman,
201811 122261, § 30. Thus, the Court may not seal records without providing notice to the public
and an opportunity to be heard, and making specific, particularized findings on the record

Justifying such secrecy. Press-Enterprise II, 478 U.S. at 13-14.

® IMlinois courts also recognize a right of access grounded in the Illinois Constitution, I11. Const.
art. I, § 4 (1970). This constitutional, presumptive right of access applies to court records or
proceedings of the kind that have been historically open to the public. Skolnick, 191 Ili. 2d at 232;
Zimmerman, 2018 IL 122261, §9427-28.




Likewise, under the common law, any sealing or protective order cannot be issued without
a “compelling” interest, and must be drafted in the least restrictive manner possible. Skolnick, 191
III. 2d at 231. It is the burden of the party proposing sealing (or opposing unsealing) to meet this
test. In re Marriage of Johnson, 232 111. App. 3d at 1072-73.

As far as the Media Intervenors are aware and based on the transcript of the proceedings,
no judicial findings—Ilet alone cnes finding a “compelling” reason for sealing—have been made
justifying any sealing in this case.” For that reason alone, the Sealing Order should be vacated.

The First District’s decision in 4. P., supra, is both illustrative and dispositive. The parties
there agreed to file everything under seal; the trial court “merely acquiesced” with the parties’
requests and made no specific findings Supporting any sealing. 354 IlL. App. 3d at 995. As the
Appellate Court stated: “The trial judge himself did not conclude that legitimate interests in
confidentiality required every part of the file to be confidential — at least he did not explain why
secrecy was vital.” Jd The Appeliate Court continued: “The judge, as the primary representative
of the public interest in the judicial process, should not rubber stamp a stipulation to seal a
record.” Id. (emphasis added). -

Similarly, in In re Marriage of Johnson, the parties in a dissolution of marriage case
agreed—as part of their settlement--that the file should be sealed and impounded. 232 Ill. App.
3d at 1070. The Circuit Court acquiesced. The Appellate Court again reversed, finding that the
First Amendment, the common law, and the Clerks of the Court Act protect the rights of the media

and the public to access to court documents. /d. at 1075. The Court found it unnecessary to discuss

"1t any findings or orders exist relating to the sealing of the files in this matter, those materials
should be made public immediately and subject to review. Further, if the Court considers entering
any such findings, Media Intervenors are entitled to the opportunity to participate in that process,
to review any proposed findings by the parties and challenge them.
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what would be sufficient to overcome the right to access “because it is enough for this case to note
the desire of litigants to restricf public access to judicial records is not sufficient to override this
presumption. Courts canﬁot honor such requests without seriously undermining the tradition of
an open judicial system.” Id.

These and other Illinois Appellate Court and Supreme Court opinions make it clear that,
while the right of public access is not absolute, wholesale sealing of the entire file in this matter
was clearly prohibited under both the constitution and Illinois common law. See 4.P., 354 Il.
App. 3d at 994; Skolnick, 191 111 2d at 231; In re Marriage of Johnson, 232 1ll. App. 3d at 1074.
Judges are required to consider valid, competing interests, but there is no evidence that was done
in this case. In re Marriage of Johnson, 232 11l. App. 3d at 1072; Zimmerman, 2018 IL 122261, §
468 See also Globe Newspaper Co. v. Pokaski, 868 F.2d 497, 507-08 (1st Cir. 1989) (holdihg
statute unconstitutional where it provided for automatic sealing of records without a demonstration
of compelling need and without providing notice to the press).

There is no basis for sealing the entire—and previously open—coutt file in this case, or to
purport to seal the entire universe of public records in the possession of other public bodies related
to this case, such as CPD. Itis far from clear that was the Court’s intent, and certainly, no findings
have been rr;ade—or could be made—that such a sealing order passes constitutional muster or
common law commands given the facts and nature of this case, which is a matter of intense public

interest.

® Consistent with these principles, the Illinois Supreme Court issued a rare supervisory order in
the recent case of People v. Van Dyke, 15CR20622, 17CR4286 (Cir. Ct. Cook County), ordering
the Circuit Court to vacate its order directing that all documents and pleadings be filed in chambers
rather than with the Clerk. See Chicago Public Media v. Gaughan, No. 123569 (Ill. S. Ct. May
23,2018).




C. The Criminal Identification Act Should Not Be Applied Here and Cannot
Constitutionally Support a Sweeping Bar on Disclosure of Judicial and
Public Records in This Case.

In this unusual case, Mr, Smollett, a celebrity television actor, was accused of staging an
attack in Chicago and falsely claiming he was the victim of a hate crime; after significant public
funds were expended to investigate the matter and prosecute extensive felony charges, the State
unceremoniously dropped all charges. To say that this matter has attracted public interest—and
deep concern about how the rule of law was applied here—is an understatement. The facts of the
arrest in this case can no longer be “sealed”—and the Criminal Identification Act cannot be
enlisted to do so. If it could, the Act would be unconstitutional.

At the outset, it should be noted that immediate sealing under the Criminal Identification Act
is permissive, not mandatory-—and is certainly not warranted in this case. Section 5.2(g) of the Act
states that eligible records “may be sealed immediately if the petition is filed with the circuit court
cletk on the same day and during the same hearing in which the case is disposéd.” 20 ILCS
2630/5.2(g)(2) (emphasis added);, see also id § 5.2(g)(3) (eligible .records “may be sealed
immediately after enter of the final disposition of a case”) (emphasis added). Importantly, while the
petition for immediate sealing “shall be ruled on in the same hearing in which the final disposition
of the case is entered,” the trial judge “shall enter an order granting or denying the petition for

immediate sealing during the hearing in which it is filed.” 7d. § 5.2(g)(5)(E) (emphasis adde&).

Thus, the .Cdurt is vested with discretion to deny the petition. That discretion must be
exercised consistent with the standards of the U.S. Constitution and common law access right, and

inherently imports, at minimurm, a requirement that there be a showing of good cause for such an
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order. Given the extraordinary circumstances of this case, no such showing could be mgde here.?

Indeed, the Criminal Identification Act, on its face, simply v;ras not intended to, and cannot,
be deployed in these circumstances. The Act’s purpose was to provide a means for those who
- have been arrested and not convibted, or convicted and successfully served their sentence, to
remove their criminal record from public view; the Act’s remedies were meant, for example, “to
provide individuals who served their sentences greater employment opportunities. Section
5.2(a)(1)(K) and sections 12 and 13 show sealed records are unavailable to employers, except
when a law or regulation mandates an inquiry into one’s criminal records.” People v.
Splittstoesser, 2013 IL App (4th) 120829-U, § 21. To that end, the Act (in the provision Mr.
Smollett invoked) provides that ‘;Arrests ...maybesealed. . . .” 20 ILCS 2630/5.2(g)(2) (emphasis
added). In this case, however, the very notion of “sealing the arrest” is a chimera. Again, the fact
of Mr. Smollett’s “arre:s.t” is public knowledge and can no longer be effectively “sealed”.10

In re A Minor, Whose Name is Omiited, 127 1ll. 2d 247 (1989), is instructive; there, a
reporter obtained the name of a minor arrested in connection with a shooting and published a report
using the name. Subsequently, the trial judge—purporting to act under authority of the Juvenile
(ﬁoulrt Act-—ordered the reporter not to disclose the minor’s name. Id. at 252-53. The Illinois
Supreme Court reversed, holding “[t|he legitimate entry of the minor’s name into the public
domain thus robs the State of any argument that the court’s order was ‘necessary’ to protect the
State’s interest. . . . It serves no purpose to shut the barn door when the horse has already fled.”

Jd. at 269 (emphasis added). Exactly the same is true here. There simply is no good cause to

’ It is Intervenors’ understanding that no petition was actually filed with the Circuit Court clerk as
required by 5.2(g)(S)(A). If a petition for immediate sealing was filed, Intervenors request that
such petition be immediately unsealed and made available for public inspection.

" As noted, prior to receiving a copy of the Court’s Order, CPD has already produced, pursuant
to valid requests under the Illinois FOIA, a substantial number of records related to this case.
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continue to seal even the “fact of the arrest” in this case, where the informa;:ion that the parties and
Court are trying to keep secfet already have become a matter of public knowledge. See also Globe
Newsp., 457 U.S. at 608 (statute requiring closure even if minor victims of sex crime “would not
suffer injury” because, “for example, the[ir] names . . . were already in the public record,” was
unconstitutional).

The Criminal Identification Act is aimed at providing a “fresh start” for acquitted defendants
whose encounter with the criminal justice system is unknown to potential employers and others. M.
Smollett’s use of the Act to shroud the public record information about his case in secrecy is as
nonsensical as it is offensive to the public interest. His arrest was the subject of national headlines
for weeks; the public at large is already more than aware of the charges b;ought against him, which
have now been summarily and suspiciously dismissed. No employer or any other sentient being
would be unaware of Mr. Smollett’s encounter with the criminal justice system. Where, as here, the
Defendant has no tenable claim to privacy in discussion of the criminal charges against him, the Act
cannot be used to wholesale seal judicial records. Nor can it be used to thwart the operation of FOIA
to related public records in this case in an area of paramouht public interest.!! The Sealing Order
was simply unwarranted in these circumstances and should be vacated in its entirety.

Furthermore,‘ and in all events, the Sealing Order (consistent with section 5.2(g) of the Act)
is limited and states only that the Clerk and CPD “seal the atrest” from their records and seek return
of “icientifying information”. The Act’s narrow purpose is to prevent records reflecting the fact of

an arrest from becoming public knowledge (impossible here). It simply cannot be extended to put a

' See 5 ILCS 140/1 (“Pursuant to the fundamental philosophy of the American constitutional
form of government,” it is the “public policy of the State of Illinois that all persons are entitled to
full and complete information” regarding “the official acts and policies of those who represent
them as public officials and public employees™),
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seal on anything (evidence, internal communications)' leading up to an arrest or relatihg to a case that
is already public knowledge.

Yet, as a result of confusion surrounding the Sealing Order, CPD, for example, has
apparently treated the Order as a “formal directive which stipulates that no further records can be
released” in the “closed case of Mr. Smollett.” Anthpny Guglielmi (@AJGuglielmi), Twitter, Mar.
27,2019, 9:09 pm. The Order’s statement that the CPD and Clerk “shall seal the arrest from its
records” cannot—and was not intended to—operate to sweepingly bar CPD, the State’s Attorney’s
Office or other agencies from responding to any‘valid requests for information related to this case
under FOIA; as shown, that would be completely iriconsistent with the Act’s purpose and in no
way how it was meant to operate here. Nonetheless, the lack of clarity in the Order is causing
unintended consequences in restricting public documents from being released under FOIA.12

For all of these reasons, the Sealing Order should be vacated entirely; it simply has no
valid, let alone constitutionally permissible, basis to remain in place. But, at the very least, the
Order should be clarified to indicate that it is limited in scope and does not purport to bar all FOIA
requests for other public records or evidence related to this case, on which this Court could not

have intended to opine.

2 Importantly, the Criminal Identification Act by its terms provides that the Sealing Order does
not affect compliance with FOIA. The March 26 Order was entered under authority of section
3.2(g) of the Act. Section 13 of the Act specifies that a certain subset of records sealed or
impounded under the Act are “exempt from disclosure” under the FOIA. 20 ILCS 2630/13(c).
Specifically, section 13(c) exempts from FOIA only those “sealed or impounded records”
identified in section 13(a)—i.e., “records sealed under subsection (c) or (e-5) of Section 5.2 or
‘impounded under subparagraph (B) or (B-5) of paragraph (9) of subsection (d) of Section 5.2”. 20
[LCS 2630/13(a). However, records immediately sealed under section 5.2(g) are nor among those
exempted from FOIA under section 13. Thus, as a matter of law, the Sealing Order does not
automatically bar a FOIA request to CPD or other agencies relating to this matter.

-13 -




D. Alternatively, if the Criminal Identification Act Applies to Permit the Sealing
Order Here, the Act Is Unconstitutional.

If the Coﬁrt were to find the Criminal Identification Act permitted eniry of the Sealing
Order here-—restricting public access with no notice based on no valid cause—it would be patently
unconstitutional under the First Amendment. Courts have found similar sealing statutes in other
jurisdictions to violate the First Amendment for precisely those reasons.

For example,. in Globe Newspaper Co. v. Pokaski, the court struck down a statute providing
for automatic sealing of records when a defendant is found not guilty, the grand jury failed to
indict, or the court made a ﬁnding of no probable cause, holding it was not the least restrictive
means of achieving the 'state’s interest. 868 F.2d 497, 500, 507 (1st Cir. 1989). Instead, the
defendant would have to affirmatively move for the sealing -of his records and demonstrate the
need for the sealing—and if thé defendant could not, the request must be denied and records remain
open. Further, if the defendant was able to make a prima facie case for sealing, then a hearing
with the press present would be necessary. Id. at 507-508. And of course, the court stated, the
procedure must include “means of ensuring that the press is adequately informed.” d at 508.

Section 5.2(g) of the Criminal Identification Act fails to pass constitutional muster for the
same reasons as the statute at issue in Pokaski. While sealing is not “automatic” under Section
5.2(g), to the extent the provision improperly allows the court to seal records without requiring a
showing of good cause on behalf of defendant, it is unconstitutional. Further, the Illinois statute,
like the Massachusetts statute, fails to allow an opportunity for the press to be notified and heard.

The Pokaski Court also struck down the second provision the Massachusetts statute, which
allowed for sealing upon a finding that “substantial justice would best be served” by sealing in cases
where no prosecution occurred or the court entered a dismissal. 868 F.2d at 500. The court held that

in order for this provision to be constitutional, “trial courts must make ‘specific, on the record findings’
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showing that closure is necessary to achieve a compelling interest.” /d. at 510. Here, in order for
Section 5.2(g) to be found constitutional, the same compelling interest requirement must be observed.

Furthermore, Section 5.2(g) of the Act is unconsfitutionaily vague in violation of due
process, insofar as it does not set forth standards for granting or denying a petition for imme&iate
sealing. The statute merely provides that “[t]he presiding trial judge shall enter an order granting
or denying the petition for immedie;te sealing during the hearing in which it is filed.” 20 ILCS
2630/5.2(g)(5)E). “[A] statute may be declared unconstitutionally vague if it fails to provide
explicit standards fpr those who apply it, thus authorizing or even encouraging arbitrary and
discriminatory enforcement.” People v. Law, 202 111, 2d 578, 58283 (2002); see also People v.
Maness, 191 11, 2d 478, 486-87 (2000) (“To satisfy the vagueness doctrine, a criminal statute
must provide both fair warning of the prohibited conduct and explicit guidelines for those who
must apply the law™). Here, the decision whether to grant or deny the sealing order was within the
trial court’s sole discretion and the statute “did not include any guidelines, criteria, rules, or
regulations to guide the [Court’s] discretion.” PBM Stone, Inc. v. Palzer, 251 111, App. 3d 390,
396 (3rd Dist. 1993). Cf Hynes v. Mayor and Council of Oradell, 425 U.S. 610, 620 (1976) (“The
general test of vagueness applies with particular force in review of laws dealing with speech™);
Wisconsin Right To Life, Inc. v. Barland, 751 F.3d 804, 835.(7th Cir. 2014) (First Amendme/nt
requires “a higher standard of clarity and precision”).

E. Access Delayed Is Access Denied. |

Courts have long recognized that when the right of access applies, as it does here, access
must be “immediate and contemporaneous.” In re Associated Press, 162 F.3d at 506-07 (quoting
Grove Fresh, 24 F.3d at 897); see also Associated Press v. Dist. Court, 705 F.2d 1 143, 1147 (9th
Cir. 1983) (48-hour delay in unsealing judicial records is improper; effect of the delay acts as a

“total restraint on the public’s first amendment right of access” during that time).

-15-




As the First District has recognized, “even a temporary denial of access to court
proceedings . . . raises important first amendment concerns.” People v. Kelly, 397 H1. App. 3d
232, 247 (Ist Dist. 2009). Courts must therefore act “expeditiously” in adjudicaﬁng motions to
unseal. Lugosch v. Pyramid Co., 435 F.3d 110, 126-27 (2d Cir. 2006) (ﬁnding that district court
erred in delaying ruling on motion to intervene and unseal court records). A loss of First
Amendment rights, “for even minimal periods of time, unquestionably constitutes irreparable
injury.” Elrod v. Burns, 427 U.S. 347, 373 (1976). Indeed, “each passirig day may constitute a
separate and cognizable infringement of the First Amendment.” Neb. Pre;vs Ass’n v. Stuart, 423
U.S. 1327, 1329 (1975) (Blackmun, Circuit Justice).

“To delay or postpone disclosure undermines the benefit of public scrutiny and may have the
same result as coxﬁplete suppression.” Grove Fresﬁ,'24 F.3d at 897. Contemporaneous access
ensures that the public learns about éases while they are newsworthy. It also promotes accuracy in
reporting and leads to more informed, meaningful public debate and discussion. Delaying access
stifles the flow of information to the public and chills public debate at the moment that information
is most newsworthy.

CONCLUSION

Media Intervenors respectfully request that the Court grant their motion for intervention

and vacate the March 26, 2019 Order, or at a minimum order briefing on this Motion.

Dated: April 1, 2019 Respectfu‘l’ly-s_agm\jt@,

Natalie J. Spears - natalig spears@dentons.com
Samuel Fifer - samuel. fifer@dentons.com

Gregory R. Naron - gregory.naron@dentons.com
Jacqueline A. Giannini - jacqui.giannini@dentons.com
DenToNs US LLP, Firm No. 56309

233 S. Wacker Drive, Suite 5900

Chicago, Illinois 60606

Attorneys for Media Intervenors
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Natalie J. Spears, an attorney, certifies that she caused a copy of the foregoing MEDIA
INTERVENORS’ EMERGENCY MOTION TO INTERVENE FOR PURPOSES OF
OBJECTING TO AND VACATING THE SEALING ORDER to be served upon:

Patricia Brown Holmes
pholmes@rshe-law.com

Brian O’Connor Watson
bwatson@rshec-law.com

Risa Lanier
statesattorney@cookcountyil.gov
risa.lanier@cookcountyil.gov

Cathy McNeil Stein
cathymeneil stein@cookcountyil.gov

Jessica Scheller

jessica.scheller@cookcountyil.gov

by causing a copy to be delivered via e-mail to the above e-mail addresses on this 1st day of
April, 2019.

P

Natalie J. Spears




OFFICE OF THE STATE’S ATTORNEY
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

KIMBERLY M. FOxx

STATE'S ATTORNEY
CHLOE K. RASMAS 69 W WASHINGTON
FOIA OFFICER ‘ 4 CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60602
WRITER'S E.MAIL ADDRESS: - WRITER'S DIRECT LINE;
CHLOE.RASMAS@COOKCOUNTYIE.GOV (312) 603-2298

April 16, 2019
~ VIA EMAIL

Ross E. Weidner
Ross.E. Weidner@abe.com

Re: FOIA Requests dated 3/26/19 and 3/27/19

Dear Mr. Weidner:

I am responding to the requests for documents under the llinois Freedom of Information Act (“I'OIA”) statute that
were received by the Cook County State's Attorney’s Office (the “SAQ”) on March 26 and March 27, 2019 via e-mail.
On April 2 and April 3, 2019, the SAQ sent the statutory request for a five-day extension and is herewith responding
to your FOIAs,

You have asked for:

On March 26

Any and all communication records involving or produced by Joe Magats related to the Jussie Smollett
investigation including but not limited to messages on county and personal phones (text, iMessage, any other
kind of digital message), emails, memos, and letters.

Any and all records related to the Jussie Smollett investigation including but not limited to video and audio
recordings, police reports, correspondence with the Chicago Police Depariment or any federal agencies,
investigative notes and any other related materials.

On March 27

Any and all communication records involving or produced by Kim Foxx related to the Jussie Smollett
investigation including but not limited to messages on county and personal phones (text, iMessage, any other
kind of digital message), emails, memos, and letters.

In order to accommodate the approximately forty FOIA requests the Cook County State's Attorney’s Office (SAQ)
received following the resolution of the Jussie Smollett matter, we conducted a universal search of any and all
electronic or paper records, including emails, texts, memoranda, notes, and case files, from key SAQO staffers involved
in the criminal proceedings.

The custodians whose records searched were: Kim Foxx, Joe Magats, Risa Lanier, Diann Sheridan, April Perry, Kiera
Ellis, Tandra Simonton, Liam Reardon, Nick Trutenko, Guy Lisuzzo, Jennifer Ballard Croft, Alyson Miller, Kim
Ward, Marny Zimmer, Matthew Saniie, and Robert Foley. The search encompassed the time period from January 29,
2019 to March 28, 2019, :

This search included a keyword search of these custodians’ email records using the following search terms:




“Jussie Smollett” OR “Jussie” OR “Smollett” OR “Smolett” OR “Smollet” OR “Empire” OR “Olabinjo” OR
“Abimbela” OR “Osundaire” OR “19CR0310401” OR “19CR03104” OR “19CR3104” OR “19CR-3104” OR “Mark
Geragos” OR “Gregaros” OR “Patricia Brown Holmes” OR “Patricia Holmes” OR “Brian Watson” OR “Watson”
OR “Tina Tchen” OR “ Tchen” OR [“@chicagopolice.org” AND “Smollett”] OR [“@chicagopolice.org” AND
“Smolett”] OR [“@chicagopolice.org” AND “Smollet”] OR [“@cityofchicago.org” AND “smollet”] OR
[“@cityofchicago.org” AND “smolett”] OR [“@cityofchicago.org” AND “smollet”] OR “Ronald Safer” OR “Safer”
OR “Todd Pugh” OR “Pugh” OR “Tom Breen” OR “Breen” OR “Gladian” OR “Steven G. Watkins” OR
“Watkins” OR ["mayor’s office” AND “smollett”] OR [“mayor’s office” AND “smollet”] OR [“mayor’s office” AND
“smolett”} OR “Jorge Rodriguez” OR “Gloria Rodriguez” OR “The Gloria Law Group” OR “recuse” OR “recusal.”

The SAQ then reviewed for public dissemination all responsive material, produced herewith, along with an exemption

~ log delineating our redactions, at:
hitps://www.dropbox.com/sh/7owz02athefeqwe/AA BymM7qQahNegV7u9a3eQlia?dl=0.

If you believe the material we have reviewed for production, as reflected in the material accessible and downloadable
for review at the aforementioned link, does not satisfy your request, please submit a clarified request to
SAOQ.FOIA@cookeountyil. gov.

The SAQO’s trial file, and certain other responsive records, are exempt from disclosure at this time pursuant to section
7(1)(a) of FOIA. Section 7(1)(a) exempts from disclosure “[ijnformation specifically prohibited from disclosure by
federal or State law or rules and regulations implementing federal or State law.” Pursuant to the March 26, 2019
Order in Case No. 19 CR 0310401 which sealed the file and the files of various law enforcement agencies, the SAO is
prohibited from releasing materials which would otherwise be responsive to this request. We acknowledge that the
March 26, 2019 Order is the subject of litigation, and we will supplement our production consistent with our FOIA
obligations to the extent the Order is vacated.

Due to the fluid nature of text correspondence, some responsive text messages included side conversations on matters
unrelated to the SAQ’s role in the Smollett matter. To avoid confusion about the context of the correspondence, the
SAQ has redacted any such non-responsive correspondence in blue, while any redactions in black are of Smollett-
related conversations determined to be exempt for the reasons listed in the exemption log.

In addition to the records exemptions reflected in the log, the SAO has withheld in their entirety handwritten
attorney notes created during the prosecution of the case pursuant to Section 7(1)(a) of FOIA which exempts from
disclosure “[ijnformation specifically prohibited from disclosure by federal or State law or rules and regulations
implementing federal or State law.” Supreme Court Rule 201(b)}(2) states:

All matters that are privileged against disclosure on the trial, including privileged communications between a
party or his agent and the attorney for the party, are privileged against disclosure through any discovery
procedure. Material prepared by or for a party in preparation for trial is subject to discovery only if it does not
contain or disclose the theories, mental impressions, or litigation plans of the party’s attorney.

To review all other exemptions made by the SAO in this production, please refer to the produced exemption log.

For ease of reading, the SAO did not include responsive Google Alerts, newsclips, or other automated messages in
which no communication amongst SAO staff followed. If you would like these records, please let us know, and we can
produce them to you.

Finally, we thank you for your patience as we have worked to process your FOIA request(s).

You have a right to appeal this decision to Sarah Pratt, Public Access Counselor, Office of the Illinois Attorney
General, 500 S. 2nd Street, Springfield, Illinois 62706, (phone number 1-877-299-FOIA) or to seek judicial review
under Section 11 of FOIA, 5 ILCS 140/11 (2017).

Sincerely,

8/Chloe K. Rasmas
Chloe K. Rasmas
FOIA Officer/Policy Analyst
69 W Washington
Chicago, Illinois 60602
(312) 603-2296
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Order for Immediate Sealing of Criminal Records
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This Court, having considered all pleadings and any objections thereto, and after an evidentiary hearing,

ORDERS THAT:
1. Defendant/Petitioner’s Petition for Immediate Sealing of Criminal Records is GRANTED.

2. The Hlinois State Police, the above Arresting Agency, . )

the Chicago Police Department, and the Clerk of the Circuit Court shall seal the arrest from its records, if
any, within sixty {60) days of the date of service of this order. It is further directed that the Arresting Agen-
cy shall request the return of all identification materials from any other repositories and custodians of statis-
tics that were previously notified of this arrest(s) by the Arresting Agency.
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OFFICE OF THE STATE’S ATTORNEY
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

K1MBERLY M. Foxx

STATE'S ATTORNEY
CHLOE K. RASMAS 69 W WASHINGTON
FOIA OFFICER CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60602
WRITER'S E-MAIL ADDRESS: WRITER'S DIRECT LiNE:
CHLOE RASMAS@COOKCOUNTYIL.GOV (312) 603-2296

April 16, 2019

VIA EMAIL

Andrew Grimm

agrimm@suntimes.com

" Re:

FOIA Request dated 3/26/19

Dear Mr. Grimm:

I am responding to the request for documents under the lllinois Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”) statute that was
received by the Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office (the “SA0”) on March 26, 2019 via e-mail. On April 2, 2019 the
SAQ sent the statutory request for a five-day extension and is herewith responding to your FOIA,

You have asked for;

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Emuails, memoranda or lefters, text messages exchanged between lawyers for Jussie Smollett and staff of the
Cook County State's Attorney, including emails and texts sent to personal accounts or phone numbers of State’s
Attorney’s employees or elected officials. If the SAO determines that this request results in an overly
burdensome number of messages for the office to review, I request a log of messages including the date, fime,
subject line (where applicable), sender and recipient.

Any records related to the State's prosecution of Smollett, including drafts of plea agreements, pre- trml
diversion ugreements. _
Emails, memoranda or letters, text messages exchanged between lawyers for Abimbola and Olabinjo Osundairo
and staff of the Cook County State's Atiorney, including emails and texis sent to personal accounts or phone
numbers of State's Attorney’s employees or elected officials. If the SAQ determines that this request results in
an overly burdensome number of records for the office to review, I request a log of messages including the date,
time, subject line (where applicable), sender and recipient.

Emails, memoranda or letters, text messages regarding the Smollett prosecution exchanged between staff of the
Cook County State's Attorney, including emails and texts sent to personal accounis or phone numbers of Stafe's
Attorney's employees or elected officials. If the SAQ determines that this request results in an overly
burdensome number of messages for the office to review, I request a log of messages including the date, time,
subject line (where applicable), sender and recipient.

Emails, memoranda or letters, text messages regarding the Smollett prosecution, specifically related to
videotape evidence and victim cooperation, exchanged between staff of the Cook County State’s Attorney, and
Michael Avenatti, including responsive communications made using public employees’ personal devices and
accounts. If the SAQ determines that this request results in an overly burdensome number of messages for the
office to review, I request a log of messages including the date, time, subject line (where applicable), sender and

recipient.

In order to accommodate the approximately forty FOIA requests the Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office (SAO)
received following the resolution of the Jussie Smollett matter, we conducted a universal search of any and all
electronic or paper records, including emails, texts, memoranda, notes, and case files, from key SAQO staffers involved

in the criminal proceedings.




The custodians whose records searched were: Kim Foxx, Joe Magats, Risa Lanier, Diann Sheridan, April Perry, Kiera
Ellis, Tandra Simonton, Liam Reardon, Nick Trutenko, Guy Lisuzzo, Jennifer Ballard Croft, Alyson Miller, Kim
Ward, Marny Zimmer, Matthew Saniie, and Robert Foley. The search encompassed the time period from J anuary 29,
2019 to March 28, 2019.

This search included a keyword search of these custodians’ email records using the following search terms;

“Jussie Smollett” OR “Jussie” OR “Smollett” OR “Smolett” OR “Smollet” OR “Empire” OR “Olabinjo” OR
“Abimbola” OR “Osundairo” OR “19CR0310401” OR “19CR03104” OR “19CR3104” OR “19CR-3104” OR “Mark
Geragos” OR “Gregaros” OR “Patricia Brown Holmes” OR “Patricia Holmes” OR “Brian Watson” OR “Watson”
OR “Tina Tchen” OR “ Tchen” OR [“@chicagopolice.org” AND “Smollett”] OR [“@chicagopolice.org” AND
“Smolett”] OR [“@chicagopolice.org” AND “Smollet”] OR [“@cityofchicago.org” AND “smollet”] OR
[“@cityofchicago.org” AND “smolett”] OR [“@cityofchicago.org” AND “smollet”] OR “Ronald Safer” OR “Safer”
OR “Todd Pugh” OR “Pugh” OR “Tom Breen” OR “Breen” OR “Gladian” OR “Steven G. Watking” OR
“Watkins” OR [“mayor’s office” AND “smollett”] OR [“mayor’s office” AND “smollet”} OR [“mayor’s office” AND
“smolett”] OR “Jorge Rodriguez” OR “Gloria Rodriguez” OR “The Gloria Law Group” OR “recuse” OR “recusal.”

The SAQ then reviewed for public dissemination all responsive material, produced herewith, along with an exemption

log delineating our redactions, at:
https/iwww.dropbox.com/sh/Towz02athcfaqwe/ AARymMY7 gahNegeViulaleQlia?di=0.

If you believe the material we have reviewed for production, as reflected in the material accessible and downloadable
for review at the aforementioned link, does not satisfy your request, please submit a clarified request to

SAQ.FOIA@cookeountyil.gov.

The SAO’s trial file, and certain other responsive records, are exempt from disclosure at this time pursuant to section
7(1)(a) of FOIA. Section 7(1)(a) exempts from disclosure “filnformation specifically prohibited from disclosure by
federal or State law or rules and regulations implementing federal or State law.” Pursuant to the March 26, 20189.
Order in Case No, 19 CR 0310401 which sealed the file and the files of various law enforcement agencies, the SAQ is
prohibited from releasing materials which would otherwise be responsive to this request. We acknowledge that the
March 26,:2019 Order is the subject of litigation, and we will supplement our production consistent with our FOIA
obligations to the extent the Order is vacated. :

Due to the fluid nature of text correspondence, some responsive text messages included side conversations on matters
unrelated to the SAQ’s role in the Smollett matter, To avoid confusion about the context of the correspondence, the
SAQO has redacted any such non-responsive correspondence in blue, while any redactions in black are of Smollett-
related conversations determined to be exempt for the reasons listed in the exemption log.

In addition to the records exemptions reflected in the log, the SAO has withheld in their entirety handwritten
attorney notes created during the prosecution of the case pursuant to Section 7 (1)(a) of FOIA which exempts from
disclosure “lilnformation specifically prohibited from disclogure by federal or State law or rules and regulations
implementing federal or State law.” Supreme Court Rule 201(b)(2) states:

All matters that are privileged against disclosure on the trial, including privileged communications between a
party or his agent and the attorney for the party, are privileged against disclosure through any discovery
procedure. Material prepared by or for a party in preparation for trial is subject to discovery only if it does not
contain or disclose the theories, mental impressions, or litigation plans of the party’s attorney.

To review all other exemptions made by the SAQ in this production, please refer to the produced exemption log.

For ease of reading, the SAO did not include responsive Google Alerts, newsclips, or other automated messgages in

‘which no communication amongst SAQ staff followed. If you would like these records, please let us know, and we can
produce them to you.

Finally, we thank you for your patience as we have worked to process your FOIA request(s).
Additionally, on April 8, 2019 the SAO sent you an email stating:

Hi - I meant to ask you on the phone re: #5 below. I wanted to confirm you meant Smollett, and not R. Kelly?
On April 11, 2019 you responded:

I will take anything you've got from Avenatti re: either R, Kelly or Smollett.




Records responsive to part five of your request, not included in the Smollett search, are available for review and

download at: hitps:/fwww.dropbox.com/sh/fsin7v7Tbupx9sic/AAACEARRWTtzPDHP1 Yam VExLa?d]=0.

Personal phone numbers were redacted pursuant to Section 7(1)(b) of FOIA, 5 ILCS 140/7(1)(b) exempts from
disclosure, “private information.” Private information is defined in Section 2(c-5) as, “..,unique identifiers, including a
person’s social security number, driver’s license number, employee identification number, biometric identifiers,
personal financial information, passwords or other access codes, medical records, home or personal telephone
-numbers, and personal emails addresses. Private information also includes home address and personal license plates,
except as otherwise provided by law or when compiled without possibility of attribution to any person.” 5 ILCS
140/2(c-6). Therefore, personal phone numbers are exempt pursuant to Section 7(1}(b) and were properly redacted.

The SAO has withheld pursuant to Section 7(1)(c) victim names and the names of any relatives mentioned that could
be used to identify the victims, on the basis that an invasion of privacy brought by release of the information, which
may lead to undue embarrassment, harassment, or unwanted attention, outweighs any legitimate public interest in
obtaining the information. We have further redacted information shared amongst correspondents about their children

pursuant to this exemption.

Certain records gathered, produced, and maintained in the process of investigating this case encompass extensive
grand jury material, including that which can identify grand jury witnesses. These records have been fully withheld
pursuant to Section 7(1)(a) of FOIA which exempts “information specifically prohibited from disclosure by federal or
State law.” Under the Illinois Code of Criminal Procedure, the Cook County State’s Attorney’s office cannot disclose
information concerning grand jury proceedings to the public. See, e.g., 725 ILCS 5/112-6 {2017). As a result, the
grand jury materials contained in the responsive records are exempt from inspection and copying under the FOIA
statute. The purpose of grand jury secrecy is to assure the freedom of deliberation of future grand juries, and the
participation of future witnesses, as well as to provide these assurances to those who previously appeared before the
grand jury. See In re Extended March 1975 Grand Jury v. Carey, 84 TIl. App. 3d 847, 851 (1st Dist. 1980),

Finally, the SAQ has withheld mentions of ongoing investigation tactics pursuant to Section T(1)(d)(v) as disclosure of
this information would:

(v) disclose unigue or specialized investigative techniques other than those generally used and known or
disclose internal documents of correctional agencies related to detection, observation or investigation of
incidents of crime or misconduct, and disclosure would result in demonstrable harm to the agency or public
body that is the recipient of the request;

You have a right to appeal this decision to Sarah Pratt, Public Access Counselor, Office of the Illinois Attorney
General, 500 S. 2nd Street, Springfield, Illinois 62706, (phone number 1-877-299-FOIA) or to seek judicial review
under Section 11 of FOIA, 5 ILCS 140/11 (2017).

Sincerely,

s/Chloe K. Rasmas
Chloe K. Ragmas
FOIA Officer/Policy Analyst
69 W Washington
Chicago, Illincis 60602
(312) 603-2298







Rahm Emanuel Department of Police + City of Chicago Eddie.T. Johnsen
Mayor 3510 8. Michigan Avenue - Chicago, Hlinois 60653 Superintendent of Police

April 5, 2019

Via Email:

Samira Puskar

NBC Network News
Samira.Puskar@nbcuni.com

RE: NOTICE OF RESPONSE TO FOJA REQUEST
FOIA FILE NO.: P480314

Dear Samira Puskar:

The Chicago Police Department (CPD) is in receipt of your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request,
received April 1, 2019 for the following:

“I am requesting the following materials under the llinois Freedom of Information Act related to the CPD
RD# J(12561 4/event # 1902208730 AND CPD RD# JC1331 9()/event # 1902900959:

-. All detective supplemental reports for these cases.”

Your request was reviewed by the undersigned in conjunction with the Department’s Office of Legal
Affairs. Upon review, it was determined that the requested records must be denied in their entirety as
information that is protected and exempt from disclosure under the following provision of the Illinois
Freedom of Information Act;

5 ILCS 140/7(1)(a) Information specifically prohibited from disclosure by
federal or State law or rules and regulations implementing federal or State
law;

The requested records are exempt from disclosure pursuant to the Order for Immediate Sealing.of
Criminal Records entered on March 26, 2019, and still in effect on the date of this letter, by Judge Steve
Watkins in the case of People of the State of llinois v. Jussie Smollett, 19 CR 3104. This Order prohibits the
release of records in reference to the criminal case of Jussie Smollett. (See Order, attached hereto). The
[llinois Supreme Court has recently affirmed the Appellate Court’s decision in In re APPOINTMENT OF
SPECIAL PROSECUTOR, and held that a lawful Court Order takes precedence over the disclosure
requirements of FOIA. In re APPOINTMENT OF SPECIAL PROSECUTOR, 2019 1L 122949 at {66.

If I can be of further assistance, please contact me at the following address:

Chicago Police Department

Emergency and TTY: 9-1-1 - Non Emergency and TTY: (within city limits) 3-1-1 - Non Emergency and TTY (outside city limits) (312) 746-6000

E-mail: police@cityefchicago.org + Website: www cityofchicage.org/police




Attention: Freedom of Information
Office of Legal Affairs, Unit 114
3510 S. Michigan Avenue

Chicago, IL 60653

foia@chicagopolice.org

You have a right of review by the Illinois Attorney General’s Public Access Counselor, who can be
contacted at 500 S. Second St., Springfield, 1L 62706 or by telephone at 877-299-3642, You may also seek
judicial review under 5 ILCS 140/11.

Sincerely,

A. Marlan

Freedom of Information Act Officer
Chicago Police Department

Office of Legal Affairs, Unit 114
3510 S. Michigan Ave.

Chicago, 1L 68653







City of Chicago
Rahm Emanuet, Mayor

Department of Law
Edward N. Siskel
Corporation Counsel

121 North LaSalle Street

Suite 600

Chicago, Illinois 60602-
2380

(312} 744-6500

(312) 742-0277 (FAX)

(312) 744-2693 (TTY)

www.cityofehicago.org

April 10, 2019

Ross Weidner
ABC7
Via email at Ross.E. Weidner@abc.com

Dear Mr. Weidner,

On behalf of the City of Chicago Department of Law, | am responding to your
Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”) request which was dated March 27, 2019
and received in our offices on the same day. The Law Department took a 5-day
extension on April 3, 2019. You requested:

Requesting access to and a copy of any and all records related to the Jussie
Smollett investigation including but not limited to video and audio recordings,
police reports, correspondence with the Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office,
Chicago Police Department or any federal agencies, investigative notes and any
other related materials. I'm also seeking any orders to seal if they exist or are in
the city’s possession.

Please find attached the sealing order in the Smollett criminal case.

Your request seeks records covered under the sealing order in the Smollett criminal
case, and the Law Department has fo withhold these records. Under 5 ILCS
140/7(1)(a), a public body may withhold “information specifically prohibited from
disclosure by federal or State law or rules and regulations implementing federal or
State law.” The Iilinois Supreme Court recently held that it is proper under the
Illinois FOIA for a public body to withhold records that are subject to a judicial
protective order. In Re Appointment of Special Prosecutor, 2019 11 122949, 9 66
(citing GTE Syivania Inc. v. Consumer Union of the United States, Inc., 445 U.S.
375)(1980)). Thus, the Law Department has properly withheld these records.

To the extent your request seeks emails, your request is unduly burdensome.
Section 3(g) of FOIA provides that “requests for ali records falling within a
category shall be complied with unless compliance with the request would be

“ unduly burdensome for the complying public body and there is no way to narrow

the request and the burden on the public body outweighs the public interest in the
information.”

In order to effectively run an email search, the Law Departments needs the
following search parameters: (1) the e-mail address(es) or employee name(s) of the
account(s) you wish searched; (2) key words you wish to search for; and (3) the
timeframe fo be searched. Without search parameters, the Law Department would
need to review all department emails to determine whether any are responsive to
your request. Such an undertaking would pose an immense burden on the
department.

It is necessary that your FOIA request be narrowed and clarified. if you would like
assistance in narrowing your request, please contact me, and I will assist you.
Otherwise, for the reasons provided above, the Law Department is unable to
respond to your FOIA request as currently drafted.




If you agree to narrow your request, you must submit a revised written request to my attention. The Law
Department will take no further action or send you any further correspondence unless and until your
current request is narrowed in writing. If we do not receive your narrowed request within fourteen
calendar days of the date of this letter, your current request will be denied.

In the event that we do not receive a narrowed request and your current FOIA request is therefore denied,
you have the right to have a denial reviewed by the Public Access Counselor (PAC) at the Office of the
Illinois Attorney General, 500 S. 2nd Street, Springfield, Illinois 62706, (877) 299-3642. You also have
the right to seek judicial review of your denial by filing a lawsuit in Cook County Circuit Court.

Sincerely,

Tom Skelton
FOIA Officer — Department of Law




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY.,ILLINOIS
CRIMINALDIVISION

No. 2019 Miso. 00 17

The Hon. Leroy Martin, Jr.

IN RE: APPOINTMENT OF A SPECIAL PROSECUTOR

R N I

TO: Kim Fexx, Cook County State's Attorney
50 W Washington St., Suite 500
Chicago, Illinois 60602

2650 8. California o o
Chicago, Illinois 60608 -

Patricia Holmes, Attorney for Jussie Smolleit L o
70 West Madison Street, Suite 2900 S
Chicago, Illinois 60602 e

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that 0:17');1\;’\(3‘ - /V[a o 2019 at 9:00 a.m. I will
appear before The Honorable L.eRoy Martin, Jr. in courzroom 101, at the Circuit Court of
Cook County, Criminat Division, and will present the attached Petition to Appoint a Special
Prosecutor in the matter of the People of the State of Hlinois v. Jussie Smollett

e M. Sy

“Shei]a M. O’Brien, Pro se

]
",{f

Sheila M., O’Brien ' -
Pro Se

360 E. Randolph #1801

Chicago, Illinois 60601

224.766.1904




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY,ILLINOIS
CRIMINAL DIVISION :

IN RE: APPOINTMENT OF A SPECIAL PROSECUTOR  No. 2019 Misc, O 00! Y

Hon. LeRoy Martin, Jr.

PETITION TO APPOINT A SPECIAL PROSECUTOR
) In the Matter of
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINGIS v. JUSSIE SMOLLETT

INTRODUCTION

This petition asks for the instanter application of 55 ILCS 5/3-9008 (attached

as Exhibit 1) to the investigation and prosecution of the People of the Staie of

inois v. Jussie Smollett, filed in the Circuit Court of Cook County. The

statute is clear on its face, not subject to interpretation and requires the Court to

appoint a special prosecutor, where as here, the State’s Attorney is unable to

fulfill her duties, has an actual conflict of interest or has recused herself,
State’s Attorney Kim Foxx has explicitly stated that she welcomes “an

outside, nonpolitical review of how we handled this matter” and thus, has waived

any objection to this petition.




THE PETITIONER

Sheila M. O’Brien, is a citizen of the United States, a resident of the State
of Tilinois, the County of Cook and the City of Chicago and is a taxpayer in
each jurisdiction. Her bio (Exhibit 3) isl attached to this pleading.
Petitioner is an “interested person” pursuant to 55 ILCS 5/3-9008.
Petitioner has been associated with the Illinois justice system for hgr entire
career and her personal reputation as a member of that system is being
harmed and questioned based upon the facts pled in this petition.
Petitioner served in the judiciary of the State of [llinois from 1985-2011.
Petitioner has been questioned by people across the country about the
“Iilinois Justice system” with derogatory labels about the Illinois courts,
judges, prosecutors and personnel.

Petitioner has been harmed by these words and her ability to live
peacefully has been diminished.

Petitioner is an active member of her community and has witnessed this
case @d its handling as a consistent and upsetiing topic of concern for the
people of Cook County.

Petitioner is concerned that without a special prosecutor that the public
perception of Cook County and Chicago will be harmed, bringing harm to
all the residents of Cook County.

Petitioner and all residents of Chicago and Cook County and our justice

system, have been subject to ridicule and disparaging comments in the
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12,

13.

media and have been the subject of comedy routines on national television,
all to our detriment.

Petitioner is not seeking any public office and has no intention to seek
another public office during her lifetime.

Petitioner has no agenda in this proceeding - other than seeking the truth

and restoring public confidence in the Cook County State’s Attorney’s

Petitioner was licensed to practice law in the State of Illinois in 1980 and in
the State of Missouri in 1981. Upon her retirement in 2011, petitioner
moved those licenses to the status of “retired”. Petitioner has done some
sporadic consulting during retivemeit.

Petitioner has drafted, typed, filed, copied and will serve this peiition
herself and is not represented by any law firm, nor has she been assisted by
any group. Petitioner apologies for any typos or errors in formatting.
Petitioner will not speak ouiside the courtrooins of Cook County about this
petition while this case is pending. Everything petitioner will do
concerning this petition will be in open court, for all to see, hear and
witness.

Petitioner does not know Kim Foxx, the State’s Attorney of Cook County
and has no vendetta against her or the State’s Attorney’s Office. Petitioner
does not know Jussie Smollett, had never heard of him or his television
show until this case was reported in the news media and has no vendetia

against Jussic Smollett. Petitioner knows Patricia Holmes as an attorney




and has worked with her in the past, has no vendetta against Patricia
Holmes and respects her ability as an attorney. Petitioner has not consulted

with any of these people concerning this case or this petition.

FACT TIMELINE IN THE
PEOPLE of the STATE of ILLINOIS v. JUSSIE SMOLLETT
INVESTIGATION AND PROSECUTION

Jan. 22, 2019

-~ Jussie Smollett is an actor appearing in a television series named “Empire”. Jussie
Smollett reports receiving an envelope addressed to him at his production studios on
Chicago’s West Side. The enveiope is postmarked in southwesi suburban Bedford Fark four
days earlier, on Jan. 18. The letters “MAGA”™ are written, in red ink, in the refurn address
section of the envelope. Smollett tells police that he and the show’s executive producer used
gloves to open the envelope. Inside was a threat in cut-out letters: “You will die black
(expletive).” There was white powder in the envelope, but it was determined to be crushed

pain reliever, according to police.

 Jan. 29, 2019

— Smollett reports he was attacked by two men while outside getting food from a Subway
sandwich shop around 2 a.m. Smollett, African-American and openly gay. said he was
walking back to his apartment in the 300 block of East North Waier Street when two men
walked up, yelied racial and homophobic slurs, declared “This is MAGA country,” hit him

and wrapped a noose around his neck. The men also poured an “unknown substance”™ on him.

Jan. 30, 2019
— The Chicago Police Department reports it has at least a dozen detectives reviewing

hundreds of hours of surveillance camera footage, including of Smollett walking downtown,




but none of the videos show the attack. Police release images of two people in the area at the
time. The two people were captured by a surveillance camera on New Street near Illinois
Street between 1:30 and 1:45 a.m, Smollett said he was attacked about 15 to 30 minutes later
around the corner. The images are dark and the faces indistinguishable.

_ Members of the United States Congress, television talk show hosts and public figures

express outrage by social media over Smollett’s attack.

Jan. 31,2019

—_The President of the United States telis reporters that he saw a story the evening before
about Smolleit and that, "It doesn't get worse, as far as I'm concerned.”

—Smollett's family issues a statement calling the attack a racial and homophobic hate crime.
The family says he "has told the police everything" and "his story has never

changed," disputing assertions on social media that he has been less than cooperative and has

changed his story.

Feb. 1,2019

— Smollett issues a statement telling people that he is OK and thanking them for their
support. He says he is working with authorities and has been " 100 percent factual and
consistent on every level.”

--Foxx receives and responds to texts from a private attomey requesting that Foxx refer the

case to the federal authorities and communicate with Smollett’s family. Foxx begins

communications with Smollett’s family.

Feb. 12, 2019

— The Chicago Police Department says Smollett turned over some, but not all, of the phone
records that the detectives requested as part of their investigation. Smollett said his music
manager was on the phone with him at the time of the attack and can corroborate this story.
Palice say the heavily redacted files aren't sufficient. Smollett says the information was

redacted to protect the privacy of contacts and people not relevant to the attack.




Feb, 14, 2019

— Smollett says on a national television interview, “You do such a disservice when you lie
about things like this.” He says he is convinced that the men in the surveillance images were
his attackers. “I don’t have any doubt in my mind that that’s them. Never did.”

— The Chicago Police Department announce hours later that detectives are interviewing the
two "persons of interest" captured on video. A law enforcement source said the two men,
brothers in their 20s, were brought in for questioning Wednesday night from O’Hare
International Airport after arriving from Nigeria. One of them worked as an extra on
Smollett’s television show “Empire”, according to the media report.

—- The Chicago Police Department later says that local media reports that the attack against

Smolleit was a hoax are unconfirmed.

Feb. 15,2019

—The Chicago Police Department spokesman Anthony Guglielmi says the two "persons of
interest" are now considered potential suspects. He says the men are brothers, are in custody
but have not been charged with a crime.

— Twelve hours later, the Chicago Police Department reieases the brothers, saying the
brothers are no longer were considered suspects. “Due to new evidence as a result of today’s
interrogations, the individuals questioned by police in the Empire case have now been released
without charging and detectives have additional investigative work to complete,” Guglielmi

said in a tweet.

Feb. 16,2019

— Chicago newspapers report that a law enforcement source says the Chicago Police
Department is investigating whether Smolleit paid the two brothers to stage an attack,
following up on information provided by the two brothers while they were in custody

— The attorney for the brothers, Gloria Schmidt, is asked whether Smollett set up the attack.




“There’s still a lot of moving parts to this. ... I'm not part of Jussie’s defense," she said. "P'm
not part of what's going on with him. I can just tell you that my guys (are) innocent of the
charge and they're going home."

— Smollett issues a statement saying, “Jussie Smollett is angered and devastated by recent
reports that the perpetrators are individuals he is familiar with. He has been further victimized
by claims attributed to these alleged perpetrators that Jussie played a role in his own attack.
Nothing is further from the truth." The statement said one of the brothers was Smollett's
personal trainer. Media reports say that the brothers worked with Smollett on his television

show.

Feb. 19, 2019

— Foxx savs recuses herself from the case. Foxx says she made the decision "out of an_

abundance of caution" because of her "famitiarity with potential wituesses in the case.”

(Exhibit 2 attached)

Feb. 20, 2015

_-Smollett is charged with disorderly conduct for allegedly filing a false police report about
the attack. The Chicago Police Department announces that Smollett is officially classified as
a suspect in a criminal investigation for filing a false police report, which is a felony.

--One of Foxx's aides says that Foxx “had conversations with a family member of Jussie
Smollett about the incident” after the initial report of the atiack and “facilitated a connection to
the Chicago Police Department who were investigating the incident.”

— Former Cook County State’s Attorney Anita Alvarez writes on a website, “Maybe I should
have just recused myself from the difficult cases that came across my desk when I was state's
attorney. 1 was under the impression that when the voters elected me and ! took my oath of

office it meant I had to do my job.”

Feb. 21, 2019

— Smollett surrenders to Chicago police and is arrested in the early morning hours. He is
booked and his mug shot is taken.

— Chicago police Superintendent Eddie Johnson says Smolleit faked both the threatening




letter and the attack because “he was dissatisfied with his salary” on the television show.
Johnson calis the alleged hoax “despicable” and says Smollett “dragged Chicago’s reputation
through the mud.”

— Smollett appears in court, has his bond set at $100,000. Smollett will have to post $10,000
cash and surrender his passport as a condition of his bond. Smollett posts his bond and is
released.

—Smollett’s legal team releases a statement maintaining Smollett’s innocence: “The
presumption of innocence, a bedrock in the search for justice, was trampled upon at the
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expense of Mz, Smollett and notably, on the eve of a mayoral election. Mi. Smolle
man of impeccable character and integrity who fiercely and solemnly maintains his innocence
and feels betrayed by a system that apparently wants to skip due process and proceed directly

fo sentencing.”

Feh 25,2010

— In an interview on a national morning television show,” Chicago Police Superintendent
Eddie Johnson says that Smollett paid the two brothers money by check io stage the aitack.
Johnson disputes media reports that Smollett paid the two brothers for personal training and

nutrition. Johnson said there is more evidence against Smollett that hasn’t been disclosed yet.

March 8, 2019

— A Cook County grand jury indicts Smollett on 16 counts of disorderly conduct for
allegedly lying to police about being the victim of a racist and homophobic attack. Smollett’s
attorney said the new charges, which came a little more than two weeks after Smollett was

charged with a single felony count, are overkill.

March 13, 2019

—Text and emails provided to the media show that State’s Attorney Foxx had asked Chicago
Police Superintendent Johnson to turn over the investigation of Smollett’s reported attack to
the FBI at the urging of a politically connected lawyer. The exchanges began Feb. 1, three

days after Smollett claimed he was attacked near his Streeterville apartment building. The




released texts stopped on Feb. 13, the same day a memo was sent out by Foxx’s office saying

that she “is recused” from the Smollett investigation,

March 14, 2019
— Smollett pleads not guilty to the 16 counts of disorderly conduct.

March 24, 2019
-- Foxx says on a radio station, “Every day... there are people who get similar arrangements
... people who get sentences that are probably not what some people would want., Every single

day.”

March 26, 2019

—The Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office drops all charges against Smollett in court. The
case is not on the Court Clerk’s regular calendar. No notice was given to the Chicago Police
Department nor the media. The Court file is sealed. The Cleik’s file is crased.

~The Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office issues a statement, “After reviewing all of the
facts and circumstances of the case, including Mr. Smollett’s volunteer service in the
community and agreement to forfeit his bond to the City of Chicago, we believe this outcome
is a just disposition and appropriate resolution ta this case.”

--Smollett’s attorneys issued a statement after the announcement, saying their client had been
“vilified.” Smollett says he is thankful for the support from friends and family, and that he
was glad the state was “attempting to do what’s right.” “I have been truthful and consistent
from day one.”

—-The Mayor of the City of Chicago publicly calls the dismissal a “whitewash of justice”.

--Intense national media coverage continues.

March 27, 2019
—The Chicago Police Department releases a redacted file containing some of their
investigative materials. The Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office informs the police not to

release any additional information.
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--Foxx tells the Chicago Sun-Times, “I believe based on the information that was

presented before the grand jury, based on what I’ve seen, the office had a strong case ... that
would have convinced a trier of fact.”

-The Qffice of the State’s Attorney says that Foxx’s recusal was only informal.

-Foxx says the court file should remain public.

--By the afternoon, the Clerk of the Circuit Court has no record of the case. The file has been
moved to the Clerl’s storage. The file is not accessible to the public.

--The National District Attorneys Association, which bills itself as the country’s biggest

organization of proseculors, releases a statement saying that Foxx’s entire office should have
been recused. The group also condemned the case as being resolved without a finding of guilt
or innocence, and said it illustrated that “the rich are treated differently [and] the politically

connected receive favorable treatment.”

March 28,2019

—The President of the United States sends a tweet saying the FBI and Department of Justice
would review the handling of the Jussie Smollett case in Chicago, calling it "outrageous" and
"an embarrassment to our Nation!"

—— Smollett’s attorney appears on national televisions and suggests that the African-American
brothers in the case wore white make-up around their eyes, under ski masks, to disguise
themselves while attacking her client, which would explain why Smoliett identified his
attackers as white or pale-skinned.

— Attorneys for the Chicago' Tribune and other news organizations go to Cook County

court to block records from being destroyed if Jussie Smollett’s legal team seeks to expunge
his criminal case.

--The llinois Prosecutors Bar Association issues a critique of how Cook County prosecutors
went about dropping all the charges against Mr. Smollett. A statement says that Foxx and her
representatives “have fundamentally misled the public on the law and circumstances
surrounding the dismissal.” It says the approach was “abnormal and unfamiliar” o those in
criminal law in Illinois. The Association points to the secrecy around the hearing where the

charges were dropped, saying that it added to an “appearance of impropriety.”

3




March 29, 2019

— Foxx writes in the Chicago Tribune that she welcomes an “an outside, nonpolitical
review of how we handled this matter” and says that the evidence against the TV star

turned out fo be weaker than was initially presented when the state sought charges.

April 4,2019
The North Suburban Chiefs of Police issue a no-confidence statement in Kim Foxx as the

Cook County State’s Attorney.
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DISCUSSION

Section 3-9008 of the Counties Code (55 IL.CS 5/3-9008 (West 2018)) is
clear on its face, not subject to interpretation and requires the Court to appoint a
special prosecutor where, as here, the State’s Attorney is unable to fulfill her
duties, has an actual conflict of interest or has recused herself,

The Court can and must appoint a special prosecutor without an evidentrary
hearing where, as here, the facts as known warrant it.

First, this Court must appoint a special prosecutor pursuant to section 3-
9008 (a-5) because Kim Foxx was umable to fulfill her duties in the Jussie
Smollett case, Section 3-9008(a-5) states:

“The court on its own motion, or an interested person in a ¢ause or
proceeding, civil or criminal, may file a petition afleging that the State's Attorney
is sick, absent, or unable to fulfill his or her duties. The court shall consider the
petition, any documents filed in response, and if necessary, grant a hearing to
determine whether the State's Attorney is sick, absent, or otherwise unable to
fulfill his or her duties. If the court finds that the State's Attorney is sick, absent,
or otherwise unable to fulfill his or her duties, the court may appoint some
competent attorney to prosecute or defend the cause or proceeding.”

By her own adinission, Foxx was unable to fulfill her duties in the Jussie Smollett
case. On Feb. 19, 2019, Foxx says she decided to recuse herself from the Jussie Smollett
case "out of an abundance of caution" because of her "familiarity with potential witnesses
in the case.” This statement alone indicates her acknowledgment of a potential conflict of
interest such that she could not fulfill her duties in this case, whether she filed a formal
recusal or not. Thus, the Court could have appointed a special prosecutor if it had been

brought to the Court’s attention and should appoint a special prosecutor now.
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Second, this Court must appoint a special prosecutor pursuant 1o section 3-
9008 (a-15) (55 ILCS 5/3-9008(a-15)West 2018)) becausc Kim Foxx recused
herself in the Jussie Smollett case. Section 3-9008(a-15) states:

“Notwithstanding subsections (a-3) and (a-10) of this Section, the

State’s Attorney may file a petition to recuse himself or herself from a

cause or proceeding for any other reason he or she deems appropriate

and the court shall appoint a special prosecutor as provided in this

Section.”

On February 19, Foxx said she recused herself; she vsed the word “recuse”
and issued statements to the public indicating that she recused herself. On
March 27, after the charges against Mr. Smollett had been dropped and she
faced withering criticism of her handling of the case, Foxx’s office said she did
not formally recuse herself “in a legal sensé” but only in a “colloquial” sense.
However, an internal memo sent on February 13 by Foxx’s chief ethics officer,
did not describe the move as colloquial at all. Instead, Foxx’s chief ethics
officer sent a two-sentence email informing staff that Foxx “is recused” from
the Smollett investigation. We are unable to see if she filed a formal recusal
because the file has been sealed.

The public should be able to rely upon Foxx’s use of the word “recuse” as
indicia of a recusal although there are no cases dealing with this issue. She is
our lawyer. We are her clients. We should be able to rely upon our lawyer’s
word. To find that Foxx’s clear statement of recusal was something other than
a recusal would indicate that she was being less than truthful in her handling of

the Smollett case and in her statements to the public. Because she recused
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herself, the Court shall appoint a special prosecutor as provided in this Section.
In the alternative, Foxx’s use of the word “recuse” indicates her subjective
belief that she had a conflict with prosecuting Jussie Smoliett and thus, was
unable to fulfill her duties as defined.
Third, this Court can appoint a special prosecutor because State’s Attorney

Kim Foxx has publicly stated on March 29, 2019 that she welcomes “an outside,

r
:
]

noipolitical review o his matter” and thus, the State’s Attorney
has publicly waived any objection to this petition. See Gallagher v. Lenart, 220 I,
2d 208 (2007) (waiver is the intentional relinguishment of « known right).

Fourth, this Court must appoint a special prosecutor because justice demands
it, The State’s Attorney’s actions in this case, recounted above, create an
appearance of impropriety, a perception that justice was not served here, that
Mr. Smollett received special treatment due to his fame and privilege and
political connections. A public view of the court file in this case could
potentially partially remedy this perception, but the file has been sealed from
the public view. The public has no remedy other than to petition this Court for
the appointment of an independent special prosecutor to investigate how this
case was handled by the Office of the State’s Attomey and whether the actions
were consistent with the handling of similar cases. An independent special
prosecutor is necessary to renew public confidence in our system of justice.

The rule of law, fair and impartiai justice, and fundamental fairness are

threatened by the actions described in this petition.

13




The people deserve the truth. The whole truth. Help us get the truth.

This petition is not about personalities. This petition is about equal justice
under the law for all - the bedrock of our nation.

Fifih, this Court must appoint a special prosecutor if only for procedural
reasons. The evidence for this petition is what is reported in the press, not
traditional evidence under oath. A special prosecutor needs to be appointed to
gather a complete record of the facts under oath. ‘Those facts could then be
presented to this Court on a further hearing on this motion to determine whether

further consideration of the People of the State of Illinois v, Jussie Smollett is

warranied.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
For the foregoing reasons, Petitioner requests that this Court grant
Petitioner’s Motion instanter or that this Court, on its own motion, appoint a
special prosecutor instanter to:
1. investigate and prosecute the People of the State of Illinois v.

Jussie Smollett, filed in the Circuit Court of Cook County and

dismissed on March 26, 2019.

2. investigate the actions of any person and/or office involved in

16




the investigation, prosecution and dismissal of People of the

State of Illinois v. Jussie Smollett

. investigate the recusal procedures of the Office of the State’s
Attorney of Cook County, whether and when those procedures
were changed and whether those procedures were applied in

People of the Siate of Illinois v. Jussie Smollett

. investigate the deferred prosecution procedures of the Oifice of
the State’s Attorney of Cook County, whether and when those
procedures were changed and whether those procedures were

applied in People of the State of Illinois v. Jussie Smolleti

. investigate the non-violent offenders procedures of the Office of
the State’s Attorney of Cook County, whether and when those
procedures were changed and whether those procedures were

applied in People of the State of Illinois v. Jussie Smollett

. investigate the charging procedures of the Office of the State’s
Attorney of Cook County, whether and when those procedures
were changed and whether those procedures were applied in

People of the State of Illinois v. Jussie Smollett

. investigate the pre-trial/bond procedures of the Office of the
State’s Attorney of Cook County, whether and when those
procedures were changed and whether those procedures were

applied in People of the State of lilinois v. Jussie Smollett.
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8.

ek
<

il

12.

investigate whether criminal charges should be brought against
any person in connection with the investigation, prosecution and
dismissal of the People of the State of [ilinois v. Jussie Smollett
and to file and prosecute those criminal charges.

hold regularly scheduled press conferences, open to the public,

to inform the public of the progress of these investigations.

. comply with the laws of the Stale of IHinois in People of the

State of Nlinois v. Jussie Smollett filed in the Circuit Court of

Cook County. And, further that this Court, pursuant to 55 ILCS
/3-9008:

contact the State Agencies named in 55 ILCS 5/3-9008 to find
the appropriate person to act as a special prosecutor and in
addition/alternative,

that this Court consider receiving written proposals — to be filed
in this file and open to the public - from any and all attorneys
licensed in the State of Illinois who believe they are qualified to
serve as a special prosecutor, that such proposals contain the
qualifications of the attorney, the expected time needed by the
attorney to investigate adequately, the fee to be paid to the
attorney and his/her staff and that such proposals not exceed
three pages single spaced and that such proposals be filed within

ten (10) business days from a date set by this court, all for this

18




court’s consideration of the best person to be appointed as the

special prosecutor in this matter.

Respectfully submitted,

In
it Y (T Bun

Sheila M. O’ Brien, pro se

Sheila M. O’Brien

Fro Se

360 E. Randolph #1801
Chicago, Tilinois 60601
224.766.1904
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Sheila M. O'Brien, the undersigned, pro se, certifies that she served the
foregoing Notice of Motion and Petition to Appoint a Special Prosecutor in the
Matter of the People of the State of Tllinois v, Jussie Smollet, by hand delivery

before the hour of 5:00 p.m. on Friday, April 3, 2019:

Kim Foxx

Cook County State's Attorney
2650 S. California

Chicago, Illinois 60608

50 W. Washington St., Suite 500
Chicago, Illinois 60602

Patricia Holmes
Attorney for Jussie Smoliett
70 West Madison Street, Suite 2900

Chicago, lilinois 60602

Sheila M. O’Brien

Pro Se

360 E. Randolph #1801
Chicago, Illinois 60601
224.766.1904
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Sheila M. O’Brien, Pro se
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FILED
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DOROTHY BROWN

CIRCUIT CLERK
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINCIS COOK COUNTY, IL

COUNTY DEPARTMENT, LAW DIVISION

CITY OF CHICAGO, a municipal corporatien, )

Plaintifs, ; <, 20191003898
v )
JUSSIE SMOLLETT, an individual ;
Defendant. ;
COMPLAINT

Plaintiff the City of Chicago (*City™), by its Corporation Counsel, Edward N. Siskel,
brings this Complaint under the City’s False Statements Ordinance (“FSO"), § 1-21-010, et seq.
of the Municipal Code of Chicago (*MCC™}, and the City's Cost Recovery Ordinance (“CRO™),
MCC § 1-20-619, & seg. against Defendant Jussie Smollett ( “Defendant™), seeking celiel against
Defendant for false statements he made to the City, and seeking recovery of the costs of
necessary services provided by the City due to Defendant’s violations of the MCC, and in
support alleges as follows:

NATURE OfF THE CASE

1. This action is brought by the City to recover civil penalties, statutory trebie
damages. and attorney's fees and costs arising. from Defendant’s false statements to the City. On
January 29, 2019, Defendant submitted a false police report claiming that he was the victim of a
racist and homophobic beating by unknown attackers. In reality, Defendant knew his attackers
and orchestrated the purported attack himself. Later, when police confronted him with evidence
about his attackers, he still refused to disclose his involvement in planning the attack. In
investigating Defendant’s false statements and false police report, the City incurred significant

costs in order to provide services reasonably related to Defendant’s conduct.




FILED DATE: 4/11/2019 5:19 PM  2013L003898

PARTIES
1. The City is a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of Illinois.
2. Defendant is an actor on the television show “Empire,” which is primarily filmed
in Chicago. While working on “Empire,” and at all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendant

resided in the Streeterville neighborhood in Chicago, Hlinois.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
3 This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to the Illinois
Constitution art. VI, § 9.
4. This Court has jurisdiction over Defendant pursuant to 735 1LCS 572-209 because

Defendam vioiated the MCC by making false statements in Chicago, lilinois, and the City
incurred significant costs in order to provide services reasonably related to Defendant’s false
statements.

5. Venue in Cook County is proper because this cause of action arose in Cook

County, lllinois.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

A. Defendant orchestrates and plans a fake attack.

6. In the fall of 2017, Defendant became friends with an individual named Abimbola
Osundairo (“Abel™), who is 25 years old and has worked with Defendant on Empire. During the
course of their friendship, Defendant and Abel socialized and exercised together, and Defendant

occasionally asked for Abel’s assistance in obtaining recrcational drugs.
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7. On the morning of January 25, 2019, Defendant texted Abel asking when Abel
would be leaving on his upcoming trip to Nigeria with his 27-year-old brother, Olabinjo
Osundairo (“Ola™).

8. Abel responded to Defendant via text message that he and Ola were scheduled to
depart the evening of January 29, 2019,

9, After Abel confirmed the date and time of his trip, Defendant texted Abel, “Might
need your help on the low. You around to meet up and talk face to face?”

10.  That same day, Januvary 25, 2019, GPS records and video evidence indicate that
Defendant drove Abel from Empire’s Cinespace Studio to Abel’s apartment. During the ride,
Defendant stated that he was unhappy with the way his employers handled a racist and
homophobic lefter he had allegodly received three days eailier, and, as a resull, he wanied o
siage an attack where Abel would appear o batier him.

11, Video evidence shows that Defendant and Abel reached Abel’s apartiment at
approximately 5:00 P.M, on January 25® When they arrived, Ola. who was then living with
Abel, came out of the apartment and sai with Defendant and Abel in Defendant’s vebicle. Once
inside, Defendant asked Ola if he could trust him and Ola assented.

12.  After Ola attested to his trusiworthiness, Defendant and Abel and Ola (the
“Osundairo Brothers™) discussed their plan to stage a fake racist and homophobic attack on
Defendant. Defendant direcied the Osundairo Brothers to stage the fake attack on the evening of
January 28, 2019, near his apartment building in Streeterville. Defendant and the Osundairo
Brothers agreed that the Osundairo Brothers would catch Defendant’s attention, and the fake

attack would begin when the Osundairo Brothers called Defendant an “Empire F----- Empire N--

”
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13.  On January 27, 2019, video, GPS, and text message evidence indicates that
Defendant again met with the Osundairo Brothers to finalize the details of the staged attack. On
that day, Defendant drove the Osundairo Brothers to the location where he wanted the staged
attack to take place, which was the corner of New Street and North Water Street in Chicago,
[ifinois.”

14.  While at that location, Defendant directed the Osundairo Brothers’ attention to a
surveillance camera, which Defendant believed would capture the incident.

i5.  Defendant and the Osundairo Brothers coordinated the details of the fake attack.
They agreed that Abel would attack Defendant, but would not hurt him too badly and would give
Defendant a chance to appear to fight back.

1€, They also discussed having the Osundairo Brotherns place a o
Defendant’s neck and pour iiquid on him,

{7.  Defendant told the Osundairo Brothers that he wanted the attack to take place the
following night at 10:00 P.M., and instructed them not to bring their cell phones with them,

18.  Defendant provided Abel with a $100 bill to purchase the ciothing and materials
needed for the staged attack.

19.  During the same conversation in which Defendant and the Osundairo Brothers
planned the fake attack, Defendant also gave Abel a three thousand five hundred dollar ($3,500)
personal check made payable to Abel. The memo line of the check contained the words, “5
week nutrition/ workout program {don’t go).”

20,  Video evidence confirms that on Janvary 28, 2019, the Osundaire Brothers

purchased a rope at a hardware store and clothing items at a beauty supply store.
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21.  Abel deposited the check Defendant gave him into Abel’s bank account on
January 28, 2019. The following day, Abel transferred half of that amount ($1,750) to Ola’s

bank account,

B. Defendant and the Osundairo Brothers execute the staged attack.

22.  After the “run-through” of the staged attack, Defendant traveled to New York,
and was scheduled to return on January 28, 2019.

23.  On the evening of Janvary 28, 2019, Defendant’s flight into Chicago was delayed,
and he called Abel telling him he needed to delay the staged attack, and Abel agreed.

24,  Defendant’s plane landed at Chicago O'Hare International Airport (“O’Hare™) at
12:30 A.M., on January 29, 2019.

25.  Cell phone records indicate that at 12:49 A.M., Detendant and Abel spoke by
telephone. During this calf, Defendant told Abel the attack should take place at 2:00 A.M. at the
agreed-upon location. Minutes later, Ola ordered an Uber to pick the Osundairo Brothers up at
their home,

76,  The Osundairo Brothers took an Uber to the 1400 block of North Wells, where
they flagged down a taxi that took them to within three blocks of the agreed-upon location of the
staged attack, The taxi's in-car video captures the Osundairo Brothers flagging the car and
riding in the back seat.

27.  From approximately 1:22 A.M. unti! approximately 2:03 A.M.,, video evidence
shows the Osundairo Brothers on foot in an area bordered by Lake Shore Drive, Columbus
Drive, [llinois Street, and the Chicago River.

28.  Video evidence also shows Defendant returning to his Streeterville apartment at

approximately 1:30 AM.
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29. At 1:45 AM., Defendant left his building to walk to a nearby Subway restaurant
at [flinois Street and McClurg Court.

30, At 2:00 A.M,, surveillance video evidence shows the Osundairo Brothers waiting
near New Street and North Water Street.

31.  During an interview Defendant gave on ABC’s Good Morning America, which
aired on February 14, 2019, he positively identified the people shown in a still of this
surveillance video {the “Still Photo™) as his attackers.

32.  The two men in this Still Photo are the Osundairo Brothers.

33.  Shortly after 2:00 A.M., the Osundairo Brothers staged their attack on Defendant.

34, After the staged attack, the Osundairo Brothers ran from the location, flagged a
faxi, and were dropped off near thelr home gt approximately 2

LN Defendant onakes a false police repori to the Ciiy.

35. At 2:27 AM.,, after Defendant told his manager, Frank Gatison, that he had been

attacked, Gatson called the Chicago Police Department (“CPD”) to report the incident as a bona

fide attack on Defendant.

36, At 2:42 AM., CPD officers arrived at Defendant's apartment and found
Defendant with & rope draped around his neck.

37.  Defendant proceeded to make a false police report.

38.  Defendant iold CPD officers that he was the victim of a racist and homophobic
physical attack.

39, Defendant made this report to the CPD officers despite knowing that the

purparied attack was not for racist or homophobic motives, that his purported attackers were, in




FILED DATE: 4/11/2019 5:19 PM  2019.003898

fact, his acquaintances, and that he had asked his purported attackers, the Osundairo Brothers, to
stage the atiack,

40,  Defendant told the CPD officers thét, during the attack, his purported attackers
had placed a rope around his neck, poured a liquid chemical on him, and told him this is “MAGA
Country.”

41.  Defendant did not tell the CPD officers that his attack was staged at his direction
and with the cooperation of the Osundairo Brothers.

42, Defendant told the CPD officers that the incident happened near a camera that
should have captured the attack. That is the same camera Defendant pointed out to the
Qsundairo Brothers on January 27, 2019,

43, Alno point did Defendant inform police that he kaew his atiachers or rccognized
their appearance or voices.

44.  Instead, Defendant misled the CPD officers when he described his attackers.

45.  Defendant told the CPD officers that his primary attacker (now known to be Abel)
was wearing a ski mask that covered his enfire face, with the exception of tie area around his
eyes, by which Defendant could tell the attacker was white-skinned. Defendant made this
statement despite knowing that the Osundairo Brothers are not white-skinned.

46. By providing this false description, Defendant purposely misled the CPD officers
to believe that his attackers were white, when, in fact, Defendant knew that his attackers were the
Osundairo Brothers.

47, Defendant and the Osundario Brothers continued to be in contact after the staged

attack, including on January 29, 2019 at 7:45 P.M, and on january 30, 2019 at 10:46 A.M.
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D. CPD investigates Defendant’s false report at significant expense to the City.

48, For the next two weeks, the CPD expended significant resources investigating
Defendant’s false report of a high-profile hate crime and physical assault. Over two dozen CPD
officers and detectives participated in the investigation, ultimately spending weeks investigating
Defendant’s false statements. During the course of CPD’s investigation into Defendant’s false
statements, CPD has incurred 1,836 overtime hours, which resulied in the City paying
$130,106.15 in overtime pay as result of Defendant’s false statements.

49, Eventually, afier an extensive investigation using interviews, surveillance videos,
Office of Emergency Management pod videos, in-car taxi camera videos, rideshare records, bank
records, and & store receipt, CPD identified the Osundairo Brothers as the perpetrators of the
alieged attaci.

50. On February 13, 2019, the Osundairo Brothers returned from Nigeria. They were
immediately and separately detained upon their arrival at O’Hare, CPD investigators thereafier
obtained testimony and corroborating evidence from the Osundairo Brothers that showed
Defendant had orchestrated and staged the attack with the cooperation of the Osundaire Brothers,
and that Defendant’s police report was false.

5t On February 14, 2019, CPD officers interviewed Defendant again about the Still
Photo that he had said on Good Morning Ameriga showed his attackers. Defendant again stated
that he was certain that the Still Photo depicted the men who had attacked him.

52. CPD officers then told Defendant that the men in the Still Photo had been

identified as the Osundairo Brothers.
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53. Defendant made further false statements by claiming that his only relationship
with the Osundairo Brothers was as trainers and social acquaintances, claiming that they could
not have been his attackers.

54, Duting the February 14, 2019 interview, Defendant again failed to inform the
CPD officers that he knew that the Osundairo Brothers were his attackers and that he had
orchestrated the attack with the Osundairo Brothers” assistance.

COUNT 1: Violation of the FSO

55. The City incorporates all preceding allegations as if they were set forth herein,

56, Subsection 1-21-010(a) of the FSO provides that:

[alny person who knowingly makes a false statement of material fact to the city in
violation of any statute, ordinance or regulation, or who knowingly makes a false
statement of inaterial faci i ihe cily in connection wilh any appiicaiion, repor,
affidavit, oath, or attestation, including a statement of material fact made in
connection with a bid, proposai, contract or economic disclosure statement or
affidavit, is liable to the city for a civil penalty of not less than $500.00 and not
more than $1,000.00, plus up to three times the amount of damages which the city
sustains because of the person’s violation of this section. A person who violates
this section shall also be liable for the city's litigation and collection costs and
attorneys’ fees,

MCC § 1-21-010(a).
57. Subsection 1-21-010{d) of the FSO provides that:

[flor the purposes of Chapter 1-21 of this Code, a person knowingly makes a false
statement of material fact when that person (i) makes a statement of material fact
with actual knowledge that the statement was false, or (ii) makes a statement of
material fact with knowledge of facts or information that would cause a
reasonable person to be aware that the statement was false when it was made, or
(iii} signs, certifies, attests, submits or otherwise provides assurances, or causes
any other person to sign, certify, attest, submit or otherwise provide assurances,
that a statement of material fact is true or accurate in deliberate ignorance or
reckless disregard of the truth or falsity of the statement. For purposes of this
section, a person who fails to make a reasonable investigation to determine the
accyracy, truthfilness or completeness of any material fact acts in deliberate
ignorance or reckless disregard of the truth or falsity of the material fact.
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MCC § 1-21-010(d).

58. Defendant knowingly made numerous false statements of material fact in
violation of' the FSO.

59. Defendant knowingly made numerous false statements of material fact to CPD
officers, including when he made a police report alleging that he was the victim of a racist and
homophobic attack, when he knew that he had staged the attack with the assistance of the
Osundairo Brothers.

60. In addition, when presented with evidence that his statements were false,
Defendant again refused to inform CPD officers that he knew the Osundairo Brothers were his
attackers, and that he had orchestrated his staged attack with them.
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and manpower, including, but not iimited o, $130,106.15 in CPD overtime pay that the City paid
solely due to Defendant’s false statements.

62. Defendant is liable to the City for a $1,000 civil penalty for each false statement
he made to the City, in addition to three times the amount of the damages that the City susiained,
as well as litigation and collection costs, and attorneys’ fees.

WHEREFORE, the City respectfully requests that the Court:

A. Find Defendant liable for violating the FSO;

B. Fine Defendant a civil penalty of $1,000 for each false statement he made to the
City;

C. Enter judgment against Defendant and in favor of the City for the civil penalties

assessed, and trebled damages in an amount to be proven at trial (which includes,

10
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but is not limited to, overtime compensation paid by the City) incurred by the City
because of Defendant’s false statements;
D. Order Defendant to pay the City’s reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs; and
E. Award such further relief as this Court deems just and equitable.
COUNT 2: Vielation of the CRO

63. The City incorporates all preceding ailegations as if they were set forth herein.

64. The CRO provides that “[alny person who causes the city or its agents to incur
costs in order to provide services reasonably related to such person’s violation of any federal,
state or focal law, ot such person’s failure to correct conditions which violate any federal, state or
local law when such person was under a legal duty to do so, shall be liable to the city for those
costa.” MCC § 1-26-025.

63. Usnder the CRO. “‘costs® includes al] costs of the city incurred in relation to the
provision of services by the city or its agents, regardless of whether the city would have
otherwise incurred those costs, including but not limited to wages and benefits of personnel
involved in providing such services, reasonable costs of equipment used in the provision of such
services, costs of materials expended in providing such services, costs of storing hazardous or
any other materials recovered during the course of providing such services, or any other costs
allocable to the provision of services.” MCC § 1-20-010.

66. In addition, “[i}n any action brought under [the CRO], the City of Chicago shall
also be entitled to recover a penalty in an amount equal to the city's litigation and collection

costs and attorney’s fees,” MCC § 1-20-060.

11
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67. The City is entitled to recovery of the costs of necessary services provided by the
City in order to provide services in investigating anq responding to Defendant’s violations of the
MCC, together with its litigation and collection costs and attorney’s fees.

WHEREFORE, the City respectfully requests that the Court:

A. Find that the City incurred necessary costs investigating and responding to
Defendant’s statements made in violation of the MCC;

B. Order Defendant to pay the City’s response costs in an amount to be proven at
trial;

C. Order Defendant to pay the City a penalty in amount equal to the City’s litigation

and collection costs and attorney’s fees; and

¥

i wped forthon nattal e Ahte Mg damons tot aad oot bl
Award such further retiefl as this Court deems just and equitable.

Dated: April 11, 2019, Respectfully submitted,

EDWARD N. SISKEL
Corporation Counsel, City of Chicago

/s/ Edward N, Siskel

City of Chicago Department of Law
121 North LaSalle Street, Suite 600
Chicago, IL 60602

312-744-6076
Edward.Siskel{@cityofchicago.org
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

EASTERN DIVISION
Olabinjo Osundairo and )
Abimbola Osundairo, Individually, )
) Case No.
Plaintiffs, )
) Judge
\& )
) Magistrate Judge
Mark Geragos, Tina Glandian, )
and Gerages & Geragos Law Firm, } JURY DEMAND
)
)
Defendants. )

COMPLAINT

NOW COME Plaintiffs Olabinjo Osundairo and Abimbola Osundairo (hereinafter
“Plaintiffs” or “Osundairo brothers”), by and through their attorneys, Gregory E. Kulis &
Associates, Ltd., the Law Offices of James D. Tunick, and the Gloria Law Groﬁp, and for their
complaint against Defendants Tina Glandian, Mark Geragos, and the Geragos & Geragos Law
Firm, state as follows:

PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Olabinjo Osundairo (hereinafter “Mr. Ola Osundairo”) is an individual
who is a United States citizen, born and raised in Chicago, and continues to reside in Chicago,
[ilinois.

2. Plaintiff Abimbola Osundairo (hereinafter “Mr. Bola Osundairo™) is an individual
who is a United States citizen, born and raised in Chicago, and continues to reside in Chicago,
lilinois.

3. Defendant Tina Glandian is an attorney employed by Defendant Geragos &

Geragos Law Firm and is a resident of New York City, New York.
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4. Defendant Mark Geragos is a partner at Defendant Geragos & Geragos Law Firm
and is a resident of Los Angeles, California.

5. Defendant Geragos & Geragos Law Firm is a private law firm with its principal
place of business in Los Angeles, California, with business in Las Vegas and New York,

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. The Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants since they have availed
themselves of Illinois law in numerous ways. First, they conducted business in the State of [Hlinois.
Defendants transacted as criminal counsel for Chicago actor Justin “Jussie” Smollett (hereinafter
“Mr. Smollett”), defending his Illinois criminal case and often acting as de facto public relations
representatives while in Illinois. Second, Defendants also committed torts within the State of
Illinois by making public defamatory statements against Plaintiffs, which were published broadly
in Illinois by major news outlets such as the Chicago Sun-Times, the Chicago Tribune, and WGN
Radio. Moreover, these tortious statements involve a hoax conducted in Illinois and orchestrated
by Mr. Smollett. Finally, and importantly, these statements also impacted the reputation of
Plaintiffs, who are employed and live in Illinois. Pursuant to the Illinois Long Arm Statute and
federal law, Defendants have maintained minimum sufficient contacts with the State of Illinois to
establish personal jurisdiction. 735 ILCS 5/2-209,

7. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. §1391(b)(2), as a substantial part of the events or
omissions giving rise to the claim, as discussed in the previous paragraph, occurred in Chicago,
[llinois.

8. This Court also has subject matter jurisdiction because the amount in controversy
exceeds $75,000.00 for each Plaintiff, exclusive of interests and costs, and is between citizens of

different states, per 28 U.S.C. §1332(a).
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CHOICE OF LAW

9. This complaint will allege violations of the torts of defamation and false light,
established under the Illinois common law. This is because Iilinois choice-of-law principles hold
that the Illinois forum court must apply the substantive laws of the state where the case has “the
most significant contacts.” Snead v. Forbes, 275 N.E. 2d 746, 748-49 (1st Dist. Ill. 1971) citing
Restatement of Law, Second, Conflicts of Law §150. For the torts of defamation and false light,
this is the state in which the defamed plaintiff was domiciled at the time the tortious comments
were made, as plaintiff’s state of residence is “the place of greatest potential injury to the reputation
of plaintiff”. /d. For Plaintiffs, that state is Iilinois.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

10.  On or around the morning of Jannary 29, 2019, it was virally renorted that actor
Justin “Jussie” Smollett was attacked in Chicago’s Strecterville neighborhood while walking
home.

[1. Mr. Smollett had reported to Chicago Police that two men in ski masks pulled a
noose around his neck, poured an unknown liquid on his body, and battered him with their hands
and feet. Mr. Smollett also reported that the masked men yelled “this is MAGA country!” —
referring to President Trump’s campaign slogan “Make America Great Again” — along with
various racist and homophobic slurs,

12. Mr. Smollett’s report led to international outrage, with near unanimous calls for the
Chicago Police (hereinafter “CPD”) to find and prosecute Mr. Smolleit’s attackers. On February
15,2019, CPD’s investigation led them to the Osundairo brothers, the Plaintiffs in this case, upon
which they were taken into custody and questioned. On February 15, 2019, Plaintiffs were

promptly released without charges, as there was verification and in-depth corroboration that the
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“attack” was a hoax entirely conceived and directed by Mr, Smollett.

13. CPD and the public at large grew increasingly skeptical about the circumstances of
Mr. Smollett’s attack. As the Osundairo brothers were extras on Mr. Smollett’s television show
“Empire,” occasionally socialized with Mr. Smollett, and are also Black men, the suggestion that
they committed a brutal hate crime against Mr. Smollett raised the proverbial eyebrow,

14.  The media soon circulated CPD’s theory of what actually occurred: Mr. Smollett

is. In short, Mr. Smollett used his clout as a wealthy actor to influence Plaintiffs, who
were in a subordinate relationship to him and were aspiring to “make it” in Hollywood.

16. On January 25, 2019, Mr. Smollett told Plaintiffs, in private, that he needed a favor
from them: they were to help him stage a social media hoax and pretend o atlack him. M.
Smollett’s imotivation was simple. He wanted his employer and the public to notice and appreciate
him as a successful Black, openly gay actor. So, Mr. Smollett directed every aspect of the attack,
including the location and the noose.

17. On February 20, 2019, Plaintiffs testified truthfully before a grand jury regarding
the facts of what happened on or around January 29, 2019,

18. On March 7, 2019, Mr. Smollett was indicted for 16 felony counts of a false report
of offense pursuant to Illinois criminal statute 720 ILCS 5/26-1(a)(4). He was represented by
Defendants.

19.  In a controversial move, the Cook County State’s Attorney dropped his charges
almost immediately, less than three weeks after charging Mr. Smollett.

20.  The swifiness and manner with which Mr. Smollett’s charges were handled is

notably unheard of in Cook County. Yet, the State’s Attorney seemed satisfied by Mr. Smollett’s
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$10,000.00 payment in bond and his “community service” which he apparently already served as
a prominent Chicago figure.

21, Mr. Smollett’s charges were dropped on or around March 26, 2019.

22.  What followed was mass public outcry, including dismay from the media, several
district attorney bar associations, police unions, and the federal government, Many argued the
Cook County State’s Attorney botched the prosecution of Mr. Smollett’s case. Some suggested
that the State’s Attorney cut him a deal due to his affluence and celebrity.

23, Mr. Smollett’s attorneys, faced with an outraged public, did not retreat after their
success. Instead they doubled down, not simply affirming that Mr. Smollett was a wholly innocent
victim, but that (among other accusations) Plaintiffs unequivocally led a criminally homophobic,
racist, and violent attack against Mr. Smollett. Defendants made these comments knowing they
were untrue to distract from Mr. Smollett’s farce and to promote themselves and the Geragos &
Geragos Law Firm. This vitriol against Plaintiffs is tortious and comprises the substance of the
following allegations.

DEFENDANT TINA GLANDIAN

COUNT I
COMMON LAW DEFAMATION PER SE

L Statements Accusing Plaintiffs of Committing a Hate Crime, Perjury, and
Conspiring to Make False Statements to Chicago Police

24, On or around March 27, 2019, Defendant Tina Glandian appeared on Good
Mormning America, aired by the American Broadcasting Corporation (“ABC”). On or around
March 28, 2019, Ms. Glandian appeared the Today show, aired by the National Broadcasting

Company (“NBC”). In both appearances, Ms. Glandian discussed her client, Mr. Smollett, and his
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criminal case. The following statements were echoed in numerous other publications, including
the podcast Reasonable Doubt.

25.  All the statements alleged below were in concert and coordination with Defendant
Mark Geragos and Defendant Geragos & Geragos Law Firm.

26.  Ms. Glandian insisted Mr. Smollett was innocent of making a false police report
and falsely added that Plaintiffs criminally attacked Mr. Smollett.

27 Ms. Glandian then falsely submitted that Plaintiffs may have been wearing
“whiteface” while attacking Mr. Smollett — again stating Plaintiffs battered Mr. Smollett and
adding the implication that this battery was a hate crime.

28.  Ms. Glandian’s statements that Plaintiffs committed a hate crime against Mr.
Smollett and donned whiteface were published to third parties everywhere as they were
broadcast by ABC and NBC, and were republished in numerous newspapers, blogs, and
periodicals. |

29.  Ms. Glandian’s statements explicitly identify Plaintiffs as the subject of her
accusations, as she was responding directly to questions about the Osundairo brothers.

30.  Ms. Glandian’s statements indicating Plaintiffs actually criminally battered Mr.
Smollett without his consent are patently false and defamatory, as Mr. Smollett originated,
planned, and orchestrated the attack.

31 Ms. Glandian, in stating that Plaintiffs criminally battered My, Smollett, implicitly
proffered that Plaintiffs are guilty of perjuring themselves during the February 20, 2019 grand jury

proceedings, and she specifically stated such in media appearances.
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32. Ms. Glandian, in stating that Plaintiffs criminally battered Mr. Smollett, implicitly
proffered that Plaintiffs are guilty of conspiring to give false statements and/or giving false
statements to Chicago Police, and she specifically stated such in media appearances.

33. Ms. Glandian’s statements that Plaintiffs donned “whiteface” on the day of Mr.
Smeollett’s alleged attack are patently false and defamatory, as neither wore “whiteface” or
pretended in any way to be Caucasian.

34, Ms. Glandian’s statements were made after the closc of Mr, Smollett’s criminal
case, did not serve any legal function, and was not a requirement of her job as a defense attorney.

35. Instead, these statements were unnecessarily made on national media to advance

Mr. Smollett’s and Ms. Glandian’s reputation and fame at high cost to Plaintiffs.

37. Thus, Ms. Glandian’s statements have caused Plaintiffs irreparable financial
damage.

38. As a result of Ms. Glandian’s comments, Plaintiffs have suffered significant
emotional distress and feel unsate and alienated in their local Chicago community. This is because
Ms. Glandian, a very famous aftorney, falsely and publicly stated Plaintiffs have committed a
gruesome hate crime, lied under oath, and intentionally misled CPD.

39. Ms. Glandian’s statements have caused Plaintiffs severe emotional damage.

40. Ms. Glandian, in falsely accusing Plaintiffs of committing a hate crime, perjuring
themselves, and making false statements to a police officer, has acted with fault clearly amounting

to negligence and/or actual malice.
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41. Ms. Glandian’s comments, in falsely accusing Plaintiffs of committing a hate
crime, perjuring themselves, and making false statements to a police officer, are defamatory per
se under Illinois common law.

42.  As aresult of Ms. Glandian’s false and defamatory statements, Plaintiffs suffered
and will continue to suffer damage, including economic damages, damages to their reputations,
and/or damage to current and prospective business relations.

IL Statements Harming Plaintiffs in their Profession and Implying a Lack of Integrity
in Plaintiffs’ Professional Duties

43.  On or around April 6, 2019, Defendant Tina Glandian further discussed PIair_ltiffs
on the Reasonable Doubt podcast,

44. Ms. Glandian’s statements were made afler the close of Mr. Smollett’s criminal
case, did not serve any legal function, and were not a requirement of her job as a defense attorney.

45. Ms. Glandian knew that Plaintiffs were partially self-employed, as creators and
promotors of their brand “Team Abel”. Team Abel advises and demonstrates how to strengthen
and build muscle while maintaining a healthy, steroid-free diet and fitness regimen.

46. Ms. Glandian falsely stated that Plaintiffs are involved in “illegal” Nigerian steroid
trafficking, and that these steroids help clients lose weight.

47. Ms. Glandian added, scoffing, that Plaintiffs” “platform. . . is all about being
steroid-free . . . Their whole thing is, you know, all-natural bodybuilding. It’s ridiculous.”

48. Plaintiffs do not use or distribute illegal Nigerian steroids.

49.  Ms. Glandian’s comments are patently false and defamatory.

50, These statements were unnecessarily made publicly to numerous third parties to

advance Ms. Glandian’s reputation and fame and to undoubtedly ruin Plaintiffs’ business.




Case: 1:19-cv-02727 Document #: 1 Filed: 04/23/19 Page 9 of 16 PagelD #:9

51.  Ms. Glandian’s statements have caused considerable damage to Plaintiffs’ careers,
causing Plaintiffs irreparable financial damage, losing business and the opportunity of business,

52, Ms. Glandian’s statements have caused Plaintiffs severe emotional distress.

53. Ms. Glandian, in falsely accusing Plaintiffs of running their all-natural business
fraudulently, has acted with fault clearly amounting to negligence and/or actual malice.

54.  Ms. Glandian, in falsely accusing Plaintiffs of illegally distributing foreign steroids,
has acted with fault clearly amounting to negligence and/or actual malice.

55. Ms. Glandian, in falsely accusing Plaintiffs of professionally defrauding and
misleading clients, has committed defamation per se under Illinois law, as those statements call
into question whether Plaintiffs have integrity in performing their duties as professionals in their
industry,

56. Ms. Giandian, in falsely accusing Plaintiffs of criminally distributing foreign
unlawful steroids, has committed defamation per se under Illinois law.

57. As a result of Ms. Glandian’s false and defamatory statements concerning
Plaintiffs’ use and distribution of itlegal steroids to their clientele, Piaintiffs suffered and will
continue to suffer damage, including economic damages, damages to their reputation, and/or
damages to current and prospective business relations.

II.  Statements Falsely Accusing Plaintiff of Engaging in Fornication with Mr. Smollett.

58. On or around April 6, 2019, Defendant Tina Glandian further discussed Plaintiff
Abimbola Osundairo (hereinafter “Bola Osundairo”) on the podcast Reasonable Doubt.

59. Ms. Glandian inferred that Bola Osundairo and Mr. Smollett engaged, at least
briefly, in homosexua! acts together. These statements were made to the third-party press and

public.
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60. Bola Osundairo is heterosexual and was dating a woman at the time.

61. Bola Osundairo has never engaged in any sexual acts with Mr, Smollett, thus Ms.
Glandian’s statements are patently false.

62. Bola Osundairo is also Nigerian-American, has family in Nigeria, and enjoys visits
to Nigeria.

63. Same-sex sexual activity is illegal in Nigeria, which can result in 14 years of

64. Research by Pew indicates that 99% of Nigerians believe homosexuality should not
be tolerated. !

65. Ms. Glandian’s globally broadcasted statements that Bola Osundairo is homosexual
endangers filin and the lives of Liis Nigeiian family.

66. Ms. Glandian’s statements were made after the close of Mr. Smollett’s criminal
case, did not serve any legal function, and were not a requirement of her job as a defense attorney.

67. Ms. Glandian’s statements have caused Plaintiffs severe emotional distress.

68. Ms. Glandian, in falsely accusing Bola Osundairo of fornication with Mr. Smollett,
has committed defamation per se under Illinois law.

69. As a result of Ms. Glandian’s false and defamatory statements concerning Bola ‘
Osundairo’s sexual activity, Plaintiff suffered and will continue to suffer damage, including
economic damages and damages to his reputation.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs OLABINJO OSUNDAIRO and ABIMBOLA
OSUNDAIRO pray for judgment against Defendant TINA GLANDIAN, for the appropriate

compensatory damages, punitive damages and costs.

! See https://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2013/06/2 1 /ahead-of-same-sex-marriage-decisions-what-you-need-to-
know/; the study claims Nigeria is the least accepting of homosexuality of all countries surveyed.

10
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COUNT II
COMMON LAW FALSE LIGHT

1-69. The Plaintiffs hereby re-allege and incorporate their allegations of Paragraphs 1-69
of Count I as their respective allegations of Paragraphs 1-6% of Count II as though fully set forth
herein.

70.  Ms., Glandian made false statements to the third-party press and public that
Plaintiffs committed a hate crime, perjured themselves, and conspired to make false statements to
CPD.

71. Ms. Glandian made false statements to the third-party press and public that
Plaintiffs used “whiteface,” both in the past and while committing a hate crime.

72, Ms. Glandian made false statements that Plaintiffs” business is misleading to their
clientele and is a sham enterprise, as Plaintiffs use and/or provide illegal steroids while stating
their business is “all natural.”

73. Ms. Glandian made false statements that Plaintiffs are itlegally distributing foreign
steroids.

74.  Ms. Glandian made false statements that Plaintiff Bola Osundairo engaged in
homosexual acts with Mr. Smollett.

75.  Statements falsely accusing Plaintiffs of illegal activities, including committing a
hate crime, committing perjury, intentionally making false statements to police, and distributing
steroids, are objectively offensive,

76.  Statements falsely accusing Plaintiffs of lacking professional integrity by lying to

clientele about the propriety of steroids are objectively offensive.

1t
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77.  Statements falsely accusing Plaintiff Bola Osundairo of engaging in sexual acts
with Mr. Smollett are objectively offensive, especially as Bola Osundairo was dating someone else
at the time.

78.  Ms. Glandian explicitly identified Plaintiffs in making these offensive, untrue
statements, Even when she refers to them as “the brothers” they are still easily identifiable.

79. Ms. Glandian, in making these statements, acted with actual malice and reckless
disregard for the truth, knowing these statements were clearly false.

80.  Ms. Glandian’s statements were made after the close of Mr. Smollett’s criminal
case, did not serve any legal function, and were not a requirement of her job as a defense attorney.

81.  Asaresultof Ms. Glandian’s objectively and highly offensive statements, Plaintiffs
have suffered and will continue to suffer extreme emotional distress, humiliation, and anxiety,
damages to their reputation, and/or damage to current and prospective business relations.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs OLABINJO OSUNDAIRO and ABIMBOLA
OSUNDAIRO pray for judgment against Defendant TINA GLANDIAN, for the appropriate
compensatory damages, punitive damages and costs.

DEFENDANT MARK GERAGOS

COUNT ILL
COMMON LAW DEFAMATION PER SE

1-81. The Plaintiffs hereby re-allege and incorporate their allegations of Paragraphs 1-81
of Count II as their respective allegations of Paragraphs 1-81 of Count II as though fully set forth

herein.

12
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82.  On the same podcast in which Ms. Glandian made tortious and defamatory
statements ébout Plaintiffs, Defendant Mark Geragos (hereinafier “Mr. Geragos”) also appeared,
and occasionally made comments.

| 83.  Mr. Geragos falsely stated that he could not think of anyone else who committed
the hate crime against his client, Mr. Smollett, besides Plaintiffs.

84.  Mr. Geragos repeatedly indicated that Plaintiffs conspired to criminally attack Mr.
Smollett, and by doing so, implied Plaintiffs committed perjury before ihe February 20, 2019 grand
jury and conspired to make false statements to Chicago Police.

85. Moreover, the above defamatory statements in Counts I and II made by Ms.
Glandian were made in concert with and approved by Mr. Geragos to promote his law firm and
his reputation.

86.  Mr. Geragos’s statements were made after the close of Mr. Smollett’s criminal case,
did not serve any legal function, and were not a requirement of his job as a defense attorney.

87. M. Geragos’s statements have caused the Plaintiffs severe emotional distress and
have caused Plaintiffs irreparable financial damage as alleged above.

88.  The Plaintiffs feel unsafe and alienated in their local Chicago community. This is
because Mr. Geragos, a very famous attorney, falsely and publicly stated they have committed a
heinous, racially, and homophobically motivated hate crime, that they lied under oath, and that
they lied to CPD.

89. M, Geragos, in falsely accusing Plaintiffs of committing a hate crime, perjuring
themselves, and conspiring to give false statements to CPD, has acted with fault clearly amount to

actual malice.

13
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90.  Mr. Geragos’s statements, in falsely accusing Plaintiffs of committing a hate crime,
perjuring themselves, and conspiring to give false statements to Chicago Police, are defamatory
per se pursuant to Iilinois law.

91.  As a result of Mr. Geragos’s false and defamatory statements, Plaintiffs suffered
and will continue to suffer damage, including economic damages, damages to their reputations,
and/or damage to current and prospective business relations.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs OLABINJO OSUNDAIRO and ABIMBOLA
OSUNDAIRO pray for judgment against Defendant MARK GERAGOS, for the appropriate

compensatory damages, punitive damages and costs.

COUNT IV
COMMON LAW FALSE LIGHT

1-91.  The Plaintiffs hereby re-allege and incorporate their allegations of Paragraphs 1-68
of Count IIT as their respective allegations of Paragraphs 1-91 of Count IV as though fully set forth
herein.

92, Mr. Geragos made false statements to the third-party press and public that Plaintiffs
committed a hate crime, perjured themselves before a grand jury, and conspired to make give false
statements to CPD.

93. Additionally, Ms. Glandian’s above tortious statements were made in consort and
coordination with Mr. Geragos in an attempt to promote his law firm and reputation,

94.  Mr. Geragos’s tortious statements explicitly identified Plaintiffs in making these
untrue statements. Even when he referred to them by pronouns, they are still easily identifiable.

95. Statements falsely accusing Plaintiffs of illegal activities are objectively offensive.

14
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96. Mr. Geragos’s statements were made after the close of Mr. Smollett’s criminal case,
did not serve any legal function, and were not a requirement of his job as a defense attorney.

97. Mr. Geragos, in making these statements, acted with actual malice as he knew these
statements were clearly false, and thus acted with reckless disregard for the truth.

98. Asaresult of Mr. Geragos’s objectively and highly offensive statements, Plaintiffs
suffered and will continue to suffer extreme emotional distress, humiliation, anxiety, damages to
their reputation, and damages to current and prospective business relations.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs OLABINJO OSUNDAIRO and ABIMBOLA
OSUNDAIRO pray for judgment against .Defendant MARK GERAGOS, for the appropriate

compensatory damages, punitive damages and costs.

DEFENDANT GERAGOS & GERAGOS LAW FIRM

COUNT VY
RESPONDEAT SUPERIOR

1-98. The Plaintiffs hereby re-allege and incorporate their allegations of Paragraphs [-98
of Count 1V as their respective allegations of Paragraphs 1-98 of Count V as though fully set forth
herein.

99. At all relevant times the Defendants Tina Glandian and Mark Geragos were acting
within their scope of employment as employee and partner, respectively, of Geragos & Geragos
Law Firm.

100. Geragos & Geragos Law Firm is responsible for the actions of its agents.

15
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WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs

OLABINJO OSUNDAIRO

and ABIMBOLA

OSUNDAIRO pray for judgment against Defendant GERAGOS & GERAGOS, for the

appropriate compensatory damages, punitive damages and costs.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiffs hereby request trial by jury.

Gregory E. Kulis
Monica Ghosh

Gregory E. Kulis & Associates, Ltd.

30 North LaSalle Street, Suite 2140
Chicago, lilinois 60662

312-580-1830

James D. Tunick

30 North LaSalle Street, Suite 2140
Chicago, lllinois 60602
312-759-7626

Gloria V. Schmidt

Jorge A, Rodriguez

The Gloria Law Group

211 West Wacker Drive, 5th Floor
Chicago, 1llinois 60606
312-982-2974
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GERAGOS & GERAGOS

A PROFESSIONAL. CORPORATION
LAWYERS
844 SOUTH FIGUERCA STREET
LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 80017
TeLerHone (2 §3) 6283900
FacsiMiLg (213) 232-3255
GERAGOSEGERAGOS.COM

April 4, 2019

Via E-Mail and U.S. Mail

Edward N, Siskel

City of Chicago Department of Law
121 N. LaSalle, Room 600
Chicago, IL 60602

Re: Demand for Repayment of Investigation Costs to Jussie Smollett

Our firm represents Jussie Smollett in this matter. Please direct all future
communications to our attention.

We are in receipt of your March 28, 2019 letter, sent two days after all criminal
charges against Mr. Smollett were dismissed, demanding that Mr. Smollett pay to the
City of Chicago $130,106.15 for “repayment of investigation costs” within seven @)
days; otherwise, you threaten to prosecute Mr. Smollett for making a false statement to
the City pursuant to Municipal Code § 1-21-010 or to pursue any other iegal remedy
available at law. Your letter constitutes part of a course of conduct intended to harass
and irreparably injure Mr. Smollett. As explained below, yout letter is both factually and
legally flawed, and Mr. Smollett will not be intimidated into paying the demanded sum.

As you know, Mr. Smollett vehemently denies making any false statements to the
City of Chicago, or to any individuals investigating the January 29, 2019 attack on him.!
All criminal chatges against Mr. Smollett from this incident have been dismissed and his
record has been sealed. Thus, your claim that Mr. Smollett filed a false police report and
orchestrated his own attack is false and defamatory.

Furthermore, it is apparent that your threats were made maliciously and in bad
faith, and without an honest belief that a cause of action against Mr. Smollett exists, even
under the lesser preponderance of evidence standard. This is evident from 1) the
dismissal of all charges against Mr. Smollett and the sealing of his record; 2) the lack of

! The investigation revealed that Mr. Smollett's statements to police--that on January 29, 2019, two men
attacked him while yelling racial and homophobic slurs--were, in fact, true.
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any investigation between the dismissal of charges on March 26, 2019 and your demand
for payment on Masch 28, 2019; 3) the lack of any independent corroboration of the
Osundaire brothers' self-serving statements (made after 47 hours of interrogation, while
detained, and only after guidance by their attorneys) that the January 29, 2019 attack on
Mr. Smollett was a hoax; and 4) public statements expressly contradicting the theory that
the attack was a hoax. As you should know, neither the threats in your letter, nor the
defamatory statements they rely upon, are afforded First Amendment protection.

Moreover, your unpiecedented attempt to file a civil lawsult against Mr, Smollett

charging him with Municipal Code § 1-21-010 for “repayment of investigation costs” is
unconstitutional as applied to Mr. Smollett. The Chicago False Claims Act, §§ 1-21-010
through 1-22-060, was enacted on January 10, 2005 and modeled after the federal FCA,
These statutes are routinely used to bring civil lawsuits against cotporations for deceptive
business practices in order to prevent fraud and protect consumers, see, e.g., City of
Chicago v. Purdue Pharma L.P., 211 F. Supp. 3d 1058 (N.D. 1il. 2016); People ex rel.
Madizan v, United Const of dm_ Inc, 2012 1L App (1st 2012) 120308, 981 N.E.2d 404,
or as qui tam whistleblower actions. Our research discloses no cases in which the
municipai ordinance has been used to try to gei a second bite at the apple oncc charges
against a criminal defendant have been dismissed. Thus, despite your repeated claims
that you want to treat Mr. Smollett like any other citizen, the 16-count indictment against
him followed by your threats of further prosecution clearly constitute disparate
treatment.® Application of § 1-21-010 under the facts of this case is unconstitutional.

Finally, any future prosecution of Mr. Smollett for making allegedly false
statements about the January 29, 2019 attack would violate the federal® and state* ban
against double jeopardy. The United States Supreme Court has held that successive
prosecutions for the same offense’ by a State and by a municipality within that State are

? See, eg., https://chicago.suntimes.cominews.fwoman-zs'—stabbed-by-robber—in—gt‘ant—park/ (23-year old
Columbia College student who police say falsely reported a robbery and stabbing in Grant Park has not
been criminally charged).

3 The double jeopardy clause of the Fifth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides no
person shall “be subject for the same offence to be twice put in jeopardy of life or limb.” U.S. Const,,
amend. V.

! The lilinois Constitution of 1970 provides “[n]o person shall . . . be twice put in jeopardy for the same
offense.” Iil. Const.1970, art. L, § 10.

% Here, the elements of filing a false report under Iilinois Statutes § 26-1(a)(4), as Mr. Smollett had been
charged with in the now-dismissed indictment, and making a false statement to the City in violation of
Municipal Code § 1-21-010, are virtually the same.
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prohibited by the doubie jeopardy clause. See Waller v. Florida, 397 U.S. 387, 392-95
(1970). Moreover, the Illinois Supreme Court has explained that there is nothing “in
Waller to suggest that a municipal ordinance designed to provide only for a fine was not
to be comprehended in the Supreme Court's holding.” People v. Allison, 46 IlL. 2d 147,
149, 263 N.E.2d 80, 81 (1970). Here, the State Attorney's Office moved to nolle pros the
charges against Mr. Smollett who, in turn, agreed to forfeit his $10,000 bail te the City of
Chicago. Thus, any subsequent prosecution of Mr. Smollett under the Iflinois Municipal
Code based on the events of January 29, 2019 would violate Mr. Smollett's rights under
the Illinois and federal constitutions.

If, despite the deficiencies above, you file a civil action against Mr. Smollett,
please be advised that in addition to raising the appropriate legal defenses, 1) we will
demand the prompt production of the entire investigation file in this matter, including the
fuil discovery from the criminal action which was never provided to the defense; 2) we
will demand that you promptly produce for deposition Mayor Rahm Emanuel, Police
Supetintendent Eddie Johnson, Abimbola Usundairo, Ulabinjo Gsundairo, and aiioiicys
Gloria Schmidt and Jorge Rodriguez; and 3) we will seek to have all records and hearings
on this matter be open to the public. In light of their apparent vested interest in this
matter, we are confident that Mayor Emanuet and Superintendent Johnson will not object
to providing their testimony under oath. Mr. Smollett's preference remains, howevet, that
this matter be closed and that he be allowed to move on with his life.

.

We are available to discuss this matter further.

cc: Tina Glandian




OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
STATE OF ILLINOIS

KWAME RAOUL :
AT'TORNEY GENERAL April 10, 2018

Natalie J. Spears, Esq.

DENTONS US LLP

233 South Wacker Drive — Suite 5800
Chicago, Ilfinois 60606

Re: People v. Smollett
No. 19 CR 0310401 (Cook Co.)

Dear Ms. Spears:

This letter acknowledges receipt of your April 3, 2019, notice of claim of
unconstitutionality in the above-referenced matter. Based upon a review of the notice
and enclosed documents, the opportunity to intervene will not be pursued by this Office
at this time.

Kindly advise me of the Court's resolution of this constitutional claim. Thank you
for your cooperation. Should you have any guestions, please contact me at 100 West
Randolph Street, 13th Floor, Chicago, llinois 60601, or at (312) 814-2822.

Sincerely,
v

David Van de Burgt
Division Chief
Government Representation

500 South Sccond Street, Springfeld, Tilinois 62701 © (217) 782-1090 = "I'T'Y: (§77) 844-5461 o Fax: (217) TH2-7046
100 Wost Randotph Strect, Ghicagoe, [linols 60601 @ (312) 514-3000 o "E1'Y: (800) 964-3013 » Iax: (312) B14-3806
601 South University Ave,, Carbondule, 11 62901 = (618) 529-6400 » TIY; (877) 675-9339 @ Fax (618) 520-6416  ~Chgorde




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Natalie J. Spears, an attorney, certifies that she caused a copy of the foregoing REPLY
MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF MEDIA INTERVENORS’ MOTION TO
INTERVENE FOR PURPOSES OF OBJECTING TO AND VACATING THE SEALING

ORDER to be served upon:

Patricia Brown Holmes
pholmes@rshe-law.com

Brian O’Connor Watson
bwatson(@rshe-law.com

Mark J. Geragos
mark@geragos.com

Risa Lanier
statesattorney@cookcountyil gov
risa.Janier@cookcountyil.gov

by causing a copy to be delivered via e-mail to the above e-mail addresses and U.S. Mail on this

7th day of May, 2019.
TN 7
P ) elles
P X

Natalie J. Speats

SN
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT QF CCOX COUNTY,

COUNTY DEPARTMENT
THE PEOPLE OF THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS,
Plaintiff,
Vs.
JUSSIE SMOLLETT,

Defendant.

R T N N

ILLINOIS
CRIMINAL DIVISION

No. 19 CR 03104-01

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS at the hearing of the

above~entitled cause before the HONORARLE STEVEN G.

WATKING,
March, 2019.
APPEARANCES:

HON. KIMBERLY M.

Judge of said Court,

on the 2Z6th day of

FOXX,

State's Attorney of Ccok County,

By: MS.

RISA LANIER,

Assistant State's Attorney;
on behalf of the People;

MS. PATRICIA BROWN HOLMES,
MS. TINA GLANDIAN and

MR. BRIAN WATSON,

on behalf of the Defendant.

Mary Ellen Kusibab
Official Court Reporter
CSR License No. 084-004348
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THE CLERK: Jussie Smollett.

THE CQURT: Good morning.

MS. BROWN HOLMES: Good moxrning, Judge. Patricia
Brown Holmes, Tina Glandian and Brian Watson on behalf
of Jussie Smollett.

MS. LANIER: Risa Lanier -- R-i-s-a, L-a-n-i-e-r --
for the People.

Your Honor, con today's date, the State did file
a motion to advance this matter. It was originally set
for Aprit 17th, but we did file a motion to advance it
to today's date.

THE COURT: The Court entered an order yesterday,
setting the matter for April 2nd on the media coverage.
So we can strike that date as well?

MS. LANIER: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. What are we doing?

MS. LANIER: Motion to advance sustained?

THE COURT: Granted.

MS. LANIER: Thank you.

Judge, on today's date, the State does have a
motion in this case. After reviewing the facts and
circumstances of the case, including Mr. Smollett's
volunteer service in the community and agreement to

forfeit his bond to the City of Chicago, the State's
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motion in regards to the indictment is to nolle pros.
We believe this outcome is a Just disposition and
appropriate resolution to this case.

I do have an order directing the Clerk of the
Circuit Court to release Bond No. D 1375606, payable to
the City of Chicago, to be sent directly to the City of
Chicago, Department of Law. And there's an address and
the person there who takes care of that on behalf of the
City.

THE COQURT: Thank you.

Defense?

MS. BROWN HOLMES: Judge, we would absolutely
agree. And we would also ask that the Court immediately
seal the records.

THE COURT: Do vou have an order prepared for that?

MS. BROWN HOLMES: Yes, we do, Judge.

THE COURT: Motion, State, Nolle Pros, granted.

Motion, State, to release D-Bound 1375606 toc the
City of Chicago will be granted.

Motion, defendant, for immediate sealing of the
criminal records will be granted as well.

MS. BROWN HOLMES: Thank yvou very much, Judge.

THE COURT: Sure. Anything else?

MS. LANIER: No, that's it.
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THE

THE

THE

MS.

THE

COURT: All right. Good luck, Mr.

DEFENDANT: Thank you very much.
COURT: You're welcome.
BROWN HOLMES: We appreciate it.

COURT : You're welcome.

Smollett.

{Which were all the proceedings

had in the above-entitled cause

on this date.)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
Ss.

COUNTY OF C 0 O K )

I, MARY ELLEN KUSIBAB, an Official
Court Reporter for the Circuit Court of Cook County,
Illinois, County Department, criminal Division, do
hereby certify that I reported in shorthand the
proceedings had on the hearing in the above-entitled
cause; that I,.thereafter, caused the foregoing to be
transcribed into typewriting, which I hereby certify
Lo be a true and accurate transcript of the

proceedlngs.

Mary Ellen Kusibab
¢.5.R. No. 084-004348

circuit Court of Cook County, IL
Ccounty Department - Criminal Division

Dated March 26, 2019.




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

THE PEOPPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, )
)
Plaintiff, )
)
V. ) No. 19 CR 3104
) (Municipal No. 19-110327101)
JUSSIE SMOLLETT, )
)
Defendant )

ORDER OF WITHDRAWAL OF ATTORNEY

This cause coming before the Court on the Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney,
due notice having been given and the Court being fully advised in the premises, IT IS
HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

1. The Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney is granted; and

2. Jack B. Prior is given leave and deemed instanter to withdraw his
appearance for Defendant, Jussie Smoliett.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

ENTERED:

Circuit Court of Cook County
Criminal Division




Sheet # Defendant Sheet # CRIMINAL DISPOSITION SHEET Branch/Room/Location CLERK USE ONLY
0019 0001 OF 0002 1735 304 STEVEN G. WATKINS 0019
100 CHICAGO POLICE DEPT
CASE NUMBER DEFENDANT NAME ATTORNEY COURT DATE | COURT CALL/TIME
19CR0310401 SMOLLETT JUSSIE RILEY SAFER HOLMES CANCIL 03-26-2019 2-0930 AM
CB/DCN # iR# EM BOND # 1 1C| D BOND AMOUNT
019771648 2397168 1375606 X $T00, 000,00
CHARGES COURT ORDER ENTERED

€001 720-5/26-1(n) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF QFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY

€002 720-5/26-1(A) (4)

FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY

€003 720-5/26-1(a)(4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY

€004 720-5/26-1(A)(4)

FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY

CO005 720-5/26-1(A)(4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY

C006 720-5/26-1(A) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY

CO07 720-5/26-1(a) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY
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CO08 720-5/26-1(A)(4)
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03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY
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FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY
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Sheet # Defendant Sheet #
0019 0002 OF 0002

CRIMINAL DI5POSITION SHEET
1735 304

Branch/Room/Location

STEVEN G.

CLERK USE ONLY
WATKINS 0019

100 CHICAGQO POLICE DEPT

CASE NUMBER

19CR0310401

DEFENDANT NAME ATTORNEY

SMOLLETT JUSSIE

RILEY SAFER HOLMES CANCIL

COURT DATE

COURT CALL/TIME
03-26-2019 2-0930 aM

CB/DCN #
019771648

IR#

2397168

EM BOND # 1 i C

D

BOND AMOUNT

1375606

4

5100,000.00

CHARGES

COURT ORDER ENTERED

CODES

€012 720-5/26-1(a) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY

C013 720~5/26-1(A) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY

COl4 720-5/26-1(a) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY

COL5 720-5/26-1(A)(4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILTY

COl6 720.5/26-1(A)(4)
FALSE REPORT OF QFFENSE
03/14/19 PLEA OF NOT GUILYY

JUDGE:

JUDGE’S No.

RESPONSIBLE FOR CODING AND COMPLETION BY DEPUTY CLERK:

VERIFIED BY:




STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) Ss. MAR 28 2019

COUNTY OF COOK ) DORw: o o ROWN
CLERK OF Giiioi7 COURT

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY

COUNTY DEPARTMENT - CRIMINAL DIVISION

PFOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS
Plaintiff

vs. Case No. 19CR-3104

Jussie Smollett
Dafendant {s)

L SR Iy NP S U

MOTION 10O ADVANCE

NOW COMF THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, by their
Attorney, KIMBERLY M. FOXX, State's Attorney of Cook County,
through her Assistant, Risa R Lanier, and petition this Honorable
Courﬁ to advance the above captioned case.

WHEREFORE, the People respectfully request this Court to
advance the above captioned case to March 26, 2019, in Room 304 at

9:00 a.m.

KIMBERLY M. FOXX
Cook Countyfﬁtate’s Attorney

BY: )

=0 g7 e b : ;
i 11 e (L1
RisiﬁR Langér"
Assiistant State's Attorney




Order for iImmediate Sealing of Criminal Records (11/13/17) CCCR N341
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

PEQPLE OF THE STATE OF HLLINOIS
or

| Case 199 e o<

and/or {sagrics e AL i"\ﬂm'ﬁz;’raof)
Ticket

Numbers

A Municipal Cerporation,

QJUssit smoctd) | Date of Birth: & [20 ] 1922
Gender: K Male [J Female

Race: Budex,

Defendant/Petitioner

2. The Illinois Stat the above Arresting Agency, ,

the Chicago Police De ent, and the Clerk of the Circuit Court shall seal the arrest from its records, if
any, within sixty (60) days of theidate of
cy shall request the return of all i

tics that were previously notified of rest(s) by";th-e Arresting Agency.

3. In accordaice with the law, orders of pio civil no contact orders, and civil no contact stalking orders

shall not be sealed.

Prepared by: PRIV A BZon HovMmES
Cook County Attorney Code: (goi12%
Name: PALEM SAFEL +oumES 3 Calunfl o P 7

ENTEREDV'?

Address: T o wad padbiged St 2990 Daved: fk p

City/State/Zip: _C e A0 | 1L (0L S
Y 4 o (meduny-eAlt

Telephone: (.351/ 4 7}“‘4@ o Eax-LBe J- {‘J/ T,

Primary Email: Protads @ 2%%&;‘”’ LA, 0 AA

DOROTHY BROWN, CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS




STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)SS.
COUNTY OF COOK. )

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)
)

VS. ) CaseNo. 19CR-3104
)
Jussie Smollett )
Defendant(s) )

ORDER

T i$ HEREBY ORDERED ihat ie Clerk of ihe Circuit Court of Cook County shall release Bond
No.@g’ Z)% #is0{;, payable to the City of Chicago, to be sent directly to:

City of Chicago Department of Law

Attn: Natalie Frank

121 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 600

Chicago, Illinois 60602

DATED: 3/26/2019

ENTER?
JUDGE STEVE G, WATKINS - 2117

MAR 26 2018




efendant’s Name
aselTicket Number

o O Defendant's Name
'//ﬁafi Bond Number _ O Case/Ticket Number -
0 Bail Bond Amount Set | _ 0 Bail Bond Number
Ba:l Bond Deposit Amount \ 0 Bail Bond Amount Set
Ball Bond Money Refund to: O Bail Bond Deposit Amount
O Attom ey # Bail Bond'Money Refund to:
‘: 0 Provr§erlSurety 0 Attorney
| 0 Defendant " 0 Provider
Y Public De;eﬂdeu Ny 0 Defendant
C Vigtim R | g | :
3 ‘0 Public Defender
V Other (ﬁ, /7/ V7 /7//914?‘) @3_’ o Victim
mduct BSnd Mogéy i&atl'@ (}@%/Fmes & o Other

0 Deduct Bond Money to satisfy Costs, Fines &
Fees ‘

U?ﬁBi.?- BL:PB?B‘{,BRBMN o
ﬁf W TR Eﬂu LGURT

: b { rﬁ,ﬁm t verified the bail bond against the: ,

0 Bail Bond Receipt
- @@2 ST 0 CBR to Attorney
S 4 el gter than O Court Sheet
B cooo s gt sheet. ' '
REF 4992 o t?cséﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁf o O Court Order ,
REF BTHE S s B ater than , L,
: . R © Uit sheet O Probation/Supervision Order
£05E TOTAL:: 9?9& . e '
- Tond Reflng S oy @@ © jorand a
}s_% ﬂBL §R4 El};islgwﬂmm g-1 ;{gégﬁ o eeipt 0 . This ba[I bond amount is equal to or greater than
LFE ﬁjﬁp E;j%;,fééj S ggz 2 gg - lsheet ~ $500. | have attached a copy of the court sheet.
F‘gé&i‘f Cigy fhgo + sea O  This bail bond amount is equal to or greater than
; or g _-r . o $5000. | have attached a copy of the court sheet,
| %*Qzﬁ;ggﬁ’&[ﬁ f} T s BY verified that a Court Clerk Bond Processor and a
: ; ﬂ HG R Manager have initialed the Bail Bond Receipt.
 THANR ; : o

Reviewed/Verified by:

Date:
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Sheet # Defendant Sheet # CRIMINAL DISPOSITION SHEET Branch/Room/Location CLERK USE ONLY
0035 0001 OF 0002 1735 304 STEVEN G. WATKINS 0035
100 CHICAGO POLICE DEPT
CASE NUMBER DEFENDANT NAME ATTORNEY COURT DATE | COURT CALL/TIME
19CRrR0G310401 SMOLLETT JUSSIE RILEY SAFER HOLMES CANCIL| 03-14-2019 2-0930 AM
CB/DCN # R# EM BOND # 1 1CiD BOND AMOUNT
018771648 2397168 1375606 X S100,000.00
CHARGES COURT ORDER ENTERED CODES
CO01 720-5/26~1(A) (4) . — . % m_ -
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE N\ ﬂ% \ { o
AN w < 7 leslo
€002 720-5/26-1(A) (4) 2 S
FALSE REFORT OF OFFENSE \MW m!% AN

€003 720-5/26-1(a) (£) @N\ﬁ.\ @(ﬁ.ﬁm AAM TZ(J; VNTW m~ mvwwm_sm

FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
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Sheet #
0035

Defendant Sheet #
0002 OF 0002

CRIMINAL DISPOSITION SHEET

Branch/Room/Location CLERK USE ONLY

1735 304
100 CHICAGO POLICE DEPT

STEVEN G.

WATKINS 0035

CASE NUMBER
19CR0310401

DEFENDANT NAME
SMOLLETT JUSSIE

ATTORNEY
RILEY SAFER HOLMES CANCIL

COURT DATE | COURT CALL/TIME
03-14~2019 2-0930 aAM

CB/DCN #
019771648

iR#
2397168

Eivi

BOND #
1375606

C

(b

BOND AMOUNT

X

5100,000.00

CHARGES

COURT ORDER ENTERED

CODES

€012 720-5/26-1(A)(4)
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

CO13 720-5/26~1(A) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

COL4 720-5/26-1(A)(4)
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

CO15 720-5/26~1(A)(4)
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

COY6 T20-5/26-1(A)(4)
FALSE REPORT QF

OFFENSE

JUDGE:

JUDGE’S No.

RESPONSIBLE FOR CODING AND COMPLETION BY DEPUTY CLERK:

VERIFIED BY:




STATE OF ILLINOIS ) = § i E

) SS
COUNTY OF COOK ) Dox VAR 14 g,
or
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY ~ “*ERK 0F gRC%'RGOW N

COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS )
Plaintiff )

VS. g Case No. 19CR-3104
Jussie Smollett g
Defendant(s) ))

MOTION FOR PRE-TRIAL DISCOVERY
PURSUANT TO ILLINOIS SUPREME COURT RULE 413

TO; ATTORNEY OF RECORD

Now come the People of the State of Hlinnie, hy KIMRERLY M, FOXX | State's Attorney of Cock County,
by her assistant, Risa Lanier and moves this Honorable Court, pursuant to Illinois Supreme Court Rules 413(c),
413(d) and 415(b) to enter an Order directing the defendant and his attorney or attorneys:

1. To give written notice to the People of the State of Tllinois of any defenses, affirmative or non-
affirmative, which the defendant intends to assert at any hearing or at trial. If the defendant intended to assert the
defense of Alibi he shall state in writing his location at the time of the alleged offense and the identity of witnesses
to such alibi defense as in “2” below. (Having notice of such defense, the People will furnish prior to trial the
names and addresses of any additional witnesses to be called to rebut said alibi defense. Rule 413(d).

2. To furnish in writing to the People of the State of Illinois, the names and last known addresses of persons
the defendant intends to call as witnesses, together with their relevant written or recorded statements, including
memeoranda reporting or summarizing their oral statements, and any record of prior crimin.ai convictions of such
witnesses known to the defendant or his attorneys. Rule 413(d).

3. To inform the People of the State of Illinois, and to permit the inspection and copying or photographing

of any reports, results or testimony relative thereto, of physical or mental examinations or of scientific tests,




experiments, or comparisons, and any other reports of statements of experts which defense counsel has in his
possession or control, including, but not limited to, statements made by the defendant contained in reports, any part
of which defense counsel intends to use at a hearing or trial. Rule 413(c)

4. To furnish the People of the State of Illinois with any books, papers, documents, photographs, or tangible
objects the defendant or his attorneys intend to use as evidence or impeachment at a hearing or trial. Rule 413(d)

5. To notify the People of the State of Illinois of the evidence of any material or information subject to
disclosure which is discovered subsequent to compliance with any other orders entered pursuant to Illinois Supreme
Court Rules. 413(c) and 413(d) Rule 415(b)

6. To furnish the People of the State of lllinois with any notcs, tape recordings memoranda or other
evidence of any interviews of any of the witnesses listed in the People’s Answer to Discovery or named in any

other report. People v. Lego, 116 111.2d 323, 107 Ill. Dec.647 (1987).

KIMBERLY M. FOXX
State's Attorney ¢f Cook County

VA /
Za BV IR
A ——o
by:  Risa Lanier
Assistant State's Attorney

S.A.0. 105




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINQIS, )
)
Plaintiff, )
)

\s ) No. 19 CR 3104
)
JUSSIE SMOLLETT, )
)
Defendant. )

DEFENDANT’S FIRST MOTION FOR DISCOVERY

Defendant, Jussie Smollett, by his attorneys, Geragos & Geragos, APC and Riley
Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP, requests disclosure and production of the following
materials and information, which are essential and material to his defense within the
State’s possession or control, under Illinois Supreme Court Rule 412, the Sixth and
Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution, and Article 1, Section 8, of
the Constitution of the State of Illinois:

1. The names, addresses, telephone numbers, and birthdates of anyone who
the State may call as witnesses at any hearing or trial, together with their written or
recorded statements (including drafts and notes), memoranda containing substantially
verbatim reports of their statements (including drafts and notes), a list of memoranda
reporting or summarizing their statements, and i camera review and disclosure of all

other materials reporting or summarizing their statements (including drafts and notes).




2. Any written or recorded statements and the substance of any statements
made by the defendant (including drafts and notes), and a list of witnesses with their
names, addresses, telephone numbers, and birthdates to the making and
acknowledgment of the statements.

3. Any transcripts and minutes of the grand jury, including testimony of all
witnesses presented to the grand jury.

4. Any reports or statements of experts, including results of physical or
mental examinations and of scientific tests, experiments, or comparisons, a statement of
qualifications of the experts, and an opporunity to interview the experts.

5. Any books, papers, documents, photographs, or tangible objects which the
State may use at any hearing or trial or which were obtained from or belong fo the
defendant.

6. Any records of criminal or civil actions of anyone who the State may call
as witnesses at any hearing or frial which involve the State of Illinois, the Federal
Government, or any other authorities of the State, including any records required under
Giglio v. United States, 405 1.5. 150 (1972).

7. The names, addresses, telephone numbers, and birthdates of anyone the
State may call in rebuttal, and a specific statement as to the substance of the testimony

the witnesses may give.




8. Any surveillance (including wiretapping) of conversations to which the
defendant was a party, or of his premises.

9. Any police reports and records connected to the investigation, mentioned
in the indictment, or related to this case, including drafts, notes, and internal records.

10.  Any recordings, audio, and video of anybody or anything connected to
the investigation, mentioned in the indictment, or related to this case.

11.  Any recordings, audio, and video of Abimbola “Abel” Osundairo and
Olabinjo “Ola” Osundairo, including surveillance and camera systems while in custody.

12, Any records, reports, and communications from or with Gloria V.
Schmidt, Jorge Antonio Rodriguez, The Gloria Law Group, or their agents connected to
the investigation, mentioned in the indictment, or related to this case.

13.  Any physical property that the State may use at any hearing or trial,
including {a) a list of all physical property in the State’s possession or control; (b) the
date and time the property was acquired; (c) the location from which the property was
acquired; {d) what person or persons first took the property into their possession; ()
reports and records made by the State pertaining to the property, including scientific
reports, etc.; and (f) an opporunity to inspect the property.

14.  Any certified copies of criminal or juvenile convictions the State may use

for any purpose, and the time and jurisdiction of the convictions.




15.  Any prior acts or convictions the State may use for proof of knowledge,
intent, lack of mistake, or motive, including any “prior bad acts” or other evidence
which tends to reflect upon character.

16. A copy of any legal process that was used to acquire evidence or
information by the execution of legal process, including requests for judicial orders
permitting the use of eavesdropping devices, electronic surveillance, wiretapping, or
recording of any conversations of defendant or anyone who the State may call as
witnesses at any hearing or trial.

17.  Any records of cell phone activity, text messages, emails, and social media
activity of defendant or anyone who the State may call as witnesses at any hearing or
trial.

18. A list of the names, addresses, telephone numbers, and birthdates of
anyone who might be or would be favorable to the defense, including anyone who has
knowledge pertaining to the case, mentioned in the indictment, or has been interviewed
by the State (whether the witness may testify or not).

19.  Any physical, scientific, demonstrative, or any other type of evidence that
might be or would be favorable to the defense, including the names, addresses, and
telephone numbers of experts.

20. A list of anyone who the State has interviewed, their proffer agreements,

their written or recorded statements (including drafts and notes), and the written




summaries of their statements (including drafts and notes), including all evidence
requiring disclosure under Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963), and Giglio v. United
States, 405 U.S. 150 (1972).

21. Any immunity agreements with anyone who the State may call as
witnesses at any hearing or trial, including all evidence requiring disclosure under
Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963), and Giglio v. United States, 405 U.5. 150 (1972).

22. A disclosure of any consideration of any kind given to any witness from
the State, any law enforcement or prosecution agency, or anyone connected to the
witness who the State knows about, in exchange for, or in relation to, their testimony
which would tend to show interest, bias, or motive of the witness, including work
history, past and present mental and emotional conditions, past and present alcohol or
drug use, payments of money or promises of any benefits of any kind, either now or in
the future.

23.  Any disciplinary files of the Chicago Police Department, the Independent
Police Review Authority, and the Civilian Office of Police Accountability for anyone
who the State may call as witnesses at any hearing or trial, including any sustained
finding of misconduct which may reflect upon truthfulness, lack of integrity in
connection with official duties, or possible bias; any finding of a lack of candor during

an administrative inquiry; and any credible allegation of misconduct which may reflect




truthfulness, lack of integrity in connection with official duties, or possible bias; and any
investigations which are subject of confidential or open investigations.

24. Any records, reports, and communications of the Civilian Office of Police
Accountability connected to the investigation or related to this case, including drafts
and internal records.

25.  Any records, reports, and communications of the Chicago Police
Department’s Bureau of Internal Affairs connected to the investigation or related to this
case, including drafts and internal records.

26.  Any records, reports, and communications of the City of Chicago’s Office
of Inspector General connected to the investigation or related to this case, including
drafts and internal records.

27.  Any records, reports, and communications of the Superintendent of the
Chicago Police Department connected to the investigation or related to this case,
including drafts and internal records.

28.  Any records, reports, and communications of the United States Attorney’s
Office connected to the investigation or related to this case, including drafts and
internal records.

29.  Any records, reports, and communications of the Federal Bureau of
Investigation connected to the investigation or related to this case, including drafts and

internal records.




30.  Any records, reports, and communications of the Cook County State's
Attorney’s Office connected to the investigation or related to this case, including the
Investigations Bureau.

31.  Any other information that might be favorable to the defendant under
Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963), and Giglio v. United States, 405 U.5. 150 (1972),

32.  An order against the State to amend their answer as may be required by

new or modified information in their possession, knowledge, or control under Supreme

Court Rule 415(b).
WHEREFQORE, Defendant, Jussie Smollett, by his attorneys, Geragos & Geragos,

APC and Riley Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP, requests disclosure and production of
these materials and information, which are essential and material to his defense within
the State’s possession or control, under Illinois Supreme Court Rule 412, the Sixth and
Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution, and Article 1, Section 8, of

the Constitution of the State of Illinois.




Dated: March 14, 2019 Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Patricia Brown Holmes

Patricia Brown Holmes
Ronald S. Safer

Brian O. Watson

Riley Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP
Three First National Plaza
70 W Madison St, Ste 2900
Chicago, Illinois 60602
(312) 471-8700
pholmes@rshe-law.com
rsafer@rshe-law.com
bwatson@rshc-law.com
Firm No. 60128

Mark J. Geragos

Tina Glandian

Geragos & Geragos, APC
644 South Migueroa Stieet
Los Angeles, CA 90017-3411
(213) 625-3900

&

Geragos & Geragos, APC
256 5th Avenue

New York, NY 10010
mark@geragos.com
tina@geragos.com




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned attorney certifies on March 14, 2019, these papers were served

to the attorneys of record.

Joseph Magats
Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office
69 W. Washington St,
Chicago, IL 60602
joseph.magats@cookcountyil.gov

Risa Lanier
Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office
2650 5. California Avenue, 11D40
Chicago, IL 60608
risa.lanier@cookcountyil.gov

/s/ Brian O. Walson

Brian O. Watson




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, )
)
Plaintiff, )
)

v. ) No. 19 CR 3104
)
JUSSIE SMOLLETT, )
)
Defendant }

ORDER FOR DISCOVERY

This cause coming before the Court on Defendant’s First Motion For Discovery,
due notice having been given and the Court being fully advised in the premises, IT IS
HEREBY ORDERED that Defendant’s First Motion For Discovery is granted.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

ENTERED/
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Order . (2/24/05) CCG N002

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
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Telephone: 302 | =11 - 2707

DOROTHY BROWN, CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
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SMOLLETT, T19110327101 MARCH 14, 2019

NAME: SMOLLETT, JUSSIE DOCKET #: 19CR0310401

DATE OF BIRTH: 06/21/1982 CASE INITIATION: 02/21/2019

OFFICER: QUICK SUPERVISOR : DIXON IR #: 2397168

CHARGE: FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE CHARGE TYPE: FEL gﬁ’ E gﬁs gg
ISB #: 2397168 FBI #:6798547C5 MAR 1& gg@

BOND INFORMATION

BOND TYPE: D BOND AMOUNT: 100,000.00(02/21/2019) JUDGE:JOHN F LYKE, JR.

BOND CONDITIONS: MET: DATE :
PRETRIAL FEES () 02/21/2019
Defendant Must Pay $50.00 Per Month.
AVOID ALL CONTACT W/WITNESSES () 02/21/2019
No Contact With 2Abel Or Ola Osundairo.
SURRENDER ALL PASSPORTS TO PTS () 02/21/2019
MAILING ADDRESS VERIFICATION () 02/21/2019
T.EVEL M MONITORTNG () 02/21/2019

ASSESSMENT INFORMATION
ASSESSMENT DATE: 02/21/2019
PSA EVAL LEVEL: M

*%% DSA ONLY *#*
0=Not Assessed

M=MONITORING - Initial Contact, Criminal Record Checks, Court Date Reminders
1=MONITORING Level + Monthly In-Person Contacts

2=MONITORING Level + 2 Times Per Month In-Person Contacts

3=MONITORING + 4 Times Per Month Alternate In~Person and By-Phone Contacts

CORRENT ADDRESS
{01/01/2017) 340 E WNORTH WATER ST, #3900 CHICAGO I60611 (31.0)593-1649
OTHER INFO:

CURRENT EMPLOYMENT
EMPLOYED?: Y

{ CURR- } 20TH CENTURY FOX
.00 ACTOR
EDUCATION
NOTES
NOTES ‘

SCHEDULED EVENTS
03/14/2019 RETURN CCURT DATE CRIMINAL COURT BLDG. 9:30 A.M.
2600 South California Avenue - Room JUDGE: Steven Watkins

MOST CURRENT EVENT RECORDS
{ Reverse Chronological Order )




03/14/2019 ARREST CHECK  Watkins
ACTICN: No New Arrests
NOTE: Per Clerks and Iclear
03/13/2019 COURT DATE NOTICE TO DEF  QUICK
ACTION: Left Message With Machine.
03/12/2019 ARREST CHECK  QUICK
ACTION: No New Arrests
NOTE: Per Clerks Iclear Leads Traffic
03/12/2019%  RETURN COURT DATE  Watkins
ACTION: Continued
REASON: Per Judges Order
NOTE: Judge Martin Granted Permission For the Media
To Be Present On 3-14-19. .
03/12/2019 COLLATERAL CONTACT Watkins
ACTION: Completed
NOTE: The Defendant's Case Was Granted Permission To
Receive Media Coverage By Judge Martin.
The Case Ig Continued To 3-14-19 In Branch 98,
Where Judge Martin Will Assign the Case To
A Permanent Courtroom and Judge. the Judge
Assigned To the Case Will Then Decide Whether
Permigsion Will Be Granted For Media Coverage
To Remain Present For the Ongoing Court
Procedings.
02/28/2019 COLLATERAL CONTACT QUICK
ACTION: Completed
NOTE: P.o. Called the Deft. the Call Went To Voicemail
And the Mailbox Was Full. P.o. Called the Deft.'s
Attorney, Tina Gladini, 818-395-7975. P.o. Wanted
To Contact the Daft, To Provide Him With
Ingtructions For Mailing In the $50 Monthly
Pre-Trial Fee. P.o. Emailed the Instructions
To the Deft.'s Attorney and Was Told the
Information Would Be Given To the Deft.
02/25/2018 REC'D CALL FROM CLIENT QUICK
ACTION: Completed
NOTE: P.o. Received A Telephone Call From the Deft.'s
Attorney, Tina Gladini, 818-395-7%75. the
Deft. Was Also On the Line. P.o. Reviewed the
Conditions of Bond. the Deft. Verified His
Address and Telephone. the Deft.'s Attorney
Inquired About the Deft. Leaving the State
Of Illinois. After Discussion With Supervisor
Dixon, P.o. Explained That the Deft. Is Not
Allowed To Leave the State Without Permission
From the Court. This Is Indicated On the Bond
8lip. P.o. Was Informed That They Would Be
Motioning the Case Up Today To Request Permission.
P.o. Stated That Pre-Trial Will Follow All Court
Orders
02/25/2019 REC'D FILE FOLDER. QUICK
ACTION: Completed
02/25/2019  ARREST CHECK QUICK
ACTION: No New Arrests
NOTE: Per Clerks Iclear Leads
02/25/2019 CUSTODY CHECK QUICK
ACTION: Completed
NOTE: Pexr Inmate Locator, Not In Custody

(TROC/PS520/REV. 082916)




DOROTHY BROWN
CLERK OF THE CIRCUHT COURT

Criminal Division
2650 S. California, 5™ FI, - Room 526
Chicago, lllinois 60608
(773} 674-3678
{773) 674-4444 FAX
www.cookcountyclerkofcourt.org

. OFFICE OF THE CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY

REQUEST FOR EXTENDED MEDIA COVERAGE

Date: March 14, 2019

TO:

Pat Milhizer, Media Liaison
Office of the Chief Judge

EMC COVERSHEET
For

FR:

A, Robinson, CDC/]. Jackson, ACDC
Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court

Phone: (312) 603-5160
Fax: (312) 603-4938
EMC mail: emc@cookcountyil.gov

Hearing Date: April 17,2019

Phone: (773) 674-3159/ (773) 674-3678
Fax: (773) 674-6710
EMC Mail: emc@cookcountycourt.com

Judge: Honorable Judge Steven Watkins

o~

ISR V.
Courtrsom: 304

Defendanif{s) Name;

JUSSIE SMOLLETT

Service List

Tie: 9.30aim

Defendant(s} Case No:

19CR0310401

o  Office of the Presiding Judge LeRoy Martin, Jr. -Criminal Division
¢ Honorable Judge Steven Watkins-Criminal Division

e Office of the Cook County State’s Attorney-Criminal Division

e Kelly Barnicle, On-Site Media Coordinator, WGN TV

kbarnicle@wgntv.com

Law Firm of:

(773) 883-3203

Riley, Safer, Hoimes, Cancila (Atty #60128)
3 1** National Plaza

Chicago IL 66602

{312) 955-0545

Tina Glandian, Attorney
Geragos & Geragos Law Firm

256 5 Avenue

New York, New York 10001
Total Pages Sent: 2
ce: Renee Banks, Associaie Clerk-Criminal/fuveniie Bureau

Janice Jackson, Acting Assistant Chief Deputy Clerk

.....




chne&t for Extended Medm Coverage (1 2/26/14) CCG 0133

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
_DEPARTMENT, ... DISTRICT/DIVISION

Paople

f’i'aintiff(s:}f Pctitionef(ﬁ)

: 19 ¢r 6810401
Casc No‘ S s )

Jussie Smollett

Defendant(s)/Respondent(s) .
REQUEST FOR EXTENDED MEDIA COVERAGE

The undersigned media coordinatar hereby states as follows: ‘

1. “lhis request is made on behalf of all news media organizarions.

2. I'hereby request consent to provide extended media coverage of the proceeding scheduled on the

! dayof Al ., %i9arche __ . Lelghion Criminal Courthouse

2600 8. Calfornia_ e Chicago . ., Hliwos,

3. Extended mcdla coverage is requested for:

[ Jthe proceeding described above
[rha procesding deseribad above and all contivances of thar procesding

@ the proceeding described above and all future proceedings in this case, including continuances
4. The type of extended media coverage requested is as follows (Include type of equipment, number of personnel,

live or delaved publication, audio or video, etc.):

rgquest for 2 video camera's, 2 personnel (WGN TV and NBC Camera cperators) 2 tripods, 4 nics wicable and box to feed proceeding back live
_witpamtiadene-ﬂstm&éﬁmpmwun&cmm{mem#b&mpIQKWMMWWMMWMQMH@L@@WMMM%M—M
5. 'The on-site media coordinacor fot this proceeding will be: Name Kelly Barnicle

News Media Organization: WGN TV
2601 W, Bradley Place
Address:

Telephone: _ _?73 889 9208 Email Address: :
6. 1 will abide by all the pwvxsxons GF rhe }limons Supreme Court’s Policy far Extended Medm C’ouemge in tbe Czr—
cuit Courts of fllinois and the Cook County Circuit Court’s General Administzative Oxdm 2014 12 on extended

media coverage, and perform all duties required of me as the media coordinazor,

kba’amicie@'wgn!v com

7. 'This request for extended media coverage is filed {check the appropriare box):

gat feast fourteen (14) days in advance of the proceeding identified above; or

{1 less than fourteen (14) days in advance of the proceeding identified above because . =0
! i?{ g’ﬂﬁl[ / g Kelly Sarnicte ; - ,T,;
Signatum T i} ~ Print Name™ =

WOGN TV

News Media Qrganinduion: o
za(ﬂ Wﬂlﬂdlé Place Chlca 0, I 60618 T
Address: 7 v @ .

Telephone: ____
DOROTHY BROWN, CLERIK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINQIS

7?3 883 3203 .Ernaii Addréss- ) ‘ wgnlvi_r}fo@sribunem.eqia.com




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, )

)
V. ) Case No. 19 CR 0310401

)

JUSSIE SMOLLETT, )
) Steven G. Watkins,

Defendant. ) Judge Presiding
ORDER SETTING HEARING

ON REQUEST FOR EXTENDED MEDIA COVERAGE

PLEASE BE ADVISED that on March 14, 2019, a Request for Extended Media Coverage was
filed in the above-entitled cause for the proceeding set for April 17, 2019. The request seeks to record
and broadcast the proceedings using television cameras and/or still photography cameras.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:

1. A hearing on the Request for Extended Media Coverage will be held on April 2, 2019 at 9:30
a.m. before this Court in Courtroom 304 of the George N. Leighton Criminal Court Building,
2650 8. California Avenue, Chicago, lllinois.

2. Any interested party or witness who objects to the request must file a written objection using the
form attached to this Order in the Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Cook County —
Criminal Division, 2650 S. California Avenue, Room 526, Chicago, Illinois 60608 no_later
than 4:30 p.m. on March 29, 2019. '

3. All Attorneys of Record shall serve a copy of this Order and attached Objection Form to each -
witness they intend to call at trial or at future proceedings in this cause.

Dated: ENTERED:

4L

,.,/?7 N 7
Circuit Court of Cook County
Criminal Division e




1 | PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
COUNTY DEPARTMENT - CRIMINAL DIVISION

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that to provide for the orderly and timely disposition of this ©
- managenment scheduie and requirements shall govern:

L.

:._ 6.

10.

b L

S Effective 02-01-18

) .
) ) X ' i
) CASENO. i@Qz 2[@%
. )
&4 5 & 6m D) j & j{f‘? )
Defendant )
CASE MANAGEMENTORDER [ ENTERED |

(778-Entered / 779-Amended) JUDGE STEVE G, WATKING-2117

@ iaif STATE’S DISCOVERY: The State’s discovery production shajbbeughs
R Tl _ _
H D Tt ANSWER/MOTIONS: Defendant’s Answer and all pretrial motions shall be filed. 331/4341)
o -5 -4
I ﬂ | FINAL PRETRIAL CONFERENCE: The final pretrial conference will be held, 3324342
¥
[
Q _’% m 5 gﬁ DISPOSITION TARGET: Deadline for disposition of the case. (4333/4343)
Track | Class Discovery | Answer /Pretrial Motions | Final Pretrial Conforence Disposition

I 3&4 | <2 Months <3 Months < 5 Months < 6 Months

1 i& 2 | <3 Monibs < 8 Nionihs < & ivionths <9 Months

I X < 4 Months < 6 Months < 10 Months <12 Months

iv M < 12 Months | <16 Months < 20 Months < 24 Months

EVALUATIONS: All ADES, TASC, MENTAL HEALTH, SEX OFFENDER, PTI and SPECIALTY PROGRAM
evaluations must be completed by the deadline for the Defendant to file an Answer/Pretrial Motions. The trial will
not be delayed due to an untimely request for an evaluation,

402 CONFERENCES: Absent good cause, 402 Conferences are not held after Final Pretrial Conference deadline.

PRETRIAL MOTIONS: All pretrial motions shall be heard prior to the Final Pretrial Conference. All routine
motions in limine and proposed jury instructions must be presented by both sides at the Final Pretrial Conference.

SPEEDY TRIAL: This Order does not affect the Defendant’s right to demand a Speedy Trial nor the State’s
continuing legal obligations under the rules governing discovery.

CONTINUANCES: Unless requested at a status hearing, the Court will not grant a continuance of a hearing or trial
without a written motion, supported by affidavit. The case must be advanced for the continuance motion to be heard
prior to the subject hearing/trial date.

MODIFICATIONS: This Order is subject to change at the discretion of the Court or upon good cause shown.
Agreements between counsel shall not affect any deadline in this order, absent court approval,

VIOLATIONS: Counsel must notify the Court of discovery violations by filing a written motion to compel within
the discovery period. These deadlines apply whether or not the case is on the court call that day. Governing court
rules apply to deadlines that fall on a weekend or holiday. A violation of this Or

ENTERED:




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY F 5 i-. iy

COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ) é%g?ﬁo?"fi Y Bj
) OF Clrcijjy
Plaintiff, )
)
v. ) No. 19 CR 3104
} {(Municipal No. 19-110327101)
JUSSIE SMOLLETT, )
)
Defendant. )

MOTION FOR WITHDRAWAL OF ATTORNEY

Defendant, Jussie Smollett, by his attorneys, Geragos & Geragos, APC and Riley
Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP, requests leave to withdraw Jack B. Prior of Hart
McLaughlin & Eldridge as an attorney of record and states as follows:

1. Jack B. Prior entered an initial appearance as an attorney of record for Mr.
Smollett.

2. Other attorneys, including Mark Geragos and Tina Glandian of Geragos &
Geragos, APC, and Patricia Brown Holmes, Ronald S. Safer, and Brian O. Watson of
Riley Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP, have since entered their appearances and will
continue to represent Mr. Smollett as attorneys of record.

3. Jack B. Prior’s withdrawal will not cause delay or prejudice.

WHEREFORE, Defendant, Jussie Smollett, by his attorneys, Geragos & Geragos
and Riley Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP, requests leave to withdraw Jack B. Prior of Hart

McLaughlin & Eldridge as an attorney of record.

-1-

MAR 14 2014

LOw
CUURI;“{




Dated: March 14, 2019

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Tack B. Prior

Jack B. Prior

Hart McLaughlin & Eldridge
22 W Washington St, #1600
Chicago, IL 60602

(312) 955-0545
jprior@hmelegal.com

/s/ Patricia Brown Holmes

Patricia Brown Holmes
Ronald S. Safer

Brian O. Watson

Riley Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP
Three First National Plaza
70 W Madison St, Ste 2900
Chicago, Illinois 60602
(312) 471-8700
phelmes@rshe-law.com
rsafer@rshe-law.com
bwatson@rshe-law.com
Firm No. 60128

/8! Ting Glandian

Mark J. Geragos

Tina Glandian

Geragos & Geragos, APC
644 South Figueroa Street
Los Angeles, CA 90017-3411
(213} 625-3900

&

Geragos & Geragos, APC
256 5th Avenue

New York, NY 10010
mark@geragos.com
tina@geragos.com




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned attorney certifies on March 14, 2019, these papers were served
to the attorneys of record.

Joseph Magats
Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office
69 W. Washington 5t,
Chicago, 1L 60602
joseph.magats@cookcountyil.gov

Risa Lanier
Cook County State’s Attorney’s Office
2650 S. California Avenue, 11D40
Chicago, IL 60608
risa.lanier@cookcountyil.gov

/s/ Brian O. Watson

Brian O. Watson




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, )
)
Plaintiff, }
)
v ) No. 19 CR 3104
) (Municipal No. 19-110327101)
JUSSIE SMOLLETT, )
)
Defendant. )

ORDER OF WITHDRAWAL OF ATTORNEY

This cause coming before the Court on the Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney,
due notice having been given and the Court being fuily advised in the premises, IT 15
HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

1. The Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney is granted; and

2. Jack B. Prior is given leave and deemed instanter to withdraw his
appearance for Defendant, Jussie Smollett.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

ENTERED |
JUDGE STEVE G. WATKINS - 2117 e
MAR 14 201 JX N
cmaﬁ‘%ﬁom"" BROWN 3

A SR, o

i

Cipuit c&%&c’oo Coungy =

&Zriminal Division ===




Sheet # Defendant Sheet # CRIMINAL DISPOSITION SHEET Branch/Room/Location CLERK USE ONLY

0058 0001 OF 0002 1701 101 LEROY K. MARTIN JR. 0058

100 CHICAGO POLICE DEPT
CASE NUMBER DEFENDANT NAME ATTORNEY COURT DATE | COURT CALL/TIME
195CR0310401 SMOLLETT JUSSIE 03-12-2019 | 1-0900 AM
CB/DCN # IR# EM BOND # i C BOND AMOUNT
019771648 2397168 1375606 X SIUU, 000, 00
CHARGES COURT ORDER ENTERED CODES
CO01 720-5/26-1(RA) (4)

FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

coo02

720-5/26-1(A) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

c003

720-5/26~1{A} {4}
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

Co04

T20-5/26-1(A) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

€005

T20-5/26-1(R) (4}
FALSE REFORT OF

OFFENSE

C006

720-5/26~1 (&) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

coG?

720-5/26-1(A) (&)
FALSE REPORYT OF

OFFENSE

coog

720~5/26-1(a) (4}
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

Cco09

720-5/26~1(A) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

coln

720-5/26-1(A) (£)
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

|44 min

THOS57 6 TR (YT
FALSE REPORT OF

OFFENSE

RESPONSIBLE FOR CODING AND COMPLETIONM BY DEPUTY CLERK:

VERIFIED BY: -

= o
JUDGE:
) L
L




Sheet #
0058

Defendant Sheet #
0002 OF 0002

CRIMINAL DISPOSITION SHEET

1701 101
100 CHICAGD POLICE DEPT

Branch/Room/Location
LEROY K. MARTIN JR

-

CLERK USE ONLY
0058

CASE NUMBER
19CR0310401

SMOLLETT JUSSIE

DEFENDANT NAME

ATTORNEY

COURT DATE
03-12-2019

COURT CALL/TIME
1-0900 AM

CB/DCN #
019771648

R#
2397168

EM

BOND #
1375606

BOMND AMOUNT

X 3100, O0UT00

CHARGES

COURT ORDER ENTERED

CODES

€012 720-5/26-1(A) (4)
FALSE REPORT O¥ OFFENSE

€013 720-5/26-1(A) (4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE

CO0L4 720-5/26-1(R)(4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE

€015 720-5/26-1(a) (4}
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE

€016 720-5/26-1(a)(4)
FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE

aun

RESPONSIBLE FOR CODING AND COMPLETION BY DEPUTY CLERK:

VERIFIED BY:




Appearance (01/29/18) CCCR N114
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

The People of the State of Tllinois
Plaintiff | No. 19-CR-3104

Charge
720 ILCS 5/26-1{(2)(4)

TJussie Smollett

Disorderly conduct

Defendant(s)

APPEARANCE

The undersigned, as attorney, enters the appeatance of

Jussie Smollett

Defendant(s) in the above entitled cause.

/s/ Ronald S. Safer

Attornev
L

Atty. No: 6186143, Firm No. 60128 -__;_1.‘\:\

Ronald S. Safer, Riley Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP

Atty Nam
Atty. for: ]ussie Smollett f'
Address: 9 W Madison St, Suite 2900 e %f_;s
City: Chicago State: _&

Zip: 60602

(ST NP
T s,

2

j JUDGE LEROVT, MEA:%‘TW 1844
MAR 12 2940

]

H

!

fr Cerp SRQTHY BROWN
L SRy Gour |

Telephone: (312) 471-8700

Primaty Eemail tsafer@rshc-law.com

Dotrothy Brown, Cletk of the Circuit Court of Cook County, lllinois cookcountyclerkofcourt.org
Page1of 1




Appearance (01/29/18) CCCR N114
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

The People of the State of Hlinois
Plaintiff | No. 19-CR-3104
Charge

720 TLCS 5/26-1(a)(4)

Jussie Smollett

Disotderly conduct

Defendant(s)

APPEARANCE

The undetsigned, as attorney, enters the appearance of

Jussie Smoliett

Defendant{s) in the above entitled cause.

Atty. No.: 707 ARDC Asgmit

Atty Name: Tina Glandian, Geragos & Geragos

Atty. for: Jussie Smollett

Address: 256 5th Avenue

New Yotk

City: State: . i‘g“““mﬁ*"“?:"‘““
Zip: 10001 g JUDGE LEROY K. MARTIN-1844
. D i - |
Telephone: (213) 625-3900 ! MAR 12 2018
| . e gRomy
Primary Benail tina@geragos.com - OF 200K GOUNTY, [

Dorothy Brown, Cletk of the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois cookcountycletkofcourt.org
Page1of 1




Appearance

(01/29/18) CCCR N114
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

The People of the State of Illinois

L 19-CR-3104
Plaintiff | No.

. Charge
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a)(4)

Jussie Smollett

Disorderly conduct

Defendant(s)

APPEARANCE

The undetsigned, as attorney, enters the appearance of

Jusste Smollett

Defendant(s) in the above entitled cause.

Atty. No: 707 ARDC Asgmtt

Atty Name: Mark J. Geragos, Geragos & Geragos

TRRRCELE
o L

Atty. for: Jussie Smollett

Py
SO

Addtess; 644 South F]_guej:oa Street

L™

it

i3]
City: Los Angeles State:
Zip: 90017
213) 625-3900 R
Telephone: (213) = :
mark@geragos.com JUDPF LEROY . WARTIN- 1844
Primary Email:

| MAR 12 2019

. ORGTQYBRQWN !

n'f

.......

Dorothy Brown, Clerk of the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois cookcountyclerkofcourt.org
Page tof 1 .




(01/29/18) CCCR N1i4

Appearance
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
19-CR-3104

The People of the State of Hinois

Jussie Smollett

No.

Plaintiff
Chazge

720 ILCS 5/26-1{a)(4)

Disordetly conduct

Defendant(s)

APPEARANCE

The undersigned, as attorney, eaters the appearance of
Jussie Smollett

Defendant(s) in the above entitled cause

6194645, Firm No. 60128

Atty. No.:
Atty Name:

/s/ Patricia Brown Folmes

Patricia Brown Holmes, Riley Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP

Atty. for:

Jussie Smollett

70 W Madison St, Suite 2900

Address:
City: Chicago

State:

Zip: 60602

(312) 471-8700

Telephone:

Primar

v Brmail: pholmes@rshc-law.com

Page10f 1

Attorney

TEE
iy e

_‘ .

oot LeRoT R, R
MAR 12 2019

AROWN
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Dotothy Brown, Clerk of the Citcuit Court of Cook County, Illinois cookcountycletkofcourt.org




Appearance (01/29/18) CCCR N114
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

The People of the State of Illinois 19-CR-3104
Phintiff | No. 27777

Charge
720 TL.CS 5/26-1(2)(4)

Jussie Smollett

Disordetly conduct

Defendant(s) 3"/ L/,-/ ch

APPEARANCE

The undersigned, as attorney, enters the appearance of

Jussie Smollett

Defendant(s) in the above entitled cause. C?‘

/s/ Btian Q. \Watsofiif-‘??

Attorney
Atty. No.: 6304248, Firm No. 60128
Aty Name: Dtian O- Watson, Riley Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP
Atty. for: Jussie Smollett B
Address: 10 W Madison St, Suite 2900 iJUDGE LE% N é‘? m%ﬂ;;;;l
City: 11280 Stater 1L [ OMAR 12 gy
Zip: 60602 irtmggﬁ?ﬁ?agﬂowm /

O GOOICCALN Lﬁ"”“'f;

Telephone: (312) 471-8700

Primary Frmail: bwatson@tshe-law.com

Dorothy Brown, Cletk of the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois cookcountyclerkofcourt.otg
Page 1 0f 1




SMOLLETT, T1%110327101 MARCH 12, 2012

NAME: SMOLLETT, JUSSIE DOCKET #: 19110327101
DATE OF BIRTH: 06/21/1982 CASE INITIATION: 02/21/2019
OFFICER: QUICK SUPERVISOR : DIXON IR #: 2397168

CHARGE: FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE CHARGE TYPE: FEL

ISB #: 2397168 FBI #:679854TC5

BOND INFORMATION

BOND TYPE: D BOND AMOUNT: 100,000.00(02/21/2019) JUDGE:JOHN F LYKE, JR.

BOND CONDITIONS: MET ; DATE :
PRETRIAL FEES () 02/21/2019
Defendant Must Pay $50.00 Per Month.
AVOID ALL CONTACT W/WITNESSES () 02/21/2019
No Contact With Abel Or 0la Osundairo.
SURRENDER ALIL PASSPORTS TO PTS () 02/21/2019
MAILING ADDRESS VERIFICATION () 02/21/2019
LEVEL M MONITORING £ 92/21/2019

ASSESSMENT INFORMATION
ASSESSMENT DATE: 02/21/2019
PSA EVAL LEVEL: M

%% DSA ONLY **%

0=Not Assessed

M=MONITORING - Initial Contact, Criminal Record Checks, Court Date Reminders
1=MONITORING Level + Monthly In-Person Contacts

2=MONITORING Level + 2 Times Per Month In-Person Contacts

3=MONITORING + 4 Times Per Month Alternate In-Person and By-Phone Contacts

CURRENT ADDRESS
(01/01/2017) 340 E NORTH WATER ST, #3900 CHICAGO 160611 (310)993-1649
OTHER INFO:

CURRENT EMPLOYMENT 5

EMPLOYED?: ¥

{CURR- } 20TH CENTURY FOX
.00 ACTOR

SCHEDULED EVENTS

03/14/2019 RETURN CCURT DATE BRANCH 9S8 11:30 A.M.
2600 South California, Rocm 101 JUDGEE: Presiding Judge

MOST CURRENT EVENT RECORDS
{ Reverse Chronological Order )




03/12/2019

02/28/2013

02/2%/2019

02/25/2015

02/25/2019

02/25/2019

02/25/2019

02/22/2019

02/22/2019
02/22/2019

ARREST CHECK QUICK
ACTICN: No New Arrests
NOTE: Per Clerks Iclear Leads Traffic
COLLATERAL CONTACT QUICK
ACTION: Completed
NOTE: P.o. Called the Deft. the Call Went To Voicemail
And the Mailbox Wag Full. P.o. Called the Deft.'s
Attorney, Tina Gladini, 818-395-7375. P.o. Wanted
To Contact the Deft. To Provide Him With
Instructions For Mailing In the $50 Monthly
Pre-Trial Fee. P.o. Emailed the Instructions
To the Deft.'s Attorney and Was Told the
Information Would Be Given To the Deft.
REC*D CALL FROM CLIENT QUICK
ACTION: Completed
NOTE: P.o. Received A Telephone Call From the Deft.'s
Attorney, Tina Gladini, 818-395-7975. the
Deft . Was Also On the Line. P.o. Reviewed the
Conditions of Bond. the Deft. Verified His
Address and Telephone. the Deft.'s Attorney
Inquired About the Deft. Leaving the State
Of Tllinois. After Discussion With Supervisor
Dixon, P.o. Explained That the Deft. Is Not
Allowed To Leave the State Without Permissicn
From the Court. This Is Indicated On the Bond
Slip. P.o. Was Informed That They Would Be
Maotioning rhe Case Up Today To Request Permission.
P.o. Stated That Pre-Trial Will Follow All Court
Qrders
REC'D FILE FOLDER. QUICK
ACTION: Completed
ARREST CHECK QUICK
ACTION: No New Arrests
NOTE: Per Clerks Iclear Leads
CUSTODY CHECK QUICK
ACTION: Completed
NOTE: Per Inmate Locator, Not In Custody
COURT DATE NOTICE TC DEF QUICK
ACTION: Defendant Contacted
CALLED CLIENT DIXON
NOTE: Smollett T19110327101. This Sup Called Deft At The
Number Provided, 310.993.1649, and Left A Message
On the Voicemail For Deft To Call This Sup Back At
7713 . 674 .3674 To Review Defts Conditions of Bond.
This Sup Also Left Defts Next Court Date Informa-
Tion of March 14, 2019 @ 11:30 Am AU 26th & Cal
Room 101. Deft Given the Officer Assigned To Case,
Officer Quick, Name and Phone Number.
ASSIGN SUPERVISOR DIXON
ASSIGN CASEWORKER QUICK

(TROC/PS520/REV. 082916)




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)
Plaintiff, )
V. ) No. 19-CR-3104
) éj _
JUSSIE SMOLLETT, ) -/ 94/?
) e
Defendant. ) Y
A g
VERIFIED STATEMENT OF OUT-OF-STATE ATTORNLEY MARK J. GE TAG.OS. e

PURSUANT TO SUPREME COURT RULE 707 R

I, MARK J. GERAGOS, submit this Verified Statement pursuant to Illinois Supreme | ﬂ;,’%
Court Rule 707, W

1. My full name is MARK JOHN GERAGOS. The address of offices from which I practice
law and related email address and telephone numbers are as follows:

GERAGOS & GERAGOS, APC, 644 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90017-3411;
mark@geragos.com; 213-625-3900

GERAGOS & GERAGOS, APC, 256 5th Avenue, New York, NY 10010;
mark{@geragos.com; 213-625-3900

2. I represent JUSSIE SMOLLETT in People of the State of Iilinois vs. Jussie Smollett,
Case No. 19-CR-3104.

3(a). 1have not filed any other appearance pursuant to this rule during this calendar year.
3(b). T have notreceived a registration number from the ARDC,
4(a). 1 list each jurisdiction of admission, including any state, territory, or commonwealth of

the United States, the District of Columbia, or in a foreign country, and my full admission name
and license number.

CALIFORNIA STATE BAR MARK JOHN GERAGOS 108325

4(b). I attach as Exhibit | a letter or certificate of good standing for each of the jurisdictions
listed in paragraph 4(a) above.

5. I have no office or other presence in Illinois for the practice of law,




6. I submit to the disciplinary authority of the Supreme Court of Illinois;

7. I have undertaken to become familiar with and to comply, as if admitted to practice in
Itlinois, with the rules of the Supreme Court of IHinois, including the Iilinois Rules of
Professional Conduct and the Supreme Court Rules on Admission and Discipline of Attorneys,
and other Illinois law and practices that pertain to the proceeding;

8. The full name, business address and ARDC number of the Ilinois attorney with whom 1
have associated in the matter is: Patricia Brown Holmes, Riley Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP,
Three First National Plaza, 70 W Madison St, Suite 2900, Chicago, lllinois 60602,
pholmes@rshe-law.com, (312) 471-8700. ARDC #6194645.

9. I certify that I have served this Statement upon the following and that these parties are all
entitled to service under this rule:

JOSEPH MAGATS CRIMINAL DIVISION

RISA LANIER 2650 SOUTH CALIFORNIA AVE.
COOK COUNTY STATE’S ATTORNEY LEIGHTON CRIMINAL COURT BUILD.
69 W. WASHINGTON STHFLOOR, ROOM 526

CHICAGO, 1L 60602 CHICAGO, IL 606608

Joseph.magats(@cookcountvil.gov
Risa.lanier@cookcountyil.gov

Verification

I verify the accuracy and completeness of each of the above staf

Counsel for Defendant
Jussie Smollett
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THE STATE BAR
OF CALIFORNIA

180 HOWARD STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94103-1617 TELEPHONE: 888-800-3400

CERTIFICATE OF STANDING

February 12, 2019

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

This is to certify that according to the records of the State Bar, MARK JOHN
GERAGOS, #108325 was admitted to the practice of law in this state by the
Supreme Court of California on dune 3, 19383; and has beei siiice that date,
and is at date hereof, an ACTIVE member of the State Bar of California; that
the public record states that information has been provided pursuant to
Business and Professions Code section 6086.1(c); and that no
recommendation for discipline for professional or other misconduct has ever
been made by the Board of Trustees or a Disciplinary Board to the Supreme
Court of the State of California.

THE STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA

Louise Turner
Custodian of Records




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

Plaintiff,

V. No. 19-CR-3104

)
)
)
)
JUSSIE SMOLLETT, )
)
)

Defendant.

VERIFIED STATEMENT OF OUT-OF-STATE ATTORNEY TINA GLANDIAN 3
PURSUANT TO SUPREME COURT RULE 707 B o B
I, TINA GLANDIAN, submit this Verified Statement pursuant to Illmms Supreme Com:t
Rule 707. .

T“»}
vE2

I. My fiill name is TINA GLANDIAN. The address of offices froin which I pldbtibt law
and related email address and telephone numbers are as follows:

GERAGOS & GERAGOS, APC, 644 South Figueroa Street, Los Angeles, CA 90017-3411;
tina@geragos.com; 213-625-3900

GERAGOS & GERAGOS, APC, 256 5th Avenue, New York, NY 10010;
tina@geragos.com; 213-625-3900

2. I represent JUSSIE SMOLLETT in People of the State of Hiinois vs. Jussie Smollett,
Case No. 19-CR-3104.

3(a). 1have not filed any other appearance pursuant to this rule during this calendar year.
3(b). 1have not received a registration number from the ARDC.
4(a). I hist each jurisdiction of admission, including any state, tetritory, or commonwealth of

the United States, the District of Columbia, or in a foreign country, and my full admission name
and license number.

CALIFORNIA STATE BAR TINA GLANDIAN 251614
NEW YORK STATE BAR TINA GLANDIAN 5027404
FLORIDA STATE BAR TINA GLANDIAN 0101093
NEVADA STATE BAR TINA GLANDIAN 12582

4(b). T attach as Exhibit 1 a letter or certificate of good standing for each of the jurisdictions
listed in paragraph 4(a) above.




5. I have no office or other presence in Illinois for the practice of law.
6. I submit to the disciplinary authority of the Supreme Court of Illinois;

7. I have undertaken to become familiar with and to comply, as if admitted to practice in
Iflinois, with the rules of the Supreme Court of lllinois, including the Illinois Rules of
Professional Conduct and the Supreme Court Rules on Admission and Discipline of Attorneys,
and other Illinois law and practices that pertain to the proceeding;

8. The full name, business address and ARDC number of the Ilinois attorney with whom 1
have associated in the matter is: Patricia Brown Holmes, Riley Safer Holmes & Cancila LLP,
Three First National Plaza, 70 W Madison St, Suite 2900, Chicago, Illinois 60602,
pholmes(@rshe-law.com, (312) 471-8700. ARDC #6194645.

9. I certify that I have served this Statement upon the following and that these parties are all
entitled to service under this rule:

JOSEPH MAGATS CRIMINAL DIVISION

RISA LANIER 2650 SOUTH CALIFORNIA AVE.
COOK COUNTY STATE’S ATTORNEY LEIGHTON CRIMINAL COURT BUILD.
09 W. WASHINGTON 5TH FLOOR, ROOM 526

CHICAGO, IL 60602 CHICAGO, IL 60608

Joseph.magats@cookcountyil.gov
Risa.lanier@cookcountyil.gov

Verification

I verity the accuracy and completeness of each of the above statements.

Titg Glandian jd

Counsel for Defendant
Jussie Smollett







THE STATE BAR
OF CALIFORNIA

180 HOWARD STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94105-1617 TELEPHONE: 888-800-3400

CERTIFICATE OF STANDING

February 26, 2019

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

This is to certify that according to the records of the State Bar, TINA
GLANDIAN, #251614 was admitted to the practice of law in this state by the
Supreme Court of California on Deceimbei 3, 2007; and has been since that
date, and is at date hereof, an ACTIVE member of the State Bar of
California; and that no recommendation for discipline for professional or
other misconduct has ever been made by the Board of Trustees or a
Disciplinary Board to the Supreme Court of the State of California,

THE STATE BAR OF CALIFORNIA

M-

Denise Velasco
Custodian of Records
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651 East Jefferson Street
Tallahassee, FL 32399-2300
Joshua E. Boyle 850/561-5600
Executive Director www FLORIDABAR.org

State of Florida )

County of Leon ) ' In Re: 0101093
Tina Glandian
Geragos & Geragos, APC
7TW 24th St Apt 2
New York, NY 10010-3212

[ CERTIFY THE FOLLOWING:
I am the custodian of membership records of The Florida Bar.

Membership records of The Florida Bar indicate that The Florida Bar member listed above was admitted to
practice law in the state of Florida on November 14, 2012.

The Florida Bar member above is an active member in good standing of The Florida Bar who is eligible to
practice law in the state of Florida.

Dated this 26th day of February, 2019.

Cynthia B. Jackson, CFO

Administration Division
The Florida Bar

PG:R10
{CTM-35979




State Bar of Nevada
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G.J. NO, 604
GENERAL NO. 1SCR-3104

CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY
COUNTY DEPARTMENT
CRIMINAL DIVISION

FEBRUARY 2019

The Pecople of the State of
Illinois
V.

Jussie Smollett

INDICTMENT FCR
DISCRDERLY CONDUCT

A ;?UE BILL
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Foreman of the Grand Jury

WITNESS
Detective: Michael Theis, Star$#21217
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF COOK )

The FEBRUARY 2019 Grand Jury of the
Circuit Court of Cook County,

The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their oaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE OFFICER MUHAMMED BAIG, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF A BATTERY, A HATE CRIME AND AN AGGRAVATED
BATTERY, REPORTING THAT ON JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON
THE PUBLIC WAY NEAR 341 EAST LOWER NORTH WATER STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TWO UNKNOWN MALES, DRESSED IN BLACK AND ONE OF WHOM
WORE A BLACK MASK, APPROACHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT, CALLED JUSSIE SMOLLETT
RACIAL AND HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND STRUCK JUSSIE SMOLLETT ABOUT THE FACE
WITH THEIR HANDS, CAUSING BODILY HARM TC JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND THE TWO
UNKNOWN MALES MADE PHYSICAL CONTACT OF AN INSULTING OR PROVOKING NATURE
WITH JUSSIE SMOLLETT, POURING AN UNKNOWN CHEMICAL SUBSTANCE ONTO JUSSIE
SMOLLETT, AND JUSSTE SMOLLETT KNEW THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSION
THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND FOR BELIEVING THAT SUCH OFFENSES HAD BEEN
COMMITTED,

IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTICN 26-1(a) (4) OF ILLINOIS COMPILED
STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 1
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their oaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that BE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CARUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE OFFICER MUHAMMED BAIG, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF A BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5
SECTION 12~3(a) (1) OF THE ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES, REPORTING THAT ON
JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE PUBLIC WAY NEAR 341
EAST LOWER NORTH WATER STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOLS, TWO
UNKNOWN MALES, DRESSED IN BLACK AND ONE OF WHOM WORE A BLACK MASK,
APPROACHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT, CALLED JUSSIE SMOLLETT RACIAL AND HOMOPHOBIC
SLURS, AND STRUCK JUSSIE SMOLLETT ABOUT THE FACE WITH THEIR HANDS,
CAUSING BODILY HARM TO JUSSIE SMOLLETYT, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT KNEW THAT AT
THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND FOR

TR T T

BELIEVING THAT SUCH AN COFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIQLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1(a})(4)/(12-3(a) (1)) OF
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the. Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 2
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their ocaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGC POLICE OFFICER MUHAMMED BAIG, A REPCORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF A BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5
SECTION 12-3(a)(2) OF THE TLTLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES, REPORTING THAT ON
JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE PUBLIC WAY NEAR 341
EAST LOWER NORTH WATER STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLiINOIS, TWO
UNKNOWN MALES, DRESSED IN BLACK AND ONE OF WHOM WORE A BLACK MASK,
APPROACHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT, CALLED JUSSIE SMOLLETT RACIAL AND HOMOPHOBIC
SLURS, AND STRUCK JUSSIE SMOLLETT ABOUT THE FACE WITH THEIR HANDS, AND
THE TWQO UNKNOWN MALES MADE PHYSICAL CONTACT OF AN INSULTING OR PROVOKING
NATURE WITH JUSSIE SMOLLETT, POURING AN UNKNOWN CHEMICAL SUBSTANCE ONTO
JUSSIE SMCLLETT, AND JUSSIE SMCLLETT KNEW THAT AT THE TIME CF THIS
TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND FOR BELIEVING THAT SUCH AN
QFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1(a) (4) OF ILLINOIS COMPILED
STATUTES ACT 1952 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 3
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illineis, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their oaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISQORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE OFFICER MUHAMMED BAIG, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,

THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF AN AGGRAVATED BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER
720 ACT 5 SECTION 12-3.05(c) OF THE ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES, REPORTING
THAT ON JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE PUBLIC WAY
NEAR 341 EAST LOWER NORTH WATER STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY,
ILLINOIS, TWO UNKNOWN MALES, DRESSED IN BLACK AND ONE OF WHOM WORE A
BLACK MASK, APPROACHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT, CALLED JUSSIE SMOLLETT RACIAL AND
HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND STRUCK JUSSIE SMOLLETT ABOUT THE FACE WITH THEIR
HANDS, CAUSING BODILY HARM TO JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT KNEW
THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND FOR

BELIEVING THAT G5UCH AN COFFENSE iAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIQLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1{a) (4)/(12-3.05(c)) OF
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1892 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illincis.

COUNT NUMBER 4
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their oaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC QOFFIiCER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TOC WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE OFFICER MUHAMMED BAIG, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF AN AGGRAVATED BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER
720 ACT 5 SECTION 12-3.05{c¢c} OF THE ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES, REPCRTING
THAT ON JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE PUBLIC WAY
NEAR 341 EAST LOWER NORTH WATER STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY,
ILLINOIS, TWO UNKNOWN MALES, DRESSED IN BLACK AND ONE OF WHOM WORE A
BLACK MASK, APPROACHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT, CALLED JUSSIE SMOLLETT RACIAL AND
HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND STRUCK JUSSIE SMOLLETT ABOUT THE FACE WITH THEIR
HANDS, AND THE TWC UNKNOWN MATES MADE PHYSICAL CONTACT OF AN INSULTING OR
PROVOKING NATURE WITH JUSSIE SMOLLETT, POURING AN UNKNOWN CHEMICAL
SUBSTANCE ONTO JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT KNEW THAT AT ToHk 'T1ME
OF THIS TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO REASCONABLE GROUND FOR BELIEVING THAT
SUCH AN OFFENSE EAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIQLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1(a) (4)/(12-3.05(c)) OF
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 5
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their ocaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE OFFICER MUHAMMED BAIG, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF AN AGGRAVATED BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER
720 ACT 5 SECTION 12-2.05(f) (2} OF THE ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES,
REPORTING THAT ON JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE
PUBLIC WAY NEAR 341 EAST LOWER NORTH WATER STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TWO UNKNOWN MALES, DRESSED IN BLACK AND ONE OF WHOM
WORE A BLACK MASK TO CONCEAL HIS IDENTITY, APPROACHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT,
CALLED JUSSIE SMOLLETT RACIAL AND HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND STRUCK JUSSIE
SMOLLETT ABOUT THE FACE WITH THEIR HANDS, CAUSING BODILY HARM TO JUSSIE
SMOLLETT, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT KNEW THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSION
THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND FOR BELIEVING THAT SUCH AKX OFFENSE HAD
BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1(a) (4)/(12-3.05(f) (2)) OF
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 6
CASE NUMBER 1SCR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489



The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
people of the State of Illinois, upon their oaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smcllett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE OFFICER MUHAMMED BAIG, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF AN AGGRAVATED BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER
720 ACT 5 SECTION 12-3.05(f) (2) OF THE ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES,
REPORTING THAT ON JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE
PUBLIC WAY NEAR 341 EAST LOWER NORTH WATER STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TWO UNKNOWN MALES, DRESSED IN BLACK AND ONE OF WHOM
WORE A BLACK MASK TO CONCEAIL HIS IDENTITY, APPROACHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT,
CALLED JUSSIE SMOLLETT RACIAL AND HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND STRUCK JUSSIE
SMOLLETT ABOUT THE FACE, AND THE TWO UNKNOWN MALES MADE PHYSICAL CONTACT
OF AN INSULTING OR PROVOKING NATURE WITH JUSSIE SMOLLETT, POURING AN
UNKNOWN CHEMICAI 3UBSTAKCE ONTO JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND JUSESIE SMCLLETT ENEW
THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND FOR
BELIEVING THAT SUCH AN OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1(a) (4)}/(12-3.05(f) (2)) OF
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 7
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their oaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE OFFICER MUHAMMED BAIG, A REPORT TC THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF A HATE CRIME, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5
SECTTON 12-7.1(a) OF THE ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES, REPORTING THAT ON
JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE PUBLIC WAY NEAR 341
EAST LOWER NORTH WATER STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, TWO
UNKNOWN MALES, APPROACHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT, CALLED JUSSIE SMOLLETT RACIAL
AND HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND STRUCK JUSSIE SMOLLETT ABOUT THE FACE, CAUSING
BODILY HARM TO JUSSIFE SMOLLETT, AND THE TWO UNKNOWN MALES MADE PHYSICAL
CONTACT OF AN INSULTING OR PROVOKING NATURE WITH JUSSIE SMOLLETT, POURING
AN UNKNOWN CHEMICAL SUBSTANCE ONTO JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT

YNEW THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NC REASONABLE CROUND
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FOR BELIEVING THAT SUCH AN OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1(a) (4)/(12-7.1(a)) OF
ILLINOTS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 8
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their ocaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook '

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE DETECTIVE KIM MURRAY, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF A BATTERY, A HATE CRIME AND AN AGGRAVATED
BATTERY, REPORTING THAT ON JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON
THE PUBLIC WAY IN THE MIDDLE OF THE INTERSECTION OF NEW STREET AND LOWER
NORTH WATER STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, JUSSIE SMOLLETT
HEARD RACIAL AND HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND TWC UNKNOWN OFFENDERS APPROACHED
JUSSIE SMOLLETT FROM BEHIND, PUNCHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT IN THE FACE, AND
THAT JUSSIE SMOLLETT FOUGHT BACK, AND HE AND THE TWO UNKNOWN OFFENDERS
FELL TO THE GROUND WHERE JUSSIE SMOLLETT WAS KICKED IN THE BACK, FELT
PULLING AT HIS NECK, AND A LIQUID WAS POURED ONTOQ HIM, AND JUSSIE
SMOLLETT REPORTED THAT ORE OF HI5 ATTACKERS WAS A MALE WHITE, IN DARK
CLOTHING, WEARING A BLACK MASK WITH AN OPEN EYE AREA SHOWING THE SKIN
AROUND HIS EYES, AND THAT THE UNKNOWN OFFFENDERS CAUSED BODILY HARM TO
JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND THAT THE TWO UNKNOWN MALES MADE PHYSICAL CONTACT OF
AN INSULTING OR PROVOKING NATURE WITH JUSSIE SMOLLETT BY POURING A LIQUID
ONTO JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND PUTTING A ROPE AROUND HIS NECK, AND JUSSIE
SMOLLETT KNEW THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO
REASONABLE GROUND FOR BELIEVING THAT SUCH OFFENSES HAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1(a) (4) OF ILLINOIS COMPILED
STATUTES ACT 1952 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 9
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The CGrand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their oaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
commeitted the offense of DISCRDERLY CONDUCT

" in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE DETECTIVE KIM MURRAY, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF A BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5
SECTION 12-3(a) (1) OF THE ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES, REPORTTNG THAT ON
JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE PUBLIC WAY IN THE
MIDDLE OF THE INTERSECTION OF NEW STREET AND LOWER NORTH WATER STREET, IN
CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINCIGS, JUSSIE SMOLLETT HEARD RACIAL AND
HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND TWO OFFENDERS APPROACHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT FROM
BEHIND, PUNCHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT IN THE FACE, AND THAT JUSSIE SMOLLETT
FOUGHT BACK, AND THAT HE AND THE TWO OFFENDERS FELL TO THE GROUND WHERE
JUSSIE SMOLLETT WAS KICKED IN THE BACK, FELT PULLING AT HIS NECK, AND A
LIQUID WAS POURED ONTC 1IM, JUSSIE SMOLLETT REDPORTED THAT ONE O HIS
ATTACKERS WAS A MALE WHITE, IN DARK CLOTHING, WEARING A BLACK MASK WITH
AN OPEN EYE AREA SHOWING THE SKIN AROUND HIS EYES, AND THAT THE
OFFFENDERS CAUSED BODILY HARM TO JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT
KNEW THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND

FOR BELIEVING THAT SUCH AN OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1(a) (4)/(12-3(a)(l)) OF
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 10
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their oaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC CFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGQO POLICE DETECTIVE KIM MURRAY, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT TEAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF A BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5
SECTION 12-3{(a)(2) OF THE ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES, REPORTING THAT ON
JANUGARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE PUBLIC WAY IN THE
MIDDLE OF THE INTERSECTION OF NEW STREET AND LOWER NORTH WATER STREET, IN
CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, JUSSIE SMCLLETT HEARD RACIAL AND
HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND TWO UNKNOWN OFFENDERS APPROACHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT
FROM BEHIND, PUNCHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT IN THE FACE, AND THAT JUSSIE
SMOLLETT FOUGHT BACK, AND THAT HE AND THE TWO OFFENDERS FELL TO THE
GROUND WHERE JUSSIE SMOLLETT WAS KICKED IN THE BACK, AND THAT THE TWO

WITH JUSSIE SMOLLETT BY POURING A LIQUID ONTC JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND JUSSIE
SMOLLETT FELT PULLING AT HIS NECK AND THE UNKNOWN OFFENDERS PUT A ROPE
ARQUND HIS NECK, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED THAT ONE OF HIS ATTACKERS
WAS A MALE WHITE, WEARING A BLACK MASK WITH AN OPEN EYE AREA SHOWING THE
SKIN AROUND HIS EYES, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT KNEW THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS
TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND FOR BELIEVING THAT SUCH AN
CEFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIQLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1(a) (4)/(12-3{a)(2)) OF
ILLINQIS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 11
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinocis, upon their ocaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
commlitted the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE DETECTIVE KIM MURRAY, A REPORT TC THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF AN AGGRAVATED BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER
720 ACT 5 SECTION 12-3.05(c) OF THE TLLTNOIS COMPILED STATUTES, REPORTING
THAT ON JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE PUBLIC WAY IN
THE MIDDLE OF THE INTERSECTION OF NEW STREET AND LOWER NORTH WATER
STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINCIS, JUSSIE SMOLLETT HEARD RACIAL
AND HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND TWO OFFENDERS APPROACHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT FROM
BEHIND, PUNCHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT IN THE FACE, AND THAT JUSSIE SMOLLETT
FOUGHT BACK, AND THAT HE AND THE TWO OFFENDERS FELL TO THE GROUND WHERE
JUSSIE SMOLLETT WAS KICKED IN THE BACK, FELT PULLING AT HIS NECK, AND A

LIQUID WAS PCURED CONTC HIM, JUS3IE SMOLLETT REPCRTED THAT CNE OF HIS

ATTACKERS WAS A MALE WHITE OF UNKNOWN AGE, IN DARK CLOTHING, WEARING A
BLACK MASK WITH AN OPEN EYE AREA SHOWING THE SKIN AROUND HIS EYES, AND
THAT THE UNKNOWN OFFFENDERS CAUSED BODILY HARM TO JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND
JUSSIE SMOLLETT KNEW THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO

REASONABLE GROUND FOR BELIEVING THAT SUCH AN OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED,

TN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1({(a) (4)/(12~3.05(c)) OF
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 12
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their oaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE DETECTIVE KIM MURRAY, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT TEAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,

THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF AN AGGRAVATED BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER
720 ACT 5 QECTION 12-3.05(¢) QOF THE ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES, REPORTING
THAT ON JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE PUBLIC WAY IN
THE MIDDLE OF THE INTERSECTION OF NEW STREET AND LOWER NORTH WATER
STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, JUSSIE SMOLLETT HEARD RACIAL
AND HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND TWO OFFENDERS APPROACHED JUSSI[E SMOLLETT FROM
BEHIND, PUNCHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT IN THE FACE, AND THAT JUSSIE SMOLLETT
FOUGHT BACK, AND THAT HE AND THE TWO OFFENDERS FELL TO THE GROUND WHERE
JUSSIE SMOLLETT WAS KICKED IN THE BACK, AND THAT THE TWO UNKNOWN MALES
MADE PHYSICAL CONTACT OF AN INSULTING OR PROVORING WATURE WITH JUSSLL
SMOLLETT BY POURING A LIQUID ONTO JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT
FELT PULLING AT HIS NECK AND THE UNKNOWN OFFENDERS PUT A ROPE AROUND HIS
NECK, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED THAT ONE OF HIS ATTACKERS WAS A MALE
WHITE, WEARING A BLACK MASK WITH AN OPEN EYE AREA SHOWING THE SKIN AROUND
HIS EYES, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT KNEW THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSTION
THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND FOR BELIEVING THEAT SUCH AN OFFENSE HAD

BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1{a) (4)/(12-3.05(c)) OF
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 13
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authoxity of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their ocaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE DETECTIVE KIM MURRAY, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF AN AGGRAVATED BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER
720 ACT 5 SECTION 12-3.05(f) (2) OF THE ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES,
REPORTING THAT ON JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE
PUBLIC WAY IN THE MIDDLE OF THE INTERSECTION OF NEW STREET AND LOWER
NORTH WATER STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, JUSSIE SMOLLETT
HEARD RACTIAI AND HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND TWO OFFENDERS APPROACHED JUSSIE
SMOLLETT FROM BEHIND, PUNCHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT IN THE FACE, AND THAT
JUSSIE SMOLLETT FOUGHT BACK, AND THAT HE AND THE TWO OFFENDERS FELL TO
THE GROUND WHERE JUSSIE SMOLLETT WAS KICKED IN THE BACK, FELT PULLING AT
HI5 WECK, AND A LIQUID ¥AS PCURED ONTC HIM, JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED THAT
ONE OF HIS ATTACKERS WAS A MALE WHITE, IN DARK CLOTHING, WEARING A BLACK
MASK TO CONCEAL HIS IDENTITY, WITH AN OPEN EYE AREA SHOWING THE SKIN
AROUND HIS EYES, AND THAT THE UNKNOWN OFFFENDERS CAUSED BODILY HARM TO
JUSSTE SMOLLETT, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT KNEW THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS
TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND FOR BELIEVING THAT SUCH AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1{a) (4)/(12-3.05(£) (2}) OF
ILLINOLS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 14
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their oaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TO BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE DETECTIVE KIM MURRAY, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,

THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF AN AGGRAVATED BATTERY, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER
720 ACT 5 SECTION 12-3.05(f) (2) OF THE ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES,
REPORTING THAT ON JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE
PUBLIC WAY IN THE MIDDLE OF THE INTERSECTION OF NEW STREET AND LOWER
NORTH WATER STREET, IN CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, JUSSIE SMOLLETT
HEARD RACIAL AND HOMOPHOBIC SLURS, AND TWO OFFENDERS APPROACHED JUSSIE
SMOLLETT FROM BEHIND, PUNCHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT IN THE KFACE, AND THAT
JUSSIE SMOLLETT FOUGHT BACK, AND THAT HE AND THE TWO OFFENDERS FELL TO
THE GROUND WHERE JUSSIE SMOLLETT WAS KICKED IN THE BACK, AND THAT THE TWO
UNKNOWN MALES MADE PHYS3ICAL CONTACT OF AN IWSULTING OR PROVORING NATURE
WITH JUSSIE SMOLLETT BY POURING A LIQUID ONTO JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND JUSSIE
SMOLLETT FELT PULLING AT HIS NECK AND THE UNKNOWN OFFENDERS PUT A ROPL
ARQUND HIS NECK, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED THAT ONE OF HIS ATTACKERS
WAS A MALE WHITE, WEARING A BLACK MASK TO CONCEAL HIS IDENTITY, WITH AN
OPEN EYE AREA SHOWING THE SKIN AROUND HIS EYES, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT KNEW
THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND FOR
BELIEVING THAT SUCH AN OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1(a) (4)/(12-3.05(f) (2)) OF
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 15
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




El

The Grand Jurors chosen, selected and sworn, in and for the County of
Cook, in the State of Illinois, in the name and by the authority of the
People of the State of Illinois, upon their oaths present that on or
about January 29, 2019 at and within the County of Cook

Jussie Smollett
committed the offense of DISORDERLY CONDUCT

in that HE, KNOWINGLY TRANSMITTED OR CAUSED TC BE TRANSMITTED, IN ANY
MANNER, TO ANY PEACE OFFICER, PUBLIC OFFICER OR PUBLIC EMPLOYEE, TO WIT:
CHICAGO POLICE DETECTIVE KIM MURRAY, A REPORT TO THE EFFECT THAT AN
OFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED, TO WIT: JUSSIE SMOLLETT REPORTED, IN PERSON,
THAT HE WAS THE VICTIM OF A HATE CRIME, A VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5
SECTION 12-7.1{a}) OF THE ILLINCIS COMPILED STATUTES, REPORTING THAT ON
JANUARY 29, 2019, AT APPROXIMATELY 2:00 AM, ON THE PUBLIC WAY IN THE
MIDDLE OF THE INTERSECTION OF NEW STREET AND LOWER NORTH WATER STREET, IN
CHICAGO, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, JUSSIE SMOLLETT HAD RACIAL AND HOMOPHOBIC
SLURS CALLED OUT TO HIM, AND TWCO UNKNOWN OFFENDERS APPROACHED JUSSIE
SMOLLETT FROM BEHIND, PUNCHED JUSSIE SMOLLETT IN THE FACE, AND THAT
JUSSIE SMOLLETT FOUGHT BACK, AND THAT HE AND THE TWO UNKNOWN OFFENDERS
FELL TO THE GROUND WHERE JUSSIE SMOLLETT WAS KICKED IN THE BACK, FELT
PULLING AT HIS NECK, AND A LIQUID WAS FOURED ONTO ililM, AND JUSSIE
SMOLLETT REPORTED THAT ONE OF HIS ATTACKERS WAS A MALE WHITE, WEARING A
BLACK MASK WITH AN OPEN EYE AREA SHOWING THE SKIN AROUND HIS EYES, AND
THAT THE UNKNOWN OFFFENDERS CAUSED BODILY HARM TO JUSSIE SMOLLETT, AND
THAT THE TWO UNKNOWN MALES HAD MADE PHYSICAL CONTACT OF AN INSULTING OR
PROVOKING NATURE WITH JUSSIE SMCOLLETT BY POURING A LIQUID ONTO JUSSIE
SMOLLETT, AND PUTTING A ROPE ARQOUND HIS NECK, AND JUSSIE SMOLLETT KNEW
THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS TRANSMISSION THERE WAS NO REASONABLE GROUND FOR
BELIEVING THAT SUCH AN QFFENSE HAD BEEN COMMITTED,

IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 720 ACT 5 SECTION 26-1(a) (4)/(12-7.1(a)) OF
ILLINOIS COMPILED STATUTES ACT 1992 AS AMENDED AND

contrary to the Statute and against the peace and dignity of the same
People of the State of Illinois.

COUNT NUMBER 16
CASE NUMBER 19CR-3104
CHARGE ID CODE: 0011489




GJ-

Y
CASE NO.
19CR-3104

604

++ INFORMATION INDICTMENT RETURN SHEET**

IR DEFENDANT NO.  ARRAIGNMENT DATE
2397168 Jussie Smollett 001 03/14/2019
FBI-6798547C5 SEX:Male RACE:Black DOB:06/21/1982
ISB-37521501 Add:340 E. North Water St Unit 3900,
R Chicago, IL 60611
¢ “Municipal-19-1103271 >
CB-19771648 " Arrest Agy:CHICAGO POLICE DEPARTMENT
RD/AR-JC133190 Arrest Unit:UNIT 610 - DETECTIVE SECTION -
CENTRAL

Arrest Date:02/21/2019

DL, State: *** DL#: ***
Hgt:511 Wgt:175
Hair:Black Eyes:Brown
True Bill 02/28/2019

ASA: Mary Devereux

001 FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) {4)
0011489 Class: 4

002 FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) (4)
0011489 Class: 4

003 FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) (4)
0011489 Class: 4

004 FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE

e
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) (4) Eg
00131489 Class: 4 for
005 FALSE REPORT OF QFFENSE %g .
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) (4) § .
0011489 Class: 4 w3
006 FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE oy ¢
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) {4) =
0011489 Class: 4 =
007 FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE -
=

720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) (4)
0011489 Class: 4

008 FALSE REPORT QOF OFFENSE
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) {4)
00114898 Class: 4

009 FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
720 TLCS 5/26-1(a) (4)
0011489 Class: 4

0010 FALSE REPORT OF OQOFFENSE
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) (4)
0011489 Class: 4




0011 FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
720 ILCS bH/26~1(a) {4)
001148% Class: 4

0012 FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) {4}
0011489 Class: 4

0013 FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) (4)
0011489 Class: 4

{014 FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) (4)
0011489 Class: 4

0015 FALSE RREPORT OF QFFENSE
720 ILCS 5/26-1(a) {4)
0011489 Class: 4

0016 FALSE REPORT OF CEFFENSE
720 ILCS 5/26-1{a) (4)
0011489 Class: 4

* ok k
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T
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19110327101

M1-CM-FP-40000-2049-(iTEM 1.4.3)

Clerk of the Circuit Court

Q1" : CB/DCN: 019771648 IR: 2397168 BRANCH: 01 _ .
| dm‘_.—awNN._ c.— . COURT DATE: @2P21/2018 ROOM: 0100 TIME: 0100 /° o Q\ a0 A
 STATE OF ILLINOIS .
_ E 001 720-5/2%6—1-A~4 -
V. _Neob@ )
m_._.mﬂ ._cmm_m _ ) (A Amend
H oS 1 Z
M EMERA AL @E .
_k - (ategoryB omgmm D-Boad ... Dtéms&mw\
191 .—.ewNN,_ c,.— 19 TS (q B [
JUDGE: LYKE JR., JOHN F. CODE: 2143 .“ \34.7 m.w.. @.\3_5. onl ;x@*nn:@m\ m rond-all
COURT DATE: 03/14/2019 ROOM: 1198 TIME: 1130 () YR 173
BOND NO: DEPOSIT  $: 100,000 BRANGH: 98 3 NS o—7=1 1
008 - PROBABLE GAUSE T0 DETAIN N w _
0601 ~  BAIL AMOUNT SET
0301 ~_ MOYION STATE — CONTINUANGE 11
5211 ~ CATEGORY B OFFENSE ORDER EN 10
0818 — _SPECIAL COND 9,. BaLopoeR; | 1
rirsy muimsnua District - Criminal - - GO GREEN FK
.+ VIEWJPRINT DOCUMENTS

02 muc_ma C A DCESS TERMINA,




Sheet # . Defendant Sheet # CRIMINAL DISPOSITION SHEET Branch/Room/Location - CLERK USE ONLY
0001 0001 OF 0001 . 1735 304 STEVEN G. WATKINS 0001
) : . 101 CHICAGO(1ST) CENTRAL
CASE NUMBER DEFENDANT NAME ATTORNEY COURT DATE | COURT CALL/TIME
19110327101 SMOLLETT JUSSIE HART MCLAUGHLIN &ELDRIDGE| 03-26-2019 | 2-0930 AM.

CB/DCN # IR # EM BOND # 1|cip BOND AMOUNT
019771648 2397168 0000000 X $I00,000.00 _

CHARGES = IN CUSTODY 02/21/19% COURT ORDER ENTERED CODES

c001 720-5/26-1-A-4
DISORDERLY CONDUCT - FALSE RE

RESPONSIBLE FOR CODING AND COMPLETION BY DEPUTY CLERK:

VERIFIED BY:




~

~ Sheet Defendant Sheet # CRIMINAL DISPOSITION SHEET Branch/Room/Location CLERK USE ONLY
1] 4] 0001 OF 0001 - 1198 BRANCH 98 RM 101 0002
J - 101 . CHICAGO{(1S8T) CENTRAL )
CASE NUMBER DEFENDANT NAME ATTORNEY COURT DATE | COURT CALL/TIME
19110327101 SMOLLETT JUSSIE | HART MCLAUGHLIN &ELDRIDGE| 03-12-2019 | E-1130 AM
CB/DCN # IR# EM BOND # 1lc|p BOND AMOUNT
019771648 2397168 0000000 X $T00,000.00
CHARGES « IN CUSTODY 02/21/19% COURT ORDER ENTERED "CODES

C001 720-5/26-1-A-4
DISORDERLY CONDUCY - FALSE RE

Of <

i< B O7z—

e ll s

RESPONSIBLE FOR CODING AND COMPLETION BY DEPUTY CLERK:

VERIFIED BY:

JUD \I/ | . JUDGE'S :
Mw“ : 'S No.
.\\. ‘ .




- Paople
V T l'i&lli.;tlﬂ'(l)jp&ﬂti&lnﬂéz;).'l ]
w 4 - 19110327101 .
¥ CaseNo, oo
Jusse Smallett : p
" Defondant(o/Respondens) K. - MYV ¢
' REQUEST FOR EXTENDED MEDIACOVERAGE . ) Ay € Ol
The undersigned. media coordinator héreby states as follows: . @ < prd ?0 h
* 1, 'This tequest is made on behalf of all news media mgamzarlonsv ‘ o - ‘ i 4‘{ &JE @ ._
"2, T heteby request cansent to provide extcnded mcd_ia icoverage of the proceeding schcdulcd on the ' ‘%‘og
"rday of _ Meroh . . . L 2019 ,at the _ Lelghtonﬁﬂminai . Courrhousc R
28008, CalforiR -~ T ' S e Minois.

- ;","ﬂ;-

-——.——-————-—M—‘-‘h\"_-

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.
_ DEPARTMENT, .. ms'rmcrmmsx(m

3. Bxrended media coverage is réqumcd fary i
l thc proceedmg descnbed above

o andrilesiit anséa—éﬁlshaﬂawmamg; - “?]@@3&
r.he pmnggdhig des@rtbcc[ abévc: ana a!l ﬁ}mrg prcseecilngs fir dhifivease; eluding eo welrangey 8 :
4 e type aFcxrended:mdia. covormge bequested is asfollawsiinelidepe qf requlpigiit; dombey oF Pmmﬁ;ﬁ)

lwe or delaved publication, audio or video, etc)

~’ 2 video camera's, 2 uipads 4 mlcrophones wilth- cableg, djaro box 3 silll camaxa'a wilh lenses, lap lop, btzmp alectrtca! corda and mane-pad. (no rodio) . :

5, The onvslte med!a coordlnatm for this procccding will be: Namc : Kﬂ”ﬁ““ﬂ@ﬁ

- News Medla Organizatjon:__ WeNTY. S _ .
. zﬁmwamdlaymam,cmcago. ILBB&'!B R : o e
TN Emai} Address: khamlc!a@x‘zgnfvcom o

o

. Tl -;a'ind rovlsiuns of the THinois Supwme Court’s Pojiey fbr Evtended Mcd’ia C'awmge in t!Je Ct‘r—

céit’%ﬁ#ruaf ﬂl no and the Cook County Clrcule @mrs;Gcncra{ ﬁmimstmive’ i
media. covaage, and perform all dudes reqmrcd of me as the media t:ourdinator ,
7 ThiE requiest for extended media coverage Is filed (cheek the appmpriat: bax): -

< mtaﬁ% fourteen (14) days In advance of th:: procccdiqcr identified abave; or: -

E] less than fourteen (14) days in advancc of the procccdmg identified above because

L L e PP .‘v‘r' 4
Keug E’armcde o . elyBaril
Signatmc T T Print Name
News Media Organization: : _WeN'Ty i
Addresst 2EB1WBradleyPlaaB‘ ChloagniLBOMB T N
in triblln d[ ' '
Telephone: 773 8533203 . Emall Address- Wyn M@ e i o

DOROTHY BROWN, CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, IILINOIS

; .
H e
—— o




. ,  Griminal Division
" DOROTHY BROWN

2660 8. Callfomia, 6% Fl, - Room 526
GLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT ’ Chlcago, llifnols 80608
‘ (T73) 474-3878
(77) 6T4-A444 FAX

www.cookgountyslerkofoourt.org

OFFICE OF THE CLERK OF THE GIRGUIT GOURT OF COOK COUNTY ™~ """~ 7~

EMC COVERSHEET
For ‘
REQUEST FOR EXTENDED MEDIA COVERAGE

" Date: Februacy 27, 2019

TO: :'Pat Milhizer, Media Lisison - FR:  D. Solofra, CDC/K. Wells, ACDC
... Office of the Chief Judge Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court -
_ Phone: (312) 6035160 - Phone: (312) 603-3074/ (312) 6032658
 Fax: (312) 603-4938 - Fax: (312) 6035051

EMC mani emc@cookcountyll gov

- EMC Mail; eimc@cookcountycourt.com

, Hearing Date: March 14%, 2019
- Judge: :Honorable Judge John F, Lyke .
Br.98 Courtroom: 101 Tnme 11:30am

Defendant(s) Name Defendant(s) Cage Noi

Tussie Smollett

19110327101
Sewice List
s  Office of the Presxdmg Judge, Tohn Kirby 1¥ Municipal Dlstrmt
+ - Honorable Judge Yohn F, Lyke Jr. S
» Office of the Cook Colinty State’s Attorney — Crumnal Depamnent ' ‘ i
o e

Kelly Barnicle, On-Szte Media Coordinator, WGN'TV

 Kbarnicle@wgat. com:” (773) 883-3203 é

< Law _Flm of; P! rt"McLaughim &Eld!‘ : i a% _'t

e " .Jnck Prior, Attorney (Attarhey #6306767) : =

- ‘33Ws Washington-Suite 1600 _ ga X

[ _ Ghmxgo,lLﬁOﬁﬂZ BREPEE E - i
o s . =%
o o =]

. [=

- Total Pages Seut: 2

ccet Remee Bén_ks, Associate Clerk-Criminal/Juvenile Bureau . :
Karen Wells, Assistant Chief Deputy Clerk-Criminal Division - '




IN THE. CXRCUIY. COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
- COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CRIMINAL DIVISION

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, - ' ., NS

V.

:ru.fft.f «SNOL‘LL‘ TT

| )
. )
)

)

)

Defendant )

Judgo Presiding -

oamog SETTING HEARING ]
D MEDIA COVERAGE..

PLEASE BE ADVISED. that on ; [ 2 , 2019 a Requost for Extended Media Coverage

e was ﬁled in the above-entitled canse for: the: proceedmg set for Aem. 14 -, 2019. The request seeks :

to record and broadcast the proceodmgs using talevzsmn cameras and/or sﬁli photography cameras
ITI8 HEREBY ORDERED:

1A hearmg on the Request for Bxtended Media Coverage will be held on. M‘-' { z;-& ty at.
oL /€N before -this Coutt in Courtroom _ / el of the George N. -
Le1ghton Criminal Coutt Bmldmg, 2650 8. Cahforma Avenue, Chicago, Ilinois.

e Any mtercsted party or witness who objects to the rcqucst must file & written objection using the

o '3\Cr1mmal l)wlsmn, 2650 S. Cahforma Avenue, Room 526 Chlcago, I}]moas 60608 ...Q..l%le_ .

i, AH Attomeys of Record shall serve a copy of tlns Grder an& attached Objecuon Form to each
B wrﬁ:ess thoy mtend to call at mal or at future proceedmgs mthxs cause. .

]

[FILED |
MAR 062013

°'¢E“§F°5uélc Al Housr

Cnmmal Division

CaoeNo._. [ 1” 03 27[ Dml . -

* form attached to this Order in the Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Cook: ‘County ~

F U S

At & e e e




(Rev. 10/20/11) CCCR N001

NOTIFICATION OF MOTION
Dated Received () /&> -~ , 2019 DatetobeHeard 02135 o RO)
 Defendant’s Name Jussie SMn\\«eﬁ;' , _
Case No. 19 = [l F)o ) : Charge FA0 - D34 - A
Before Judge _ - : Room . Regular Call
Specialty Call

Natureof Motion Mo didying Codidions Sor B |
-y )

ernision o ravel od¥ide shuve & Thonen's

Requester’s Name: U‘MK ?r\’ot'

. Address: 2 W Werlwgn ",S;ﬂn;_' 1600
City/State/Zip: __Chicgeo, TL GCGO%
Telephone: 3 QUC?SE 05‘{f

Atty. No. (if applicable): ___ &306¥6%
F{ i "I LY 'iﬂg : i

Completed

8r. 1, CRC-26850 §. Callfornia

FEB 23 2019

DOROTHY BROWN
GLERK OF GIRGUIT COURT | -

DOROTHY BROWN, CLERK OF THE CIRC’UIT COURT OF.‘C0.0I{ COUNTY, ILLINOIS

M
Office Use Only

{1 Filed

O} Received File

J Verbal

C} Petiton/Motion enclosed




A | _
. Sh mﬁnﬂ Defendant Sheet # CRIMINAL DISPOSITION SHEET Branch/Room/Location CLERK USE ONLY
Qwa 0001 OF 0001 - ‘ 1198 BRANCH 98 RM 101 - 0024
101 CHICAGO (1ST) CENTRAL -
CASE NUMBER DEFENDANT NAME ATTORNEY 'COURT DATE | COURT CALL/TIME
19110327101 SMOLLETT JUSSIE HART MCLAUGHELIN &ELDRIDGE 02-25-2019 E-1130 AM
CB/DCN # . R# EM . BOND # i1C b BOND AMOUNT
015771648 2397168 0000000 X $100,000.00
CHARGES * IN CUSTODY QN\NH\Hw* COURT ORDER ENTERED CCDES

€001 720-5/26-1-A-4 - -
 DISCRDERLY CONDUCT - FALSE RE -

N

=3

ol
Afs 3(%—|F

JUDGE:

JUDGE'S No.

RESPONSIBLE FOR CODING AND COMPLETION BY DEPUTY CLERK:

VERIFIED BY:




Order | | (2/24/05) CCG 0002

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

P@ﬁi‘)\{z Gg S’&L\‘C r} Iut‘r\o:)

No. V§-1[032%10)

.jU SSie Smaueﬁw

ORDER
T his snaver cc)m‘o +o be heardh on Dekndad’s Motion HOMWCY'"J Cordlitias “"va'%au{ ]

C)M()'\'\O(\.\s contedl MDC%a&a,,&d 15 Pex-mcl‘\'ckffb v 4o N&d YC.‘\fV(.

on Moak \\aom 5o Marcle 3A0IS e Yion 1558 e 4y Califoem

fcam Noaln 3, 2019 to Mo\ 2 1OIY  wm cxvma ¥ weet aiicaonsed.

DeeSerdon- m\ o by Thags on Mok V2 X019,

e

" Ty
14_.4 lv ﬁ LJ ﬂé :J.“; i

FEB 25 201

oy haow

Atty.. No.: D 7 64 8

Name: Jcma Peioc- Hast NLLQSXL« vEldnd e ENTERED: Lz
O .

§_BErUy ¢ SOTNE EQ’“F‘T

Atty. for: . Susst‘a Swollel§™ %M 2 S ZO H

Address: 22X \J;Washbd‘m‘ St ’(GO‘

City/State/Zip: Chic@a,TL COOGOR.

Telephone: 310,965, 05¢5

DOROTHY BROWN, CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
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i COURT BRANCH - CALL | COURT COMPLAINT TRANSMITTAL Em._._zm - Police personnei use ::m:mama lines, court personnel _umO_. e DATE PREPARED k
S CHICAGO POLICE . CPD-11 551REV. 9/03)  shaded fines. (UNITNo) | DAY ~MO. YR | PAGE  OF
M cBC-1 rgsA CA 2: 21  Feb 2019 1 1
i “M\d\w\\_.\..\.. \S\.‘\Nu , M\\k\d.\ﬁ \N\a Dt
DATE OF - ;
, No.  CBNo.|  imest 7ommmzw>zi_.mﬂ Firt - _s; - Boxmmm . M.‘y%m mﬁi‘ AT | eww_wq WEIGHT COMPLEXION |-
. .- IRNo. | Line No. REFERENCES o:.>;_o_m,wm9_oi : u_mvom:_oZ | sonNONo. | BONDE. | CASENo. |DEF/CHNo.f
S WARRANT-Doc No. - LDS/NCIC No o |
T RD No. :
(1 ppicavi MISCELLANEOUS . . | o COURT DATE ...
‘.11! " - S . -\J
o Y Tm
i1 19771648 | 21 FEB 2019 l SMOLLETT, Jussie 1718 S State St,Chicago, IL 60616 175 LBR
- _,.. R -Q
2397168 | 001 | 720 ILCS 5.0/26-1-A4 7” Fl @, Hwﬂwmwmw 7L ‘
_ . :
Lpoeet s 5145 | 21 FEB 2019 |
: B i e

ST

...,..,.......,...,.....,.fi
.aowz TERED

- m? | moma ) mmmc m

m..mm ﬁ 2818

DOROTHY B
ormmwwo%c,%« a_x%ﬂm._ﬁ %ocm,..
DEPUTS GLERK . COUNTY,

gll-l]llﬂlﬂ'd.ll}fL

. Om__mo_.Em

E\Qﬁ r \

¢ ot
(K t O~

c“

A\&E &.;.r rz

Cesan 7655
| PREPARED BY STAR No
TRAYLOR, Barbara

\\\\J ———
| : RECEIVED BY (COURT) , JUBGE § \N\ - SHEET
_ 18577 Z _ M,_ P«
TR TR e S‘N\ R ] . A ’W w

RA - DISTRICT: . FORWARD TO OO&m.._. CLERK m@_.wI QOTHER COURT DOCUMENTS.
COURT T NSMITTAL COURT CLERK: AFTER CCOURT HEARING, FORWARD TO CHIEF CLERK OF COURT.




PRISONER DATA SHEET

IN THE CIRCUI'T COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

o

Last Name: SMOLLETT e First Name JUSSIE Middke Initial
Address: 340 E NORTH WATER ST
City/Town: o Zip Code:

CHICAGO IL ‘ 60611
CaseNo- 19110327101 M024 IR: 2397168
Major Charge: ) 50-5/26-1-A-4 DISORDERLY CONDUCT - FALS No. Comnts: 61~
Bail Previously Set: $
Room: prancH 98" RM 101 Tme 1130 aM
Branch: 98 Addre,s_s: 2600 €. CALIFORNIA City/Town:

A i o oo Bail Sett $ R *1 Wn

g - - | Collect: $ - < 0-606——.
o LW, ’
_ - : .
New Court Date: 03/14/2019/ Judge: FE o Judge’s No 2143
Bail Reduced/Increased: $

New Court Date: Judge: Judge’s No.
New Court Date: Judge: Judge’s No.

. .l s . . . x_/,»/’ -y - o f_ . o “.._ “%
Disposition (Remain in Custody): S ¢ o B {atepoty B Offense D-Hongd
Date: | Judge: Judge’s No.
Disposition (Release from Custody):

Date: Judge: Judge’s No.
Date: 02/21/19 \ Deputy Clerk: TIFFANY WALKER - é

- DOROTHY BROWN, CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
COPY NUMBER: ONE V COURT FILE COPY ' ) REF2019110327101 ' ,9000002,M, 938




Qrder for Special Conditions of Bail Ned 7D / /Y

76;"1 1Y 2

:C’ g
| 99 IKL e 104/09) CCG NSO1

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

Petitioner

p—

No. , d7 -

11052779 )

, ]

Juesfin gifv\o //} :a"H”

Defendant ‘ ?

ORDER FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF BAI]{ bonor H N .

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT, in the event the Defendant is admitted to bail, hﬁerﬁ 35;

special condmons of bail as set forth below

%R&port 1o Pretrial Services Unir of the Adule Probation De-

partment and comply with ongoing reporting requirements as

determined by Pretrial Services or as specified below:

# Pay up to $50.00 monthly pretrial supervision fee in ac-
“ cordance with the guidelines of the Adult Probation Depart-
ment’s Pretrial Supervision Fees Instructions.
® Submir address verification to Pretrial Services at the first
office visit.
Q Participate in Pretrial Services Drug Monitoring Program
{3 Attend counseling as arranged by Pretrial Services

O Undergo drug and/or alcohol assessment
* € Participate in a recommended substance abuse program
83 Report to drug treatment facility for inpatient detoxification/
treatment
{3 Refrain from indulge in intoxicating liquos, illegal drugs or the
following drugs:

0 Undergo medical or psychiatric treatment,
3 Remain at the address:

during the curfew hours of;
(3 Remain in the custody of the designated person or organization
agreeing to supervise the 1e[ease of the defendant

[ Susrender his ot her Firearm Owner’s Identification Card to the
Cletk of the Circuit Court within 48 hours following release.
O Surrender alk firearms in his or her possession immediately to
the following law enforcement agency:
0 Do not possess any firearm or dangemus weapon
Do not contact the vietE Z; i
w:tncss(es) or members of their fam11y(1es)
P{b.m ol A" Qoundaird and

Dlabinie ola” Qgun
VIOLA

ENTERED:

Dated: F’ZBVUQ“":] 2L AL

CGLERIL Oi" lei{ ULt f‘\

itnply =W1tﬁ thc

O Refrain from contacting the victim/complainant for 72 hours
following release:
Do not enter th premises of the arca: ¢ /g
y "
o schao | of G ‘md fa )0
Q Refrain fro he victim's/compl fa
efrain from entering the victim's/complainant’s (fjum Jaira
residence for 72 hours following refease:

O Vacate the residence located at:

until further order of the court,

O Make payment of temporary child support to his or her depen-
dants.

U Refrain from contact or communication with child victim as
ordered by court.

0 Minor to reside with parents or in foster home, attend school,
attend non-residential youth program, contribute to own sup-
port (Strike those not applicable.)

Ll Be placed in a pretrial bond home supervision capacity with an
approved electronic monitoring device.

U GPS monitoring

) Report to Adult Probation and comply with GPS requirements
in addition to those specified below:

Surrender his of her passport 10J§2 being admitted to bail.
Other as spcmﬁed { !)Z Q¢ uﬁr\ st th A biva iﬁla

u"o aadl O?AhM ) 0

{ n
H/IL[uduvxe Mn/tf N
S9e e ! j\nudrﬁ £ om‘hmﬁ'

<} 17

viPoN r\e‘o.sa ol ofe. 8. Ak 713 ¢TA 2531

aln 70
ONS OF | THE CONDITfONS OF BAIL MAY RESULT IN ARREST, INCREASE IN BAIL OR REVOCATION OF BAIL.

&/’// .2/%3

Judge’s Ne.

Judge

DOROTHY BROWN, CLERK OF THE CIRCUET COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINQIS
Pagc 1ofl




Category B Offense Bail Cre&it Ozrder . (06/05/18) CCCR N514
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY ]I.LI'NOIS

COUNTY/ MUNICIPAL DEPARTMENT,
' DIVISION/DISTRICT

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

'

32@% Sw@bk"%\f‘” |
Defendant.

CATEGORY B OFFENSE BAIL CREDIT ORDER

This Court having jutisdiction and all parties being fully advised and in agtecment, pussuant to 725 ILCS 5/110-
14(c), it is hereby ORDERED: : .

Case No. lci iiﬂaa@'i -

1. Bail havi'ng been set at § !@0, Cdg-g' & D~Boﬁd fbr a Categofy B offense, tequiting a 10% monetaty '
deposit of § 10 Oy , the defendant shall have a credit of $30 pet day of incarceration deducted

from the armount of the requned monetaty deposit, bcgmnmg on the date of arrest: _ () M Q ! l ﬁ

2. The credited amount of monetaty deposit shall be used to satisfy a Category B Offense D-Bond by:
"5 the entire monetary deposit havmg been satisfied by time served in custody, ot

'b. a combination of time served in custody and the amout of securlty equal to the remaindet of the required
monetary deposit.

3. The assistant state’s attorney and counsel for the defendant agtee that, absent any secunty being posted,
cred1t for the monetary deposit required wﬂl be satisfied after 3_%_ days of incatceration, and the
defendant will be eligible for release in this case on the date of O[30 {20

4, Credit for the amount of time in custody shall be calculated, verified in writing a.nd communicated to the Office
of the Clerk of the Circuit Court by the Cook County Shenff s Office.

5. When the requued monetaty deposit fot a Catcgory B Offense D-Bond has been satisfied by e.Ithct Z(a) or 2(b)
(above}, the Cletk of the Circuit Court of Cook County shall prepare 2 Categ a aged :‘ Bongantause

it to be delivered to the Cook County Sheriff’s Office. N
| - é{}-’ 11GBC 6 2650 5. California
6. This otder applies only to this case. _
7. Special conditions of bail, in this case only, ate as follows: . _ FEB 21 2019 ,
" [KPre-trial Services [ Electrqfaié Mogitoring [ GPS - ) cLER?,&.Og J&';g gnlq)c\{_ﬂ coum'
m Other MJLM&P&\A . E}Ei‘m\ GLERK - e e
| K ' ENTERBDy
,/(.” ! - ? L
. :f : gﬁ!j\w -;'/ / - / Yi l
i / Jddge Judge’s No.

Dotrothy Brown, Clerk of the Citcuit Court of Cook County, Ilinois- cookcountycletkofcourt.org
Page1of 1
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"IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY

_ IL-I'JNOIS"
The I’eople of the State of Tilinois_ o ,
R C -~ Plaintiff ICF 10 %31

v. ‘ . ' . Ch“ge

3;55;@ Sm\leﬁ?}“

Defendaﬂt(s) [ -

f
APPEARANCE
- "fhc und@_tsigjnqd, is attolmeg-r, éntets the appeatance of
_ i S '3;155\‘& &&@‘ﬁ"’
© Defendant(s) m the above ﬁnﬂﬁbd. catse. - . -

AttyNo J6i K. o S S
'_AttyName ‘Iuhu(‘ﬁ—a(k)q)ﬁor’ L . o 6-’ '
-‘Atq.for jume. Smal\efr o o S
- Adiress: 22 W, \Jﬁku S S s'u:« l§co
Clt?‘_—_.ﬁhﬂoo_———————— State: LL
zip: G060 R
Telephone: L2, 971, 723,

Primaty Fmail

" . Dorothy Browa, Cletk of the C'itcuii.; Cout of Cook County, lllinois cookcountycletkofcomt .o1g
- - Pageiofl




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS L
CASH DEPOSIT BAIL BOND: CRIMINAL OR QUASI-CRIMINAL (10% OF BAIL, $25.00 MINIMUM DEPOSIT) D 187 8606

ORIGIN OF]}QQ]J) £1 Bail set hy Rule of the Ilinois Supreme Court OR }
USINGAGENCYNO B ; S D" : e R,
- . | s CPRINT'NAMEOFJUDGE1'-1. o (JTJDGE’SNO} Ril T . T (OFFICEUSE) . ' ..

BAIL' TOUNT R ¥ \ \ \§ \ﬁ( hl % i

! e | 00 YA e
$ T \ {} O . 0 {:} {j mamen % VJ-«MH L;L{’k“(;:_ 2’# g_,fI s‘;‘,K cnil S0
W]l oL XX I Ay ) ,

. . - . \ ,: [N ’ -' .

RS

s 001010 E--?;. - *‘*’“’?@' e .“*‘\*ﬁmﬁiﬁﬁi b
R A 1% . - STATEMENT OF DEFENDANT. 1 tmderstand and accept’ the terms i
; : - | conditionsset_forth below:-and on the, reverse side.of this bail _bond. I

. .DEFENDA 'T'h&)"é‘;ga cpating Bnnd - Always complete this sectin understand i all_cases 10% of any ameunt posted up té g maxin
R "~ | $160.00_as baii is retained by the Clerk of the Court, pursnant to statute,
P m \ e 4 f:ﬁ% =
(PRINT} w ‘\ D £ { A 3

Further, T hereby certify that'] understand tlxe consequences of faﬂure tﬂ
o ] ‘“’ Fjest) -
'h?,"”’s?*ﬁ‘ . \*ﬁ LK A!Fw

appear for trial as zeqmred.

ASSIGNMENT OF BAILBOND 'BY THE DEFENDANT 1 hereb i author:ze_
. the retuin of thé money: _osted above to the pexson.shown on this bond as

wenn . o .+| having provided money for.my bail aiterall conditions of this bail bond have
City and N : Zip : * been. met, or ag ordered by. the onrt. R . o
. Sm{ea;m : \w“..f‘x, T}i\n_) — c,,l:ie . c :
: - _ ] oo - Defendant’ Slgnature L i e i
" COURT COMPLAINT OR mDICTI\mNT NUMBER(S) _ B _' %H@RGE T ] T pisposirioN. .-
30T E—— (1177 V0 = S R ——

Br. or Suh CT .

Nol cummi any mminsl olIenses wh:]e awamng ﬁlml‘ 3 R
I om appEal, pmsecute ihe appeal,’ and sux;;ender to clstmiy if Eh? ;udgment is alfivmed.
or.n newW trial is ax‘demd
Q Surrender (125 HLCS 5/110-10(a)(5)} OR: not possess any fircarms or dnngemus
- (d wenpons until finat order in this ease,
O

 Not contact of commuiricat wlthany ._"' ing witn es or b otlhea-

%@M” @Xma ped D hhaﬁw o8 o

’ witnesse home,wnrk {) Er’i-\da-;l f@

mjsés of vi g L

s&\”ﬁ;r ‘i‘LJ\ Ma 3"\? Mosti) S odohiag dl - T p—— ' :
t?\ Q i PR} (il 123 ““ L £ & I;I‘)B\Repurt to. ;md reinain yrder the pretrlnl supervismn of such agency or. tl:ird-pa.rty custodian as -
O Notto lidwge i intoxteating quuors, iMegal drugs_ or certsin driigs; toowit: - ‘:' v"ﬁé‘. {14 f‘é) s 2 BT ST -,

. on. tlns bomd in the ahove mmlbered case or cases.

2L understand- that even xt‘ the“defendan follows all courl orders; that this money . | : ,3‘“_
may be. ordered bv the Judge to pay for the defendant’s attorney fees, court: ¢osts, Relﬂtlonshlp to Defendﬂnt' :
stitatio ‘do the vrctim' and lhat I may: lase all or ydrt of i) ¥ g

R ,A"‘h’e_ssl' _A’xm @g ‘,ﬂ ﬂ}{g;x\‘ T‘k
. - State: _&_ Zips
?71}?% ERE S

3.1 understand- that if the &é:i‘éiidarlt"fads to compl thh ‘I‘thé' conditions 'reﬂér:ted"_
. on this bond,-J may Iose all of my money should the court enter a fort‘eiture of bail |
. order.

4.1 nnderstand in all eases 10% of any: arount posted up {0 &' maxioum of $100.€] |
as bml is l;etamed by the Clerk of the Court pursuant to statute.

O am. ‘a‘l?{m Hunr

. M ’S “This: ha]l bond foxrm was prepared by: -

AL V]

Month . Day ] (Signature of Peace Officer)

TlH[R]EE Or Clerk of the Circuit Court of Cook Comnty, by
D 1375606 /

ATTACH THIS COPY TO THE COMELAINT AND ARREST HEPORT OR TO THE - )
COURT FILE COPY -~ = : WARRANT AND FORWARD AULPAPERS TO THE BRANCH OR HEADQUARTERS CCG N696 A-2.5M=10/08(83350067)

WHERE PERTENENT CASE IS ASSIGNED, COURT CLERK WILL ATTACH THIS

Dept. S - —
e, {CPD District No, or S\?}dmr@ty, Town; of Village)
iy <‘M - .
s .
- 0C. LB = -
-7 (Signature B’K{kpﬂt}' Eﬂ‘) " (Branch or Suburbau Couri)

e s




Skokie Call 1 ' 28-Feb-2019
{Court Branchk) (Court Date)

FELONY ' CCCR N662-125M-6/28/02 (23440565)

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

The P;ll)ple orlt:llliﬂois COMPLAINT FOR PRELIMINARY EXAMINATION
ainti ‘ .

¥,

Jussie SMOLLETT
Defendant

State of lllincis/ Det. M. Theis #21217 complaiaant, now appears before
(Complainant’s Name Printed or Typed)

The Cirenit Court of Cook County and states that

Jussie SMOLLETT 340 E. North Water St. #3900 Chicago, IL. . has, on or about
{Defendant) . (Address) '
29-Jan-2019 at 340 E. North Water St. Chicago, Cook County, IL.

{Date) ) {Place of offense)

committed the offense of Disorderly Conduct / False Police Report _ in that he/she

Knowingly transmits or causes to be transmitted in any manner to any peace officer, public officer or public employee

a report fo the effect that an offense will be committed, is being committed or has been committed, knowing at the

time of the transmission that there is no reasonable ground for believing that the offense will be committed, is being

committed, or has been commitied.

| — )
in violation of 720 ILCS . 5 / 26-11(4)
{Chapter) : {Act) {Section}

L P Yo

{Cumplmnnm’s Signature)

EZ o1 2019

CHARGECODE R 5101 South Wentworth Ave. __ 312-747-8380
STATE OF ILLINOIS DoRrOTHY IHRQWN Complainani's Address) {Telephone No.)
COOK COUNTY * CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT State of lllinois/ Det. M. Theis #21217
(Complainant’s Name Printed or Typed)
being first duly sworn, His : on oath, deposes and says the hefshe read the foregoing

cnmplamt by him/her subscribed and that the same is true, - \ . #
i) 7 B Fuzi

_ " (Complainant’s Sigpature)
Subscribed and sworn to before me A I \ Eﬁ)ruary /‘ ~ 2019
| | Aﬁf/ O- Syl [r

(Judgé ar Clerk)

L have examined the above complaint and the person presenting the same and have heard evidence lhercon, and am satisfied that there
is probahle cause for fiting same. Leave is glven to file said complaint, ’

Summons [ssued, Judge

er Judge's Nu.
Warrant Issued, Bail set at,
or
Bazil set at . Judge
? : Judge's Nu.

DOROTHY BROWN, CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS




PRETRIAL SERVICES ~ | " page1

Public Safety Assessment - Court Report | Sherifff. 24

Name: JUSSIE SMOLLETT ¢ PID: L0 o Case No. 2019110327101
DOB: . 06/21/1982 ' RACE  BLACK/AFRICAN AMER. .- Gender: Male
‘Arrest Date:  02/21/2018 PSA - Court Completion Date: 02/2 1'/20-19

New Violent Criminal Activity Flag:  ENo

Niminal Activity Scale - 2

pn
o
)
£ty
e

W— s b R T i e

Charges FALSE REPORT OF OFFENSE

Risk Factors: Responses:

AR
)}

z zioo <z <222

1. Age at Current Arrest
2. Cufrent Violent Offense
a. Current Violent Offense and 20 years old or Younger

3, Pending Charge at the Time of the Offense
4. Prior Misdemeanor Conviction
. Prior Felony Conviction

a. Prior Conviction
. Prior Violent Conviction
. Prior Failure to Appear [n Past 2 Years
. Prior Failure to Appear Older Than 2 Years
. Prior Sentence to Incarceration

(W]

-~ o

oW oo

Release Recommendation: Release with Pretrial Monitoring

Comments




PRETRIAL SERVICES Supplemental Information - Court Report Page 2

SMOLLETT, JUSSIE  Case No. 201911032710 Sheriff No. 24

RESIDENCY INFORMATION

Current Address 340 NORTH WATER ST, ApL# 3900 CHICAGO, IL60611
County COOK

Living with SELF

Length at residence 2 years

FAMILY INFORMATION {Children under 18 years of age)

Number of Children 0 # of Children Residing with Defendant 0
# of Children Depend on Defendant 0 # of Children Residing Elsewhere 0

SOCIOECONOMIC

Current Employer 20TH CENTURY FOX

Address

Occupation ACTOR

Length of employment . 0 years

Shift time ' 10 - :0

Retired? ' N

Receiving disability income? N

Student? N [ J Fuli Time | L_J Part Time
SELF-RE[’QRIED MENTAL HEALTH

Current mental health problem? N

History of mental health problems? N

Ever received treatment? N

SELF-REPORTED SUBSTANCE USE

Drug problem? Y Alcoho!l problem? N Ever received treatment? N

Current Activities

Gang N

Current on Lj Pretrial Serv {:J Probation Conditional Discharged
11 Supervision [ij MSR/Parole Electronic Monitoring

Armed Services

Armed Service Branch N

Service Entry Date // 0

Service Discharge Date /] 0

Discharge Type
NOTES

Amount available for bond now 5,000 Amount available for bond in 48 hrs 5,000



FINAL APPROVAL cB#[fo77i6d8 .

_ CHICAGO POLICE DEPARTMENT , al IR#: 2397168
ARREST REPORT - S PN ' YD#
3510 S, Mibhigan Avéniie, Chicago, ltinois 60653 - . . RD#: JC133190
(For usa by Chicago Police Bepartrren}iPersonnel Only) gy EVENT #: 1902900959
11 H

, JUSSIie ) ' Male
Res: 340 E North Water St, #3800 Beat: Black
Chicago, IL 60611 - 53 SRR E L A
Aris/Movies ,l - :,‘E_TS 'A?s L
DOB: 21 June 1982 - - . |Brown Eyes ...
AGE: 36 years _ G '
pog: California |+, 5

Black Hair
Natural Hair Style
S _ e : Light Brown
DLN: 88963425 -CA ",j vwit . |Complexion ",
ARMED wm-z Unarmed . - L »

190403274

4

Arrast Date: 21 Esbruary 2019 05:10  TRR Completed WNo | Total No Arrested: 1 “Co-Arrests “Assoc Cases ]
Location: 1718 S State St . iBea;t:-131 ' DCFS Ward 7 No
' Chicago, Il 60616 EERE
280 - Palice Facility/Veh Parklpg Lot - 1"3 pypdent Children?No
Holding Facility: Central Male Lockup - - 1+ oo~ -

Resisted Arrest? No

' : R T 4 Victim _
Offense ASClted 720 ILCS 5.026-1-A-4 ' Q

g DISORDERWCONDUCT FALSE REPORT OF OFPENSE F E L E @ _
. 0  FEB21 2088 ||,

DOROTHY BROWN

" KV v b - e e

[ i “
S \
, .
i
. - é
% .
i o

NO NARCOTICS RECOVERED

1 FEB 2019 08:38

Print Generated By: 'I'BAYLQR.‘Barbara ( PCOGO092 ) Page 1 of 5
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FERIH N P A A S N S T

cB # 19771648

4 3

Chicégo Police Department - ARREST Report

NO WARRANT IDENTIFIED

Tlve Yooy

FILED

FEB 21 2019

DOROTHY BROWN.
CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT

Confiscated Properties : - . o
All confiscated properties are recorded in the e-Track System. This system ca
Hocuments related to evidence andfor recovered properties,

PROPERTIES INFORMATION FOR  SMOLLETT, Jssie, " NOT AVAIGABL E‘AUTOMATED ARREST SYSTEM.

E

(The facts for probable cause to arrest AND to substantiafé‘iit!e chargeés include, but are not 'linh:l:d td,’he following) .
1 29-Jan-2019, a call was made to 911 and whén’police anrived, Jussie EOLH ENeefatad he was the victim of an
ggravated Battery stating that two individuals beat him, poured an unknown substance on him, and placed a rope around his
eck at the location of:341 E. Lower North Water Street, Chicago, Cook County lL;, On 13-Fefp2019, Police located and
nterviewed Abimbela OSUNDAIRO and Olabinjo OSUNDAIRO who both stated E:}_[\’/I_OLL@med and staged the attack
ith the cooperation of Abimbola: OSUNDAIRO and Olabinjo OSUNDAIRO.: Statéments mide™by Abimbola OSUNDAIRO
as determined.that thie incident, as

clated by SMOLUE 5 8id Hot accur. At 0510 hours on 21-Feb-2019, SMOLLETT i ard his MIRRNDA warnings-with -
Iattorney Tina GLANDIAN present and declined to answer questions. o T e _ B

and Olabinjo OSUNDAIRO were memorialized on videotape. Through Eni?eé’fié’é}?énr

| No Gipp, No Trap, No investigative Alerts, No Warrants - S -

} | SEE WC COMMENTS SECTION FOR ADDITIONAL COMMENTS s & ,

esired Couirt Date: 28 February 2019 ' ol oo¢ ok '

ranch: SKOK-5600 OLD ORCHARD RD - Room

1 Court Sgt Handle? No

2 |Initial Court Date: 21 February 2019

Branch: CBC-1 2600 S CALIFORNIA - Room100  : .
Docket#: - 4 4 %\uﬁ,‘ -
‘;~ a‘:-mn»ﬁ

Print Generated By: TRAYE’OR, Barbara [ PCOG092 )

Page 20f 5
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hereby declate
nowledge, mformation andlor bellef,

i

ttesting Officer:

st Arresting Officer: #21247 THEIS-,_ M J (PCOWE78)

CB #:| 19771648

5145
5145

21 FEB 2019 05:45

O FILED

FEB 21 2019

DOROTHY BROWN
CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT

21 FEB 2019 06:38




Chicago Police Department - ARREST Report

Heiding Facility: Central Male Lackup
Received In Lockup: 21 February 2019 05:47
Prints Taken: 21 February 2019 06:06
Palmprints Taken: Yes

Photograph Taken: 21 Februaty 2019 06:03
Released from Lockup:

-Is there obvious pain or injury?
ls there obvious signs of infec{ld
Under the infiuence of alcoholidggfys?
$igns of alcohol/drug withdrawal?
Appears to be despondent?

- Appears to be irrational?

Carrying medication?

Question

Name : REFUSED
Res:

No
No
No

No

No
No
No

{Time Called:

TR PR

cB#[ 1877648 ]
SMOLLETT, Jussie . -~ ’

¢

Phonei#: 8183957975

Cell # TOT

|ag§d il pne person celt
- Placedighger close observation
Transport Deta_j_!% by} :

(if female)are: you pregnant? "
First time ever been arrested? No .
Nao.:

Attempted suigide/serious harm? : i
Transgenderfliitergex/gender non-conforming? - & No_,
Deaffhard of hgaring-envest interpreter for court? .~ No.
Interpreter neoded? (indicate language) o Ne
Serious medical prablems? ' o1 No-
Serious mental problems?- - No -

FEB 21 2013 -
DOROTHY BROWN
CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT

AN e o

NO INTERVIEWS LOGGED

o
.

Seead ot

1

Print Generated By: TRAYLOR, Barbara { PC0G092 )




CB #:[19771648 — 1
SMOLLETT, Jussie

FEB 21 2019

| DoOROTHY BROWN
] CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT

! Watch Commander Comments: S e
| 1#428 Guerrero, Richard J (FCOP119)
21 FEB 2019 05:42

F‘elony charged approved by ASA Robert Mack on 20 Feb 19 at
11810 hrs.

DOES NOT APPLY TO THIS ARREST

| Searched By: KIRKLAND, K E (PCQOCS33)
i | Lockup Keeper: SAUSEDA, P M (PC0Y482)
Fingerprinted By: KIRKLAN»E) K E (PCOCQBB)

#20390 21 FEB 201§ 05:41

Lo : ’ Beat
:RRERO, R J(PCOP119) 21 FEB 2019 06:10 (O

A

v

| Detective

Final Approvaliof Charges,:  #428

t

21 FEB 2019 06:38
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